Thomas D. Orvis, President District 3

Gail Altieri, Vice President District 1
Herman Doornenbal District 2
Linda Santos District 4
Brad DeBoer District 5

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
1205 EAST F STREET, OAKDALE, CA 95361
TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2020 — 9:00 A.M.
AGENDA
NOTICE: CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

A complete copy of the Agenda packet will be available on the Oakdale Irrigation District
web site (www.oakdaleirrigation.com) on Friday, May 1, 2020 by close of business. All
writings that are public records and relate to an agenda item which are distributed to a
majority of the Board of Directors less than 24-hours prior to the meeting noticed above will
be made available on the Oakdale Irrigation District web site (www.oakdaleirrigation.com).

INFORMATION FOR REGULAR MEETING DURING SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER

Pursuant to California Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, a local
legislative body is authorized to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make
public meetings accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the
public who wish to participate and to provide public comment to the local legislative body
during the current health emergency. The Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors (OID
Directors) will adhere to and implement the provisions of the Governor's Executive Order
related to the Brown Act and the utilization of technology to facilitate participation.

The location of the meeting will be 1205 East F Street. This site may be utilized as the call-
in center for some or all Directors who will be communicating via teleconference. Be advised
these facilities are currently closed to public access due to implemented protection
measures for the COVID 19 virus. The public will not be granted access to this facility.

If you wish to join the meeting as a member of the public to participate listen to and provide
comment on agenda items, then please dial in using your phone. To join the OID Directors’
meeting by teleconference, please call 1 669-900-9128, Access Code: 439-287-1020 #, the
message will ask for a participant ID, just press # again. If you experience technical
difficulties, please contact our IT Analyst Michael Ballinger at (209) 840-5526.

In addition to the mandatory conditions set forth above, the OID Directors will use sound
discretion and make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably possible to the
provisions of the Brown Act, and other applicable local laws regulating the conduct of public
meetings, including, but not limited to, the requirement that such rights of access and public
comment be made available in a manner consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act
in order to maximize transparency and provide the public access to their meetings.

The OID Directors offer many ways for you to participate in the OID Board Meeting without
attending a meeting in person. Public comments and/or written comments for the OID
Directors’ agenda items can be submitted via email by 4:30 p.m. on the day before the
meeting to Ifp@oakdaleirrigation.com. If you would like to support, oppose, or otherwise




comment on an upcoming agenda item, please consider sending in your comments prior to
the meeting. Pursuant to Government Code section 54954.3(a), Public Comment or public
comment on an Agenda ltem are limited to five (5) minutes.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, a person requiring an
accommodation, auxiliary aid, or service to participate in this meeting should contact the
Executive Assistant at (209) 840-5507, as far in advance as possible but no later than 24
hours before the scheduled event. The District will provide its best effort to fulfill the request.

Agendas and Minutes are on our website at www.oakdaleirrigation.com

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

ADDITIONS OR DELETION OF AGENDA ITEMS

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE

PUBLIC COMMENTS - ITEM 1

1. The Board of Directors welcomes participation in its meetings. This time is
provided for the public to address the Directors of the District on matters of concern
that fall within the jurisdiction of the Board that are not on the agenda.

Because matters being discussed are not on the agenda there should be no
expectation of discussion or comment by the Board except to properly refer the
matter for review or action as appropriate. Matters concerning District operations
or responsibilities can be addressed prior to Board meetings by contacting District
Management or Directors. In this manner, your concerns can be addressed
expeditiously. ,

The Oakdale Irrigation District Board pledges to be respectful, truthful,
knowledgeable, productive and unified in conducting the people’s business. The
Board believes in conducting its business using respectful and civil dialogue and
would request that the public conduct itself in a similar fashion in their
presentations. Disrespectful and threatening behavior will not be tolerated.

It is not required, but speakers may provide their name and address.

Public Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker.




CONSENT CALENDAR -ITEMS 2-8

Matters listed under the consent calendar are considered routine and will be acted upon
under one motion. There will be no discussion of these items unless a request is made to
the Board President by a Director or member of the public. Those items will be considered
at the end of the consent items.

Only properly noticed agenda matters shall be permitted for discussion.

2.

Approve the Board of Directors’ Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 7,
2020 and Resolution Nos. 2020-10, 2020-11, 2020-12, 2020-13, 2020-14,
2020-15, 2020-16 and 2020-17

Approve Oakdale Irrigation District’s Statement of Obligations
Approve OID Improvement District’s Statement of Obligations

Approve the Monthly Treasurer’s Report and Financial Statements for the
Two Months Ending February 29, 2020

Approve Monthly Treasurer’s Report and Financial Statements for the
Three Months Ending March 31, 2020

Approve Adoption of the Resolution for the Designation of Oakdale
Irrigation District’s Agent for Filing of Applications with the California
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) for the Purpose of
Obtaining Federal Financial Assistance Related to the COVID-19 Pandemic
and any Future Disasters for up to Three Years

Approve Oakdale Irrigation District’'s Commitment to Funding for the 60%
Design Level for the Canyon Tunnel Project

ACTION CALENDAR - ITEMS 9 -14

Review and take possible action to Adopt the Resolution Accepting the
Memorandum of Understanding with the Operating Engineers Local Union
No. 3 Bargaining Group Effective January 1, 2020

10. Review and take possible action to Adopt the Resolution Accepting the

Memorandum of Understanding with the Non-Exempt Confidential
Bargaining Group Effective January 1, 2020

11.Review and take possible action to Adopt the Resolution Accepting the
Memorandum of Understanding with the Exempt Supervisory Bargaining
Group Effective January 1, 2020




12. Review and take possible action to Adopt the Resolution Accepting the
Memorandum of Understanding with the Exempt Managerial Bargaining
Group Effective January 1, 2020

13. Review and take possible action to Adopt the Resolution Approving the
Employee 2020 Official Salary and Wage Schedule

14. Review and take possible action to Request Each Director to Execute a Ralph
M. Brown Act Compliance Agreement

DISCUSSION - ITEM 15

15. Discussion on the Proposed Changes to the Oakdale Irrigation District
Surface Water Shortage Policy

COMMUNICATIONS - ITEM 16

16. Oral Reports and Comments
A. General Manager’s Report on Status of OID Activities
B. Committee Reports

Ad Hoc Architectural Committee Meeting, Aprii 8, 2020

Finance Committee Meeting, April 8, 2020 (Closed Session)
Government Code §54956.8 Conference with Real Property Negotiator
Negotiating Parties: OID, Federal and State Contractors, SEWD,
City of Brisbane, City of San Francisco, Mi-Wuks,
Local OOD Ag Users

Property: Water
Agency Negotiators: General Manager and Water Counsel
Under Negotiations: Price and Terms

C. Directors’ Comments/Suggestions

CLOSED SESSION - ITEM 17

17.Closed Session to discuss the following:

A. Government Code §54956.8 — Conference with Property Negotiator

Negotiating Parties: OID, SSJID, SEWD
Property: Water
Agency Negotiators: General Manager and Water Counsel

Under Negotiations: Price and Terms




B. Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation
Government Code §54956.9(d)(4)
Determination of Whether to Initiate Litigation
One (1) Case

OTHER ACTION - ITEM 18

18. Adjournment:

A. The next Regular Board Meeting of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of
Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, May 19, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. via
teleconference. Details can be obtained by calling (209) 847-0341.

B. The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale
Irrigation Districts serving the Tri-Dam Projects and Tri-Dam Authority and
other joint business matters is scheduled for Thursday, May 21, 2020 at 9:00
a.m. via teleconference and hosted by OID. Details can be obtained by calling
(209) 847-0341.

Writings distributed to Board Members in connection with the open session items on this agenda are available
for public inspection in the office of the Board Secretary. Any person who has a question concerning any of the
agenda items may call the Administrative Assistant at (209) 840-5507.

ADA Compliance Statement: In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special assistance
to participate in this meeting, please contact the Administrative Assistant at (209) 840-5507. Notification 48 hours
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting.




PUBLIC COMMENTS

No Information Included

BOARD MEETING OF
MAY 5, 2020




AGENDA ITEMS
CONSENT CALENDAR

BOARD MEETING OF
MAY 5, 2020




BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Iltem Number: 2
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF APRIL 7,
2020 AND RESOLUTION NOS. 2020-10, 2020-11, 2020-12, 2020-13, 2020-14, 2020-
15, 2020-16 AND 2020-17

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Board of Directors’ Minutes of the Meeting of April 7, 2020
and Resolution Nos. 2020-10, 2020-11, 2020-12, 2020-13, 2020-14,
2020-15, 2020-16 and 2020-17

ATTACHMENTS:

Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting of April 7, 2020
Draft Resolution No. 2020-10

Draft Resolution No. 2020-11

Draft Resolution No. 2020-12

Draft Resolution No. 2020-13

Draft Resolution No. 2020-14

Draft Resolution No. 2020-15

Draft Resolution No. 2020-16

Draft Resolution No. 2020-17

VVVVVVVVYY

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




MINUTES

Oakdale, California
April 7, 2020

The Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District invited all to recite the Pledge of
Allegiance and then met in Regular Session at the hour of 9:00 a.m. Upon roll call, there were
present:

Directors: Tom Orvis, President
Gail Altieri, Vice President
Herman Doornenbal
Linda Santos
Brad DeBoer

Staff Present: Steve Knell, General Manager/Secretary
Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer

Also Present: Fred A. Silva, General Counsel

ADDITION OR DELETION OF
AGENDA ITEMS

There were no addition or deletion of agenda items.

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE

There were no items taken out of sequence.
At the hour of 9:05 a.m. the Board welcomed public comment.

PUBLIC COMMENTwa
ITEM NO. 1

Robert Frobose stated that people are having a hard time calling in. Director Orvis stated
that the prefix is 669 and not 699 which was corrected on the web site prior to the meeting.
Director Orvis stated that he would re-open Public Comment prior to going into Closed
Session.

Dane Wadle, Senior Public Affairs Field Coordinator with California Special Districts
Association. Mr. Wadle gave an update on some of the legislative issues and professional
development events.

There being no further Public Comment; Public Comment closed at 9:18 a.m. and the Board
Meeting continued.



OI1D Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 2

HEARING CALENDAR
ITEM NO. 2

ITEM NO. 2
PUBLIC HEARING AND CERTIFICATION OF THE IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NO. 8 (ID 8) MEMBERSHIP VOTE TO APPROVE OR REJECT
THE ISSUANCE OF A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TO PAY FOR
REPAIRS OF THE EXISTING IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 8 PIPELINE

Water Operations Manager Eric Thorburn gave the Board of Directors some background
information on Improvement District No. 8.

At the hour of 9:20 a.m. Director Orvis opened the hearing up to the public. There were no
members of the public wishing to make a public comment and the Public Hearing was closed
at the hour of 9:21 a.m.

Water Operations Manager Eric Thorburn stated that the Improvement District No. 8
Membership voted to approve the issuance of a special assessment to pay for the repairs of
the existing Improvement District No. 8 pipeline by the following vote:

Ayes: 1
Unreturned Ballots: 10 (A non-vote is considered a vote of approval.)
Noes: 0

Membership Vote passed by 11-0.

A motion was made by Director Santos and seconded by Director Altieri to certify the vote of
Improvement District No. 8 Membership to approve the issuance of a special assessment to
pay for repairs of the existing Improvement District No. 8 Pipeline and was voted by the
following roll cali vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

Director Altieri requested that Item No. 7 be pulled from the Consent Calendar.



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 3

CONSENT CALENDAR
ITEM NOS. 3, 4,5, 6, 8,9,10, 11, 12,13

ITEM NO. 3
APPROVE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MINUTES OF THE
MEETING OF MARCH 3, 2020 AND RESOLUTION
NOS. 2020-03, 2020-04, 2020-05, 2020-06, 2020-07, 2020-08 and 2020-09

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve the Board of Directors’ Minutes of the Meeting of March
3, 2020 and Resolution Nos. 2020-03, 2020-04, 2020-05, 2020-06, 2020-07, 2020-08 and
2020-09, by a roll call vote of 5-0.

ITEM NO. 4
APPROVE THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION
DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve the Oakdale Irrigation District's Statement of Obligations
by a roll call vote of 5-0.

ITEM NO. 5
APPROVE 0ID IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve OID Improvement District's Statement of Obligations by
a roll call vote of 5-0.

ITEM NO. 6
APPROVE THE MONTHLY TREASURER’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE ONE MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31, 2020

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve the Treasurer's Report and Financial Statements for the
one month ending January 31, 2020 by a roll call vote of 5-0.

ITEM NO. 8
APPROVE REVISION TO THE COLLECTION AND TERMINATION
POLICY FOR DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS WITHIN THE RURAL
WATER SYSTEM IN COMPLIANCE WITH SENATE BILL 998 (SB998)

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve the adoption of the Resolution Approving the Revision to
the Collection and termination Policy for Delinquent Accounts within the Rural Water System
in Compliance with Senate Bill 998 (SB998) by a roll call vote of 5-0.



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 4

ITEM NO. 9
APPROVE REVISION TO PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
SECTION 5.505 COMMERCIAL DRIVERS’ SUBSTANCE TESTING PROGRAM

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve the adoption of the Resolution Approving the Revision to
the Personnel Policies and Procedures, Section 5.505 Commercial Drivers’ Substance
Testing Program by a roll call vote of 5-0.

ITEM NO. 10
APPROVE WORK RELEASE NO. 010 TO PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT 2011-PSA-003 WITH BUMGARDNER
BIOLOGICAL CONSULTING FOR ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve Work Release No. 010 to Professional Services
Agreement 2011-PSA-003 with Bumgardner Biological Consulting for on-call professional
services by a roll call vote of 5-0.

ITEM NO. 11
APPROVE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE
SEGMENT FOUR — SOUTH MAIN CANAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve the Notice of Completion for the Segment Four — South
Main Canal Improvement Project by a roll call vote of 5-0.

ITEM NO. 12
APPROVE REQUEST FOR RECONNECTION OF A SUBSTANDARD PARCEL
SERVED BY THE CHAPPELL PIPELINE (APN: 229-220-21 — JOE L. DUTRA, JR.)

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve the request for reconnection of a substandard parcel
served by the Chappell Pipeline (APN: 229-220-21 — Joe L. Dutra, Jr.) by a roll call vote of
5-0.

ITEM NO. 13
APPROVE QUITCLAIM OF AN EXISTING CRUM PIPELINE
EASEMENT IN EXCHANGE FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A
NEW EASEMENT (APN: 006-008-063 — JOSE AND FLORINA VIGIL)

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer and was
unanimously supported to approve Quitclaim of an existing Crum Pipeline Easement in
exchange for acceptance of a new easement (APN: 006-008-063 — Jose and Florina Vigil)
by a roll call vote of 5-0.



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 5

The above consent items were passed by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

PULLED CONSENT CALENDAR
ITEM NO. 7

ITEM NO. 7
APPROVE REJECTION OF CLAM SUBMITTED BY BILL DOSHAS

A motion was made by Director Altieri and seconded by Director Doornenbal to approve
rejection of claim submitted by Bill Doshas and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

ACTION CALENDAR
ITEM NOS. 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21

ITEM NO. 14
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION
FOR THE DECLARATION OF AN EMERGENCY OF THE OAKDALE
IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND AFFIRMING THE MEETING
PROTOCOLS THAT WILL BE IN PLACE DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

A motion as made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Doornenbal to adopt the
Resolution for the Declaration of an Emergency of the Oakdale Irrigation District and
Affirming the Meeting Protocols that will be in Place During the COVID-19 Pandemic and
was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 6

ITEM NO. 15
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION
FOR THE DECLARATION OF AN EMERGENCY OF THE OAKDALE
IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND TO TEMPORARILY AUTHORIZE INCREASED
AUTHORITY OF THE GENERAL MANAGER DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Doornenbal to adopt the
Resolution for the Declaration of an Emergency of the Oakdale. Irrigation District and to
Temporarily Authorize Increased Authority of the General Manager During the COVID-19
Pandemic and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

ITEM NO. 16
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION
APPROVING THE 2020 AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING TERMS AND
CONDITIONS FOR IRRIGATION OF LANDS OUTSIDE OAKDALE
IRRIGATION DISTRICT BOUNDARIES FOR THE WATER YEAR 2020 AND
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENTS

A motion was made by Director Santos and seconded by Director Altieri to adopt the
Resolution Approving the 2020 Agreement Establishing Terms and Conditions for Irrigation
of Lands Outside Oakdale Irrigation District Boundaries for the Water Year 2020 and
Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Agreement once Paragraph 16 has been
removed from the Agreement and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal No
Director Orvis No
Director DeBoer No

The motion failed by a 2-3 vote.

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Santos to adopt the
Resolution Approving the 2020 Agreement Establishing Terms and Conditions for Irrigation
of Lands Outside Oakdale Irrigation District Boundaries for the Water Year 2020 and
Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Agreements and was voted by the following
roll call vote:



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020

Page 7
Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

ITEM NO. 17
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION
FINDING THE 2020 AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING TERMS AND
CONDITIONS FOR IRRIGATION OF LANDS OUTSIDE THE OAKDALE
IRRIGATION DISTRICT BOUNDARY CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Doornenbal to adopt the
Resolution Finding the 2020 Agreement Establishing Terms and Conditions for Irrigation of
Lands Outside the Oakdale Irrigation District Boundary Categorically Exempt Under the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

ITEM NO. 18
REVIEW.AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION OR PROVIDE
DIRECTION TO SET THE WATER RATE AND APPROVE
DRAFT TERMS .OF A 5-YEAR WATER SALES PROGRAM

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Doornenbal to Set the
Water Rate at $150 per acre foot and approve the Draft Terms of a 5-Year Out-of-District
Water Sales Program and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 8

ITEM NO. 19
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE THE
GENERAL MANAGER TO APPROVE WORK RELEASE(S) TO
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 2009-PSA-003 WITH
CONDOR EARTH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND TO AMEND THE 2020 BUDGET

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal and seconded by Director Santos to authorize
the General Manager to approve Work Release(s) to Professional Services Agreement 2009-
PSA-003 with Condor Earth Technologies, Inc. and to Amend the 2020 Budget up to
$155,000 and was voted by the following rol! call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

At the hour of 11:00 a.m. the Board took a.short recess. At the hour of 11:15 a.m. the Board
Meeting was reconvened.

ITEM NO. 20
REVIEW.AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO HOLD THE
REGULARLY SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING ON
MAY 5,2020 AND CANCEL THE MAY 19, 2020 BOARD MEETING
DUE TO THE RE-SCHEDULING OF THE ACWA / JPIA SPRING CONFERENCE

A motion was made by Director Altieri and seconded by Director DeBoer to hold both
meetings in May on May 5 and May 19, 2020, and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

COMMUNICATIONS
ITEM NO. 22

A. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT

General Manager Steve Knell discussed the items contained in the Board Packet under
General Manager’s Report.



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 9

B. COMMITTEE REPORTS

Ad Hoc Architectural Committee, March 18, 2020

Director DeBoer stated that he and Director Orvis met with Support Services Manager Jason
Jones and reviewed the plans. Director DeBoer stated that he felt that they made some good
progress.

C. DIRECTORS COMMENTS

Director Altieri

Director Altieri stated that she reported at the March 3, 2020 Board Meeting that her rain
gauge at her home showed 8 5/100’s of an inch. However, with the recent storms the total
on her rain gauge at her house was 15 7/10’s of an inch.

Director Santos
Director Santos stated that since we are going into Closed Session she wanted to state that
she believes it is illegal for the Board to be discussing her censure in Closed Session.

Director Doornenbal
Director Doornenbal had no comments.

Director DeBoer

Director DeBoer thanked the staff on their hard work on the 5-year water program. Director
DeBoer stated that he is glad that the Board voted 5-0 to get it approved. Director DeBoer
stated that while one speaker said the agreement may be an imperfect agreement he thinks
that the constituents can see that the District is trying to utilize their water right to the best
their ability.

Director Orvis
Director Orvis had no comments.

At the hour of 11:30 a.m. Director Orvis re-opened Public Comment and opened Public
Comment as it pertained to the Closed Session items.

Robert Frobose stated that he assumed that the Board was going to discuss the censure of
Director Santos in Closed Session. Mr. Frobose discussed the lawsuit that was filed against
Directors Santos and Altieri [case was filed back in 2015]. Mr. Frobose also stated that the
Board was violating the Brown Act because the Board was censuring Director Santos
incorrectly.

At the hour of 11:38 a.m. Public Comment Closed and the Board took a short recess.

At the hour of 11:53 a.m. the Board reconvened into Closed Session.



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020

Page 10
CLOSED SESSION
ITEM NO. 23

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation
Government Code §54956.9(d)(4)
Determination of Whether to Initiate Litigation
Two (2) Cases

B. Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation
Government Code §54956.9(d)(4)
Initiation of Litigation
One (1) Case

C. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation

Government Code §54956(d)(1)

California Sportfishing Protection Alliance v. Eastern San Joaquin
Groundwater Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan
Stanislaus County Superior Court Case No:; CV-20-001720

At the hour of 2:28 p.m. the Board reconvened to Open Session.
Director Orvis stated that coming out of Closed Session there was no reportable action.

General Counsel Fred A: Silva stated that during the break he reviewed the Governor’s
Executive Order N29-20 and cited from Section 3. Notice Requirements (ii). General
Counsel Fred A. Silva stated that based on this section it was his opinion that this Board,
when it realized that there had been a typo in the call-in number, took the most rapid means
of communication to correct the error by posting the correct number on its web site.
Additionally, when constituents called the main office they were given the correct number to
call. He stated that he believed that the District satisfied the Governor’s Order of N29-20.

ACTION CALENDAR
ITEM NO. 21

ITEM NO. 2
REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION TO
APPROVE ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT TO CENSURE DIRECTOR LINDA SANTOS

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Doornenbal to approve
the adoption of the Resolution by the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District to
Censure Director Linda Santos and was voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri No
Director Santos No
Director Doornenbal Yes

Director Orvis Yes



OID Board Minutes April 7, 2020
Page 11

Director DeBoer Yes
The motion passed by a 3-2 vote.

OTHER ACTION
ITEM NO. 24

At the hour of 2:39 p.m. the meeting was adjourned. The next Regular Board Meeting of the
Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, May 5, 2020 at
9:00 a.m. in the board room at 1205 East F Street, Oakdale, CA.

The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale Irrigation Districts
serving the Tri-Dam Projects and Tri-Dam Authority and other joint business matters is
scheduled for Thursday, April 16, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. in the board reom of the South San
Joaquin Irrigation District, 11011 East Highway 120, Manteca, CA.

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Attest:

Steve Knell, P.E., Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-10

RESOLUTION ADOPTING
REVISION TO COLLECTION AND TERMINATION POLICY FOR
DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS WITHIN THE RURAL WATER SYSTEM
IN COMPLIANCE WITH SENATE BILL 998 (SB998)
REPLACING RESOLUTION 2020-04

WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District is a public agency and an irrigation district
formed and existing in accordance with the provisions of Division 11 of the Water Code
of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, as a community water system that supplies water to more than 200 service
connections, effective April 1, 2020, by Chapter 5 of the Health and Safety Code, which
was added in 2018 by Senate Bill 998 (SB998), and known as the Water Shutoff
Protection Act, the District is required to establish rules and procedures for community
water systems to follow before the shut off of residential water service by the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved the Collection and Termination Policy for
Delinquent Accounts within the Rural Water System in Compliance with Senate Bill 998
(SB998) on March 3, 2020.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed and considered the revision to the
Collection and Termination Policy for Delinquent Accounts within the Rural Water System
in Compliance with Senate Bill 998 (SB998).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oakdale lIrrigation District Board of
Directors hereby adopts the revision to the Collection and Termination Policy for Delinquent
Accounts within the Rural Water System in Compliance with Senate Bill 998 (SB998). This
resolution will remain in effect until revocation by the Board of Directors of the Oakdale
Irrigation District.

BE IT RESOLVED, that this resolution supersedes any other previous resolutions relating
to the above subject matter.

Upon Motion of Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer, and duly submitted
to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was unanimously adopted
this 7t day of April, 2020.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-11

RESOLUTION ADOPTING
REVISION TO PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
CHAPTER 500, SECTION 5.505 COMMERCIAL DRIVERS’
SUBSTANCE TESTING PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Personnel Policies and Procedures were adopted by the Board of
Directors on August 19, 2015; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the direction of Congress to the Secretary of Transportation, the
Federal Motor Carrier Administration established the Commercial Driver’s License Drug
and Alcohol Clearinghouse which requires yearly queries for each commercial driver as
well as pre-employment queries for potential hires; and

WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District was required to revise Section 5.505
Commercial Drivers’ Substance Testing Program to incorporate this requirement.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of
Directors hereby adopts the revision to Chapter 500, Section 5.505 Commercial Drivers’
Substance Testing Program to the Personnel Policies and Procedures. This resolution
will remain in effect until revocation by the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation
District.

Upon Motion of Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer, and duly submitted
to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 7th day of
April, 2020

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-12

DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY AND RESOLUTION OF
THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT TO AFFIRM THE MEETING
PROTOCOLS THAT WILL BE IN-PLACE DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, California Governor Gavin Newsom declared a State\of
Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat of a novel coronavirus disease now
known as COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Homeland Security (https://www.cisa.gov/critical-
infrastructure-sectors, last updated March 24, 2020) has identified 16 critical infrastructure
sectors whose assets, systems, and networks are considered so vital to the United States that
their incapacitation or destruction would have a debilitating effect on security, economic security,
public health or safety, or any combination thereof; and

WHEREAS, among the aforementioned 16 critical infrastructure sectors are the Food and
Agriculture Sector and the Water and Wastewater Systems Sector; and

WHEREAS, Oakdale Irrigation District (District), as a raw water supplier to 82,000 acres and a
domestic water provider to over 600 residences, provides essential services within both the Food
and Agriculture Sector and the Water and Wastewater Systems Sector, and is thus a critical
infrastructure operator under the law; and

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-33-20 directing
all California residents to stay at their place of residence “except as needed to maintain continuity
of operations of the federal critical infrastructure sectors;” and

WHEREAS, in light of the District's status as the sole provider of certain federal critical
infrastructure services within its service area, and the Governor's Executive Order N-33-20
directing that continuity of operations of federal critical infrastructure sectors be maintained, the
District Board must meet and conduct business necessary and appropriate to ensure such
continuity and provide essential services; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20,
temporarily suspending and waiving certain requirements of the Brown Act and authorizing local
legislative bodies such as irrigation districts to use sound discretion to make reasonable efforts
to adhere as closely as reasonably possible to the provisions of the Brown Act regulating the
conduct of public meetings; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to minimize health and safety risks to its customers, its
employees, and members of its Board while also continuing to conduct business and provide
essential services;



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Oakdale
Irrigation District, as follows:

1.

The Board of Directors declares a State of Emergency to exist in its jurisdictional service
area as a result of the threat of COVID-19.

The Board adopts and affirms the following meeting protocols to be followed so long as
the Governor's State of Emergency order remains in effect:

a) Meeting agendas will continue to be posted in compliance with current Brown Act
requirements regarding content and timing of postings.

b)

d)

Meetings of the Board of Directors will continue to be held at the District office at 1205
East F Street in Oakdale. Directors attending Board meetings in person will be
encouraged to maintain safe distances and adhere to state-recommended safety
protocols at all times while on District office premises.

Meetings of the Board of Directors will be closed to the public except as follows.

1.

Members of the public may attend the open-session portion of meetings via
teleconference. A dial-in number will be listed on the agenda, and will also be
provided to any member of the public upon request.

. Members of the public may also submit public comments by email at

Ifp@oakdaleirrigation.com or via the oID website at
https://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/contact-us. All comments should be submitted
no later than 4:30 p.m. on the Monday prior to the Board meeting. Any such email
should indicate the number of the agenda item to which each comment pertains or
specify that it is intended for the general public comments portion of the meeting.
Written comments will be distributed to the Board members and kept on file.

Members of the public who, because of a disability, require reasonable
modification or accommodation in order to attend or participate in a meeting via
teleconference should request such modification or accommodation by contacting
the Executive Assistant to the District General Manager at (209) 847-0341 as early
as possible before the meeting. The District will make every effort to satisfy such
requests consistent with the mandates of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Directors may elect to attend and participate in Board meetings via teleconference.
However, the Board’s duty to ensure the integrity and confidentiality of the closed-
session portion of meetings will remain paramount and will not be waived.

l.

Any Director may attend and participate in the open-session portion of a Board
meeting via teleconference by dialing in from home or other location that is
reasonably free of background noise and distractions. Directors may not attend or




participate in the closed-session portion of a Board meeting via teleconference
from any location other than the secure site described in paragraph 2(d)(2), below.

Any Director who is in a high-risk category for severe iliness from COVID-19 may
attend and participate in the closed-session portion of a Board meeting via
teleconference from a secure, monitored site located at 703 West F Street in
Oakdale (and may also attend and participate in the open-session portion of that
meeting from the same location). Directors who intend to use the secure site are
encouraged to inform the District General Manager of that intent as far in advance
of the meeting as possible and no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting so that
the General Manager may take steps to ensure the safety of all attendees.
Directors attending Board meetings via teleconference at this secure site will
adhere to state-recommended safety protocols at all times while on the premises.

e) All voting by the Board of Directors will be by roll-call vote.

f) Questions about any of the above-listed accommodations may be directed to the
Executive Assistant to the District General Manager at (209) 847-0341.

Upon motion of Director DeBoer, seconded by Director Doornenbal and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 7" day of April 2020,
by the following roll-call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes

Director DeBoer

Motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Tom Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell

General Manager/Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-13

DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY AND RESOLUTION OF
THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT TO TEMPORARILY AUTHORIZE
INCREASED AUTHORITY OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor of the State of California declared a State
of Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat of Novel Coronavirus 2019
(“COVID-19"); and

WHEREAS, “‘the United States Department of Homeland Security has identified 16
Critical Infrastructure Sectors whose asset and networks are considered so vital to the
United States that their incapacitation or destruction would have a debilitating effect on
the economic security, public health or safety or combination thereof,” and

WHEREAS, Oakdale Irrigation District (“District”), is a raw water supplier to 82,000 acres
in the Agricultural Sector and a domestic water provider to over 600 residences in the
Water and Wastewater Sector and as such is considered an operator of critical
infrastructure under the law; and

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom in his Executive Order 33-20 states, “I order that
Californians working in these 16 critical infrastructure sectors may continue their work
because of the importance of these sectors to Californians’ health and well-being; and

WHEREAS, on March 31, 2020 Stanislaus County Office of Emergency Services issued
its warning that 35 cases of COVID-19 infections had been confirmed; and

WHEREAS, the health, safety and welfare of Oakdale Irrigation District ("District”)
residents, businesses, visitors and staff are of utmost importance to the Board of Directors
(“Board”), and additional future measures may be needed to protect the community; and

WHEREAS, preparing for, responding to, mitigating, and recovering from the spread of
COVID-19 may require the District to divert resources from normal day-to-day operations
and it may impose extraordinary requirements on and expenses to the District; and

WHEREAS, the District General Manager (“General Manager”) currently has spending
authority up to $5,000, without prior Board approval in addition to limited authority related
to personnel matters; and

WHEREAS, in the absence of Board action, strict compliance with certain District rules
and policies could prevent, hinder, or delay appropriate actions to prevent and mitigate
the effects of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, after consideration of all the facts reasonably available for review at the
present time, the Board of Directors finds it in the best interest of the District to authorize
the increase in General Manager spending authority to $100,000, and up to $150,000
upon authorization from the President of the Board, and approves all acts necessary and
appropriate to ensure the operation of the District.



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Oakdale Irrigation District, as follows:

1. The Board of Directors declares a State of Emergency to exist in its jurisdictional
service area as a result of the threat of Novel Coronavirus 2019 (“COVID-19%).

2. The Board of Directors authorizes an increase in the General Manager's
spending authority to $100,000, and up to $150,000 upon authorization from the
President of the Board.

3. The General Manager may take all actions necessary, proper, and appropriate
in his/her reasonable discretion to ensure the operation of the District, the safety
of employees, and the safety of the public, including, but not limited to
reasonable deviations from Board adopted Ordinances, Resolutions, Policies,
and Procedures.

4. The authority vested in the General Manager by this resolution will terminate
upon a declaration by the Governor and the County Health Officer that the State
of Emergency has ended.

Upon motion of Director DeBoer, seconded by Director Doornenbal and duly submitted
to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 7th day of
April 2020, by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

Motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

Tom Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell
General Manager/Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-14

APPROVING THE 2020 AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING TERMS AND
CONDITIONS FOR IRRIGATION OF LANDS OUTSIDE
OF OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT BOUNDARIES FOR
THE WATER YEAR 2020 AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENTS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District made a determination on the
availability of “surplus water” for surface irrigation use outside Oakdale Irrigation District’'s service
area for 2020; and

WHEREAS, staff presented an in-district water budget for 2020 to the Board of Directors for use by
the Board of Directors in determining the availability of “surplus water.” The in-district water budget
forecasts 235,000 af of in-district water use in 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District declared “surplus water” for any
OID allocation received above 235,000 af for use to out-of-district purposes as may be approved by
the Board of Directors.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District approved providing out-of-district
water to local agricultural water users in 2020; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District hereby approves the
2020 Agreement Establishing Terms and Conditions for Irrigation of Lands Outside Oakdale Irrigation
District for the Water Year 2020, set the 2020 water rate for out-of-district lands at $125.00/af, and
authorize the General Manager to execute the agreements.

A motion was made by Director Santos and seconded by Director Altieri to adopt the Resolution
Approving the 2020 Agreement Establishing Terms and Conditions for Irrigation of Lands Outside
Oakdale Irrigation District Boundaries for the Water Year 2020 and Authorize the General Manager
to Execute the Agreement once Paragraph 16 has been removed from the Agreement and was
voted by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal No
Director Orvis No
Director DeBoer No

The motion failed by a 2-3 vote.

A motion was made by Director DeBoer and seconded by Director Santos to adopt the Resolution
Approving the 2020 Agreement Establishing Terms and Conditions for Irrigation of Lands Outside
Oakdale Irrigation District Boundaries for the Water Year 2020 and Authorize the General Manager
to Execute the Agreements and was voted by the following roll call vote:



Director Altieri
Director Santos
Director Doornenbal
Director Orvis
Director DeBoer

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-15

FINDING THE 2020 AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING TERMS AND
CONDITIONS FOR IRRIGATION OF LANDS OUTSIDE THE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM CEQA

WHEREAS, The Oakdale Irrigation District (District) is a local public agency and political
subdivision of the State of California acting as its own Lead Agency under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and

WHEREAS, the District has approved the 2020 Agreement Establishing Terms and
Conditions for Irrigation of Lands Outside the OID Boundary (Project) located within
northeastern Stanislaus County, and

WHEREAS, the Project proposes to deliver surplus surface irrigation water to lands under
existing irrigated agricultural production for the benefit the supplemental surface water
will have on the aquifer and the benefit of additional OID revenue, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that the proposed Project is
Categorically Exempt from the requirements of CEQA pursuant to Section 15301, Existing
Facilities, of the CEQA Guidelines. The Project utilizes existing public facilities for the
delivery of irrigation water to lands under existing agricultural production and there wilt be
no change in operation or expansion of existing diversion and pumping facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Oakdale
Irrigation District hereby adopts the Resolution finding the 2020 Agreement Establishing
Terms and Conditions for Irrigation of Lands Outside the OID Boundary Project
Categorically Exempt from CEQA.

Upon motion of Director DeBoer, seconded by Director Doornenbal and duly submitted
to the Board for its consideration the above titled resolution was adopted this 7" day of
April 2020 by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-16

RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
REGARDING THE CENSURE OF DIRECTOR LINDA SANTOS

WHEREAS, The Ralph M. Brown Act public meeting law prohibits a person from
disclosing confidential information which has been acquired by being present in a Closed
Session to a person not entitled to receive it, unless the legislative body authorizes
disclosure of that confidential information (Cal. Govt. Code Section 54963(a)). Improper
disclosure of Closed Session confidential information may subject a Director to criminal
prosecution for violation of Cal. Govt. Code Section 1222, willful omission by a public
officer to perform a duty under law; and

WHEREAS, All members of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors, including
Director Linda Santos, have received training regarding their obligations under The Ralph
M. Brown Act and are fully aware of their obligation in particular to maintain the
confidentiality of Closed Session confidential information; and

WHEREAS, All members of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors, in such
capacity, along with the Directors of South San Joaquin Irrigation District, sit on the joint
Board of Directors of the Tri-Dam Project; and

WHEREAS, In late 2019 it came to the Tri-Dam Project Board of Directors’ attention that
Director Linda Santos may have improperly disclosed confidential Tri-Dam Project Board
Closed Session information to third parties not entitled to that information, without the
Board’s approval and in violation of the Brown Act; and

WHEREAS, The Tri-Dam Project Board of Directors promptly authorized a confidential,
formal investigation be conducted by outside Special Counsel to determine the facts; and

WHEREAS, The investigation concluded that Director Linda Santos improperly disclosed
confidential Oakdale Irrigation District Board Closed Session information as well as Tri-
Dam Project Board Closed Session information to third parties not entitled to that
information. Director Santos’s improper disclosures related to multiple Closed Sessions
over the past two years, which is indicative of more than an inadvertent or unintentional
disclosure of Closed Session information by Director Santos; and

WHEREAS, The investigation further concluded that Director Linda Santos also
improperly disclosed Tri-Dam Project confidential, attorney-client privileged information
to third parties not entitled to that information; and

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors believes that Director Santos’s improper disclosure
of confidential information discussed in Closed Session has and, if left unchecked, will
continue to have a chilling effect on the Board's ability to discuss sensitive matters in

1



Closed Session. This chilling effect limits the free flow of ideas and discussion of different
viewpoints on important and sensitive District issues in Closed Session, which in turn
harms the District's constituents and the general public; and

WHEREAS, The District has had to incur substantial additional expense and cost, in
terms of legal fees, Board time, and staff resources as a direct resuit of Director Santos’s
actions. The Board and staff have had to spend significant amounts of time to address
Director Santos’s breach of confidential information, which in turn has interfered with the
Board and staff's ability to focus on the main business of the District and issues of concern
to its constituents; and

WHEREAS, On March 26, 2020 the Board of Directors of Tri-Dam Project, in response
to Director Santos’s improper disclosures, publicly censured Director Santos. On March
26, 2020, the Board of Directors of Tri-Dam Power Authority, in response to Director
Santos’s improper disclosures, removed Director Santos as Vice-President of the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors of Oakdale Irrigation District believes it to be in the
best interests of the District to take all actions necessary and appropriate to prevent the
improper disclosure of confidential Closed Session information to third parties by Director
Santos in the future.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Board of Directors of Oakdale Irrigation District hereby publicly censures
Director Linda Santos for her improper disclosure of confidential Closed
Session information in violation of The Ralph M. Brown Act. Director Santos’s
actions were detrimental to the interests of the District. The Board of Directors
does not approve of nor condone Director Santos’s improper disclosure of
confidential Closed Session information and her violation of The Brown Act.

2. The Board of Directors hereby removes Director Santos from the
Water/Engineering Committee and the Personnel Committee. The Board of
Directors hereby removes Director Santos from serving as an Alternate on the
Finance Committee and the Planning and Public Relations Committee.

3. The Board of Directors hereby directs Director Linda Santos not to speak with
Oakdale Irrigation District employees regarding District business outside of
Oakdale lIrrigation District Board Meetings, with the exception of District
General Manager Steve Knell.

4. The Board of Directors hereby directs Director Santos to attend one-on-one
training with a trainer appointed by the District. The training shall include
Director Santos’s obligations under The Brown Act, including in particular her
obligation to maintain the confidentiality of Closed Session discussions. Such
training may be coordinated with any training required of Director Santos by the

2



Tri-Dam Project Board of Directors. The training shall be completed no later
than three (3) months from the date of this Resolution.

5. The Board of Directors urges Director Santos to meet her obligations under
The Brown Act, including in particular her obligation to maintain the
confidentiality of Closed Session discussions. The Board of Directors requests
that Director Santos acknowledge her legal obligations and commit to comply
with them by executing that certain “Compliance Agreement” in the form
attached as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution. In the alternative, if Director Santos
is unable or unwiling to commit to comply with her legal obligations as a
Director of the Oakdale Irrigation District, the Board of Directors urges Director
Santos to resign from the Oakdale Irrigation District Board, the Tri-Dam Project
Board, and the Tri-Dam Authority Board.

Upon motion of Director DeBoer, seconded by Director Doornenbal and duly submitted
to the Board for its consideration, the above-titied Resolution was adopted this 7th day of
April, 2020, by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri No
Director Santos No
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

The motion passed by a 3-2 vote.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Tom Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell,
General Manager/Secretary



EXHIBIT “A”
FORM OF COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

[, Linda Santos, agree to the following:

Date:

1.

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides in part as follows:

A person may not disclose confidential information that has
been acquired by being present in a closed session .. .to a
person not entitled to receive it, unless the legislative body

authorizes disclosure of that confidential information.

Cal. Govt Code Section 54963(a).

| understand that Section 54963(a) applies to all Closed Session meetings
of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors. | understand that
Section 54963(a) applies to me in my official capacity as a Director of the
Oakdale Irrigation District. | understand my obligations under Section
54963(a) and agree to comply with them.

| understand that | have a fiduciary obligation as a Director of the Oakdale
Irrigation District to maintain the confidentiality of attorney-client privileged
information. | agree to comply with this obligation.

Linda Santos
Director

RESIGNATION

, Linda Santos, hereby resign my position as a Director of Oakdale Irrigation District,
Tri-Dam Project, and Tri-Dam Authority, with immediate effect.

Date:

Linda Santos



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-17

AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM DEED TO
JOSE VIGIL AND FLORINA MARIA VIGIL

APN: 006-008-063

WHEREAS, a portion of the Oakdale Irrigation District facility known as the Crum Pipeline,
located within the northeast quarter of Section 7, Township 2 South, Range 10 East, Mount
Diablo Base and Meridian in the unincorporated area of Stanislaus County, crosses the
above-noted parcel; and

WHEREAS, to accommodate a proposed development the landowner has granted the
Oakdale Irrigation District a new 20 foot easement, recorded as Inst. No. 2020-11147 per
Stanislaus County Records; and

WHEREAS, the new 20 foot easement is sufficient for the Oakdale Irrigation District’'s
access, and OID staff has determined quitclaim of the existing 20 foot easement will not be
detrimental to OID operations.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that any interest in the easement granted to the
Oakdale Irrigation District and recorded July 29, 1985 in Volume 37 of Parcel Maps at Page
3 in the Office of the Stanislaus County Recorder be quitclaimed to the titled owner of
said property, and that said Quitclaim in its entirety is incorporated herein by reference to
this Resolution.

Upon Motion of Director Doornenbal, seconded by Director DeBoer, and duly submitted
to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 7t day of
April, 2020 by the following roll call vote:

Director Altieri Yes
Director Santos Yes
Director Doornenbal Yes
Director Orvis Yes
Director DeBoer Yes

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Item Number: 3
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Oakdale Irrigation District's Statement of Obligations

TOP TEN OBLIGATIONS

Vendor Purpose Amount
IRS 941 Witholding, FICA, Medicare $108,086.35
Tri-West Tractor Inc. Excavator, Loader Rentals 71,867.03
CALPERS Retirement Contribution 63,159.55
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan Inc. Health Insurance — May 58,093.93
Sutter Health Plus Health Insurance — May 46,745.37
PG&E Electricity — February and March 36,420.46
Sierra Mountain Construction Inc.  Segment 4 Construction 36,099.78
Dennis Wing Trucking Haul Dirt 27,600.00
Condor Earth Technologies, Inc. WR #022, #20, #24, #019, #16 20,709.00
Damrell, Nelson, Schrimp, Pallios, Attorney Fees — January 19,440.01

Pacher & Silva

Sub Total Top Ten: $488,221.48
Other Obligations: 289,595.95

Total Obligations: $777,817.43

FISCAL IMPACT: $777,817.43

ATTACHMENTS:
» Statement of Obligations — Accounts Payable

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT
OF
OBLIGATIONS

May 5, 2020



Accounts Payable
Check Register -May 5, 2020

Oakdale Irrigation District
1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA 95361

Check No Check Date Vendor Name Amount Description
327201 3/27/12020 Employment Development Department $100.40 Personal income Tax and State Disability Insurance
327202 3/27/2020 Internal Revenue Service 686.00 941 Withholding, Medicare and FICA
403201 4/3/2020 California Public Employees’ Retirement System 31,655.82 CalPERS Retirement and Employer Contribution
403202 4/3/2020 Employment Development Department 8,229.62 Personal Income Tax and State Disability Insurance
403203 4/3/2020 Internal Revenue Service 51,804.56 941 Withholding, Medicare and FICA
403204 4/3/2020 ICMA Retirement 1,356.25 Deferred Comp Withholding
403205 4/3/2020 VOYA Retirement 8,800,50 Deferred Comp Withholding
27480 4/6/2020 Ace Hardware 141.12 Bags, Plugs, Twistlocks, Pump Sprayer, Valve and Funnel
27481 4/6/2020 ACR Systems Inc. 390.01 DC Current Data Logger
27482 4/6/2020 Airgas USA, LLC 1,005.83 Welding Supplies
27483 4/6/2020 Allied Concrete and Supply Co., Inc. 1,118.98 Concrete
27484 4/6/2020 Amazon Web Services, inc. 77.79 Storage - March
27485 4/6/2020 App Agency Inc. 30.00 Hosting - oidwaterresources.org
27486 4/6/2020 Ash, Jon 144.00 Health & Wellness Reim. Jan-March 2020
27487 4/6/2020 AT&T Mobility 53.80 GPS Device - March
27488 4/6/2020 BG Agri Sales & Service 396.05 Swivel, Cap, TeelJet Check Valves
27489 4/6/2020 Bobcat Central, Inc. 338.53 Pumps, Elbows and Hoses
27490 4/6/2020 Boutin Jones, Inc. 587.10 Altorney Fees For Feb 2020
27491 4/6/2020 Casey Records Management 192.00 Shredding - March
27492 4/6/2020 C & C Portables, Inc. 1,390.05 Portable Toilet Rental - March
27493 4/6/2020 Central Valley Ag Grinding, Inc. 481.00 Lumber and Green Waste
27494 4/6/2020 City of Oakdale Utilites 638.28 Crane Rd Water Usage 02/24-03/03/20, Water/Sewer For March
27495 4/6/2020 Coffee Break Service, Inc. 219.16 Coffee Service
27496 4/6/2020 Comcast 625.80 Analog Lines, TV and Internet
27497 4/6/2020 Condor Earth Technologies, Inc. 20,709.00 WR # 019, WR# 022, WR #024, WR# 016, WRi# 020
27498 4/6/2020 Conlin Supply Co., Inc. 8,245.67 16' Cattle Gate, Pipe, Barbed Wire and Posts
27499 4/6/2020 Dennis Wing Trucking 15,755.00 Haul Dirt
27500 4/6/2020 Department of Water Resources 8,117.00 Rodden Lake Fees 07/01/20 - 06/30/21
27501 4/6/2020 Digi-Key Corporation 40.39 Sensor and Connectors
27502 4/6/2020 DLT Solutions, LLC 2,963.70 Annual AutoCAD Subscription
27503 4/6/2020 Ellis Self Storage, Inc 85.00 Storage - April
27504 4/6/12020 Event Pros Productions 1,031.80 Teleconferencing Tri Dam Meeting
27505 4/6/2020 EZ Haul 2,662.11 Premier Plug and Pallet Deposit
27506 4/6/2020 Far West Laboratories, Inc. 455.00 Bac-T Tests
27507 4/6/12020 First Choice Industrial Supply Inc. 662.45 Wonder Grip Gloves and Disinfecting Wipes
27508 4/6/2020 Fishbio Inc. 2,346.40 Honolulu Bar - February
27509 4/6/2020 F&M Bank 1,899.99 January Retention
27510 4/6/2020 Fragie, Will 75.00 Steel Toe Work Boots
27511 4/6/2020 Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. 1,849.64 101C Gate
27512 4/6/2020 George Reed, Inc. 6,605.58 Crushed Rock and Minus
27513 4/6/2020 Gilton Resource Recovery Transfer Facility, Inc. 657.10 Refuse Charges and Concrete
27514 4/6/2020 Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 304.26 Refuse Charges - March
27515 4/6/2020 Grainger 410.54 Throw Bags, Electric Pen Engraver
27516 4/6/2020 Grover Landscape Services, Inc. 510.00 Monthly Landscape Maintenance - March
27517 4/6/2020 Haidlen Ford 2,536.37 Vehicle Repair Supplies
27518 4/6/2020 The Hat Source 3,020.41 OID Hats
27519 4/6/2020 Hilmar Lumber, Inc. 4,819.11 Various PVC Pipe and Supplies
27520 4/6/2020 Hixco 1,244.08 Insecticide, Paint, Glasses and Visors
27521 4/6/2020 Integrated Telecom Solutions, Inc. 62.50 Phone System Support
27522 4/6/2020 Jepson, Zack 53.00 Steel Toe Boot Reimbursement
27523 4/6/2020 Knell, Steve 171.58 Lunch Meetings and Newsletter Subscription
27524 4/6/2020 Krohne Inc. 9,312.02 10" Enviromag 2000 Flow Sensor and Convertor
27525 4/6/2020 Leica Geosystems, Inc. 976.50 Leica Geosystems Annual Subscription
27526 4/6/2020 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 9,5646.00 Labor Negotiations
27527 4/6/2020 Loveall, Michael 75.00 Steel Toe Boot Reimbursement
27528 4/6/2020 McMaster-Carr 122.69 Grip Puller
27529 4/6/2020 Mission Uniform Service 1,671.77 Uniform Service



Accounts Payable
Check Register -May 5, 2020

Oakdale Irrigation District
1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA 95361

Check No  Check Date Vendor Name Amount Description
27530 4/6/2020 Motor Parts Distributors, Inc. 252.04 Head Lamp and Bulbs
27531 4/6/2020 NorCal Kenworth 1,074.20 Knob Heaters, Work Lamps, Filters and Belt
27532 4/6/2020 Oakdale Automotive Repair & Tire 1,027.79 Tires
27533 4/6/2020 Oakdale Auto Parts 113.19 Spark Plugs, Fuel Cap, Tire Repair Kit, Cleaner and Cement
27534 4/6/2020 Oakdale Leader 290.00 Farm and Ranch - March
27535 4/6/2020 Oakdale Locksmith 60.00 Rekey Ford Ignition
27536 4/6/2020 Office Depot 222.02 Office Supplies
27537 4/6/2020 Opportunity Stanislaus 252.00 Workkeys Testing
27538 4/6/2020 PG&E 19,877.71 Electricity - February
27539 4/6/2020 Quadient Finance USA, Inc. 633.99 Meter Rental For 2020
27540 4/6/2020 Ray Morgan Company 348.20 Copier Usage 02/24-03/23/20
27541 4/6/2020 Resource Building Materials 483.16 Redi Mix, Deposit For UCart
27542 4/6/2020 Rinker Materials 4,369.68 36"x 8' RCP
27543 4/6/12020 Rubicon, inc. 6,984.37 SCADA Supplies
27544 4/6/2020 Sierra Mountain Construction, Inc. 36,099.78 Segment 4 Construction
27545 4/6/2020 Springbrook Software LLC 158.00 Springbrook Training and CivicPay Online
27546 4/6/2020 Streamline 400.00 Monthly Web Fee - March
27547 4/6/2020 Target Specialty Products 5,185.47 Weedar and Round-Up
27548 4/6/2020 TP Express 150.00 Portable Toilet Rental - April
27549 4/6/2020 Tri-West Tractor Incorporated 42,483.64 Wiper Blades, Roller, Joints, Elements, Excavator and Loader Rental
27550 4/6/2020 Truck nTow.Com 2,019.80 Light Bar, Golight Mounts and Plates
27551 4/6/2020 Hall, Tim 77.07 Refund Check APN: 010-068-012
27552 4/6/2020 United Rentals Northwest, Inc. 5,816.09 Trench Box, Lifting Bridle Rental, Portable Auger w/ Accessories
27553 4/6/2020 Waters, Brian 75.00 Steel Toe Boot Reimbursement
27554 4/6/2020 W, H. Breshears, Inc. 5,664.75 Fuel
27555 4/6/2020 Wille Electric Supply Co., Inc. 451.37 PVC Elbows, Fuses and Adapters
27556 4/6/2020 California State Disbursement Unit 377.99 Employee Levy
27557 4/6/2020 Franchise Tax Board 34292 Employee Levy
407201 4/7/2020 Employment Development Department 20.08 Personal Income Tax
407202 4/7/2020 Internal Revenue Service 927.71 941 Withholding, Medicare and FICA
408201 4/8/2020 Employment Development Department 93.22 Personal Income Tax and State Disability Insurance
408202 4/8/2020 Internal Revenue Service 696.37 941 Withholding, Medicare and FICA
409201 4/9/2020 Visa 67.13 Wrench and Screwdriver Set
409202 4/9/2020 Visa 149.90 ZOOM.US, To Support Teleconferencing
4142020 4/14/2020 California Department of Tax & Fee Administration 3,724.00 2020 Sales & Use Tax
417201 4/17/2020 California Public Employees' Retirement System 31,503.73 CalPERS Retirement and Employer Contribution
417202 4/17/2020 Employment Development Department 8,676.21 Personal Income Tax and State Disability Insurance
417203 4/17/2020 Internal Revenue Service 53,971.71 941 Withholding, Medicare and FICA
417204 4/17/2020 ICMA Retirement 1,281,37 Deferred Comp Withholding
417205 4/17/2020 VOYA Retirement 8,772.40 Deferred Comp Withholding
27558 4/20/2020 ABS Presort, Inc. 955.04 STRGBA Newletter March 2020
27559 4/20/2020 Ace Hardware 438.91 Galvanized Shackles, Tools, Gloves, PVC Pipe
27560 4/20/2020 ACWA-JPIA 9,821.83 Dental/Vision - May
27561 4/20/2020 Airgas USA, LLC 577.79 O-Rings, Welding Helmets, Goggles and Gloves
27562 4/20/2020 Phippen, David 70.99 Customer Deposit Refund - Petition to Join ID13
27563 4/20/2020 Warner, Peter & Pamela 326.67 Customer Deposit Refund - Petition to Detach from 1D02
27564 4/20/2020 BG Agri Sales & Service 463.27 Teelet, Valves, Dampers and Gasket Kit
27565 4/20/2020 Boutin Jones, Inc. 2,005.92 Attorney Fees For March 2020
27566 4/20/2020 California State Disbursement Unit 377.99 Employee Levy
27567 4/20/2020 Chicago Title 22,72 Refund - APN: 002-022-037
27568 4/20/2020 Chicago Title Co. 7.86 Refund - APN: 229-120-09
27569 4/20/2020 Comcast Business 331.13 Office Phone Charges - April
27570 4/20/2020 Consumers Choice Pest Control 75.00 Quarterly Pest Control
27571 4/20/2020 Corelogic Solutions, LLC 275.00 Real Quest - March
27572 4/20/2020 Damrell, Nelson, Schrimp, Pallios, Pacher & Silva 19,440.01 Attorney Fees - January
27573 4/20/2020 Dennis Wing Trucking 11,845.00 Haul Dirt
27574 4/20/2020 Digi-Key Corporation 28.88 Sockets



Oakdale Irrigation District
1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA 95361

Accounts Payable
Check Register -May 5, 2020

Check No Check Date Vendor Name Amount Description
27575 4/20/2020 EPIC Business Essentials 86.79 Divider Index Tabs
27576 4/20/2020 EZ Haul 5,294.72 Premier Plug and Pallet Deposit
27577 4/20/2020 Fastenal Company 451.77 Safety Tags, Padlock Labels and AAA Batteries
27578 4/20/2020 Freeman Designs 513.70 Window Envelopes
27579 4/20/2020 Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. 7,950.15 Alum Slide Gate
27580 4/20/2020 George Reed, Inc. 5,607.38 Crushed Rock and Minus
27581 4/20/2020 Gilton Resource Recovery Transfer Facility, Inc. 3,865.60 Refuse Charges and Concrete
27582 4/20/2020 Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 561.94 Refuse Charges - March
27583 4/20/2020 Grainger 421.04 U-Bolts, Plastic Protector and Waders
27584 4/20/2020 Haidlen Ford 2,323.47 Full Size Crossover Box and Auto Repair Supplies
27585 4/20/2020 Interstate Truck Center 2,209.99 Repair Work On INTL 4900
27586 4/20/2020 Jorgensen Company 641.63 BW Replacement Sensor and CAL Gas
27587 4/20/2020 Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. 58,093.93 Health Insurance - May
27588 4/20/2020 Ketchum Jr., Castle 26.80 Mileage Reimbursement
27589 4/20/2020 Knell, Steve 29.80 Lunch Meeting
27590 4/20/2020 Lowes 769.97 Ratchet, Sockets and Redi-Mix
27591 4/20/2020 Mission Uniform Service 2,038.83 Uniform Services
27592 4/20/2020 Modesto Bee 595.00 Job Postings Portal
27593 4/20/2020 Modesto Irrigation District 395.27 Electricity - March
27594 4/20/2020 Moore Quality Galvanizing L.P. 1,380.03 Expanded Metal grates, Hand Rails, Lids
27595 4/20/2020 Morrill Industries, Inc. 7,167.38 Various Sized PVC Pipes
27596 4/20/2020 Network Builders IT, Inc. 199.95 Trend Micro WFBS Advanced License
27597 4/20/2020 Oakdale Automotive Repair & Tire 284.90 Tire Alignment
27598 4/20/2020 Oakdale Leader 268.68 COVID 19 Press Release and Community Awareness
27599 4/20/2020 Oakdale Locksmith 94.68 New Keys, Re-Key, Ignition Cylinder
27600 4/20/2020 Oak Valley Hospital 1,194.00 Pre-Employment Exams, Medical Cards and Drug Screen
27601 4/20/2020 O'Brien, Brenden 75.00 Steel Toe Boot Reimbursement
27602 4/20/2020 Office Depot 460.59 Toner, Pens, Staples, Paper and Self Ink Stamp
27603 4/20/2020 OID Improvement Districts 15,141.51 March 2020 Collections Reimbursement
27604 4/20/2020 O'Laughlin & Paris LLP 4,280.00 Attorney Fees - March
27605 4/20/2020 Ontel Security Services, Inc. 275.00 Security Monitoring - March
27606 4/20/2020 Operating Engineers Union Local No. 3 3,120.00 Union Dues - PPE: 03/17/20
27607 4/20/2020 PG&E 16,542.75 Electricity - March
27608 4/20/2020 Pakmail 13.61 Shipped Cell Phone Booster For Warranty Replacement
27609 4/20/2020 Quadient Finance USA, Inc. 1,000.00 Postage 03/05/20
27610 4/20/2020 Redwood Health Services 310.25 125 Cafeteria Plan and Cobra - April
27611 4/20/2020 Resource Building Materials 307.46 Redi Mix
27612 4/20/2020 Rubicon, Inc. 2,515.83 Support
27613 4/20/2020 Samba Holdings, Inc. 170.00 Fleet Watch - March
27614 4/20/2020 Eastern SJ Groundwater Authority 10,565.00 Agency Contribution
27615 4/20/2020 San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 42.00 20/21 Annual Permits To Operate
27616 4/20/2020 Santos, Gabriel 487.08 Reimbursement For Forehead Thermometers
27617 4/20/2020 Schneider Electric Systems USA Inc. 5,004.00 ClearSCADA Annual Support Renewal 05/01/20-04/30/21
27618 4/20/2020 South San Joaquin Irrigation District 17,991.56 Attorney Fees - Tri-Dam - February and March 2020
27619 4/20/2020 Spray & Son Janitorial, Inc. 2,535.00 Monthly Janitorial Service - March
27620 4/20/2020 Stanislaus County Clerk Recorder 57.00 CEQA - Notice Of Exemption
27621 4/20/2020 Sutter EAP 425.00 EAP - 1st Quarter 2020
27622 4/20/2020 Sutter Health Plus 46,745.37 Health Insurance - May
27623 4/20/2020 Teter, LLP 398.00 WR# 001- Architectural Services
27624 4/20/2020 Tractor Supply Co. 64.97 Airtight 10LB Container
27625 4/20/2020 Tri-West Tractor Incorporated 29,383.39 Adapter, Roof, Glass, Excavator and Loader Rental
27626 4/20/2020 UNKE, Inc. 150.00 Dirty Dump RCP Pipe Disposal
27627 4/20/2020 Verizon Wireless 2,175.53 Cimis Station, Cell Phone Charges - March
27628 4/20/2020 W. H. Breshears, Inc. 3,181.75 Fuel
27629 4/20/2020 Wienhoff Drug Testing, Inc. 245.00 Pre-Employment Test, Random Selection Drug Testing - March

S 77781743



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS
May 5, 2020

VOIDED CHECK: 27272,27330,27280, 27523

THE FOREGOING CLAIMS, NUMBERED 327201 THROUGH 327202, 403201 THROUGH
403205, 27480 THROUGH 27557, 407201 THROUGH 407202, 408201 THROUGH 408202,
409201 THROUGH 409202, 4142020 THROUGH 4142020, 417201 THROUGH 417205, 27558
through 27629. INCLUSIVE ARE APPLIED TO THE GENERAL FUND OF OAKDALE IRRIGATION
DISTRICT AND ARE OBLIGATIONS AUTHORIZED THERETO.



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
ltem Number: 4
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE OID IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve OID Improvement District’s Statement of Obligations

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:
Check number 0120 for the reimbursement of Improvement District's February and March 2020 O &

M expenses in the amount of $108,390.05 is being submitted for Board approval.

FISCAL IMPACT: $108,390.05

ATTACHMENTS:
> Statement of Obligations

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS
STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

FOR JANUARY 1, 2020 - MAY 5, 2020

CHECK

NO. PAYABLE TO: AMOUNT DATE
0117 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT $63,769.84 02/04/2020
0118 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 74,293.77 03/03/2020
0119 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 89,950.83 04/07/2020
0120 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 108,390.05 05/05/2020

THE FOREGOING CLAIM NUMBERED 0120 WAS APPLIED TO

DISTRICTS AND ARE AUTHORIZED THERETO.

GENERAL FUNDS OF THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION'S IMPROVEMENT



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ACCOUNT

0120

DATE: 5-May-20 TO: Oakdale Irrigation District
MAINTENANCE PAYABLE
Feb and Mar Feb and Mar
I.D. # O & M Expense 1.D. # O & M Expense
1 31 Note:
2 36 Included Misc.
8 38 Recon. ltems
13 41 99,222.66
19 24.43 45 1,817.52 Construction
20 46 3,418.19 I.D. # In Progress
21 48 51 $407.94
22 964.57 51 2,505.91
26 52
29 28.83
SUB-TOTAL $1,017.83 || SUB-TOTAL $106,964.28 || SUB-TOTAL $407.94
VOUCHER CHARGES
Maintenance & Operations $107,982.11
Capital Projects $407.94
TOTAL AMOUNT $108,390.05

K:\Finance\IDS\M&O EXPENSE\2020 M&O Expense\WARRANT 040720 - FEB and MAR 2020 O&M




BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Iltem Number: 5
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE TREASURER’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Treasurer’'s Reports and Financial Statements for the Two
Months Ending February 29, 2020

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

The Treasurer’s report provides the total Treasury and Improvement District Funds as of February 29,
2020. The month ended with $44.25 million in designated reserves, $1.65 million in restricted cash
and $27.8 million in operating cash.

The Financial Statements demonstrate the income and expenditures for the District for the two months
ending February 29, 2020.

As of the financial statement date, the District realized 50.4% of the budgeted revenues, and actual
expenditures (including capital projects and purchases) utilized 10.0% of the budgeted expenditures.
Additional information is provided within the attached reports.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS:
> Treasurer's Report
> Monthly Financial Report (unaudited)

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

QAKDALE FARIGATION [DESTHRCT

Y o

g‘(‘{\*

TREASURER'S REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING
FEBRUARY 29, 2020



TREASURER'S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUNDS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2020

PERIOD ENDING 2/29/2020 RATE 1/31/2020 NET CHANGE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT FUNDS

LAIF $169,625.39 1.912% $169,625.39 $0.00
OAK VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK CHECKING 658,438.19 303,839.28 354,598.91
OVCB BUSINESS PLUS SAVINGS 1,168,927.54 0.500% 3,084,376.97 (1,915,449.43)

UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA

TOTAL TREASURY FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS

TOTAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

TOTAL TREASURY AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

71,709,536.30  1.900%

73,706,527.42

1,645,979.65

1,645,979.65

$75,352,507.07

71,606,366.35

103,169.95

75,164,207.99

1,563,104.76

(1,457,680.57)

82,874.89

1,663,104.76

82,874.89

$76,727,312.75

($1,374,805.68)




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2020

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2/29/2020 2/28/2019 NET CHANGE
Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $75,164,207.99
Receipts / Earnings / Transfers 1,267,661.02
Expenditures / Transfers (2,725,341.59)
TOTAL DISTRICT TREASURY FUNDS ON HAND: 2/29/2020 [ $73,706,527.42 | $66,947,454.43 $6,759,072.99

GENERAL FUND.

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $28,258,358.95
RECEIPTS / EARNINGS
Secretary's Receipts
Net Investment Income 106,502.01
Collection Receipts 156,659.01
Transfer from Reserve Funds 1,004,500.00
Total Receipts: 1,267,661.02
EXPENDITURES
Accounts Payable 1,399,922.07
Payroll 320,919.52
Total Expenditures: (1,720,841.59)
BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 $27,805,178.38 | $19,719,100.83 $8,086,077.55

CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $10,899,670.72
Transfer from General Fund 0.00
Transfer to General Fund 0.00
BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 $10,899,670.72 | $18,000,000.00 ($7,100.329.28)I

RATE STABILIZATION AND OPERATIONS DESIGNATED RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $8,238,000.00
Transfer from General Fund 0.00
Transfer to General Fund 0.00
BALANCE ON HAND: $8,238,000.00 $8,126,000.00 $112,000.00

VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $1,004,500.00
Transfer from General Fund 0.00
Transfer Funds to General Fund (1,004,500.00)
BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 $0.00 $504,296.71 ($504,296.71)

MAIN CANAL & TUNNEL REPLACEMENT/IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $1,383,417.89
Transfer from General Fund 0.00
Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 [ $1,383,417.89 $5,515,767.29 ($4,132,349.40)




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2020

DISTRICT TREASURY FUNDS - continued 2/29/2020 2/28/2019 NET CHANGE
BUILDING AND FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $3,075,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 $3,075,000.00 $3,075,000.00 $0.00
RURAL WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $1,004,134.14

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 [ $1,004,134.14 $828,205.60 $175,928.54
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION ABSENCES RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $893,882.14

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 $893,882.14 $179,084.00 $714,798.14
JOINT CANYON TUNNEL PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 3,500,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: |_$3.500,000.00 0.00 3,500,000.00
MUNICIPAL CONSERVATIONPROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 100,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: r $100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00
OPERATING FACILITY PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 3,307,244 .15

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: [ $3,307,244.15 0.00 3,307,244.15
DEBT SERVICE RESERVE - maximum $21, 145,000

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 13,500,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: r $13,500,000.00 11,000,000.00 2,500,000.00




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2020

RESTRICTED FUNDS 2/29/2020 2/28/2019 NET CHANGE

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS

Beginning Balance: 2/1/2020 $1,563,104.76
Receipts 157,168.66
Expenditures (74,293.77)
BALANCE ON HAND: 2/29/2020 $1,645,979.65 $1,552,927.11 $93,052.54

FILED: April 16,2020 STATE OF CALIFORNIA / COUNTY OF STANISLAUS



IR TRIR TRTTR T RTTR DRUIE DRI LR L RILE L R

01 jo | abed

anjep Junoddy [e1ol 818G TYE’LLS %00'001
sanuNasg SN-UON  0O'OVY'IVE'E %99t
suonebiqp ayesodioy  O'BZ'S00'6 %ESZL
suonefijqpuswulanoy  GZ'0BY'60L'LT %.G8E
slusjeanbl yse) R USe)  E6BLYEBLLE %YZ 7Y
uogdiaseqg  8njep peNIe WRoI2Y [B10] JO %

"paziun aq pjnoys sanundas Ainb3 oN ‘weans

3Wwo0ul 8)qe1s e apiAo.d 0] pazin 8g UBD SBININIIS BWOIU Paxy
“pale|a) Ysea aq ||Im s)asse gl Jo uontod Jofew ay) “wial-Buoj

a3y} JaA0 ysL1 18}sew ou 1o 8| Buneaq weans awooul ajgepuadap
e }98$ 0} S1 aA0a(qo Juawabeuely Aupinbi syt jo |eob Atewnd ey
XIjy oifofuiod JuaLing Inog

oL/

|IE}a(Q UOROBSURL]
Aewwng Aunmepy puog
lieYa(1assy
Alewwng suonoesuel| yse)
Alewwng ssoy/uley pazieasun
Arewwng ojopiod jediouig
N2\ 1UNDIJY |BI0 | JO MBIAIBAQ H_

SjuUsu0)

Apoisnapuelsni/wodjuequoiun
sseaoy auljug |}

Jabieueyy Jusunsonuj B Jobeueyy diysuonefey @
LOIH1SIG NOILYOIHY! 3TVANVO
awey juncasy i

Joquiny wnoaay Il

0202 ‘62 Arerugad ybnoiyl 0202 ‘1 Areniged
pouad Juswaiels Il_

JUSWALE]S JUN0JDY

Aiobajes Juawisanu] AQ JUNOJJY JO MIIAIBAO

Lyv88'LzLs pousd 104 abuey) N
81839 VY8’ LLS 020z/62/20 uo anjep Buisoly
LLSLLOLL LS 0207/10/Z0 uo anjep Buuadg
67°£95°051'79$ 6L0%/1€&/Z\ uo anjep Buiso)y ll_

anjeA 1Junoooy |elol JO MIIAIDAD

19€66 VO ‘I TWANVO
13341S .4, 1Sv3 S0zt

1JIH1SIA NOILVOIHYI ITVANVO

vOLY6 VD ‘OISIONVHA NVS
200ZL-H ‘13341S VINHO4ITVO 0S€
S3IQIAHIS AQOLSND va01d

4N



01 /2

01 Jo z obed

00'0S suopoesuel] Jop |2I0)

(L 198°085LLS) SjualasINgsiq [€10L

(£ ¥98'085'L1) saseyaing
sjuswasIngsig

yse |ediouny -I_

(ponupuoo) AJRLIWING Suoljoesuel] ysed

0202 ‘62 Arenuga- ybnoiu) 020z ‘1 Arerugad
poiiad Juswojels .I_

juswajels JUnNoJdy

bLV98'085 LS sydiaaay |ejo)
LLYI8'ZLEY suondwepay/sajimep
890E8 V0L 'EL sajes
6859’65 1s8181U]
90yeS'ey puspimg
sydiasay

yse jedioung .I_

Aewwng suojoesuel] yseo

8T1ZLSELS 8L8SITLRLLS 0£'925°60L'LLS sso/uleg [ejo)
0526Z°C 00°0vv'9vE'E 05 [yLvPE'E $311IN 235 §N-UON
06'9Z8'cy 00'8vZ'500'6 01'1Z¥'196'8 suonebiqQ arelodio]
1970/'LE SZ0BY'60L LT 85'98/'1L9'LC suonefiqg 1uswuiaAog
Lg'L67'LG E6'6LY'EBL'LE ZVZBITEL'LE sjuajeainb3 yseg B Ysed
ssoq/uien anjep siseg vonduasag
2 20 3503 _
>._m:.=.::w $S0T/uler) pazijeaJun
%06k %0000L 81°859 b3 LLS oljopod ediauid [ejo)
%¥LY %99 00 0¥Y'9vE'E $8N1Naag §N-uoN
%I6T  %ESTL 00'872'S00'6 suonefijgq aresodio)
%65t %{58¢E GZ'06Y'604'LZ suonefijgg1uswuiercy
%¥9'L %Yy E6'6LVEBL'LE siusjeanb3 ysey g ysey

PIeIA oljojuod jo
waeuny abeaalagd

anfep uonduasag
sayieyy _

Arewwung o1joju0d jedioulid

1510 NOILY91HYI IIVAAVO
owepy unoaay

Jaquny unoaoy I wu D z @



oL/¢

01 jo g ebeqd

(TR BIIR |

0000000058

0000°000'0£S

0000'000°000°€

0000'000°005Z

0000°000°00Y'L

0000000°000°E

00EZ'6.9°006°€L

PIoH suup
/[saieys

0z/€\ /v 02/ A10
H3dvd TN0D 3510
800MIS8SY HIX3 TVININILNOJHILNI

0Z/0Z/€ 61/51/0L010
H3dvd TN0J 3S1d
LMIJESLET INIHVITI SJ3S TYNOILYN

07/sz/e61/9/21010
H3dvd IN0D 3814
GHI /0955 0L13NVE 3IHVNDIVIN

0702/91/£0 610Z/31/Z1 010
H3dvd TW0D 38Id
990238810 dd09 FJONVNI4 ZNVITV

0/ye0y/Lz/zala
43dvd N0 3S1d
8930¢€vLE9 dH09 NI4 4003 1110 TvHNY TYNOILVN

0Z/e6l/z71a10
43dvd IWGI 3SIa
22v61 168 JNVE NOININOQ-0LNOHOL

1doay s19xugfraded |, wwos Isig

801GLL9LE
«xxdIIMS LINFNIGYNYIN HSVDwsx
£5#1-13 011041H0d 1A09 S N

SOLSZI8LE S01104140d HSVD 1LSNI ALIT30I4
spun{ )axpejy Asuop
leynuapyf awepy 3assy
jassy

sjuajeainby ysey g ysey -I_

020Z/82/20

I8BLZ YL %89'L %8| 001866 00'S8E'8Y8 £E'E88'9V8
0202/82/20

ZLEDL %hZ8'l %640 0L/8°66 06862695 £1'678'995
0202/8%/20

G8'560'85 %6l %BLLY 066866 00'0£6'966'Z £EEB0'YBET
0202/87/20

0L'65L'8% %<6’ %8Y'E 066666 00'SLY'86v'C 90'€66'L8Y'Z
0202/82/20

YELLLTE %Zd'l %364 L696°66 08'S5'66€'L Yy y95'66¢'L
0202/87/70

£E'850°8Y %09} %817 8986'66 00'709'666'Z 00'509'666'Z
0202/8%/20

0€'L0£'202 %3 %SEBL 0000°L £2°6/9006°€1 £27619'006°

swoauf jenuuy Ploig ojjojuod jo  padlid ereQq anfe) wyIeW siseg 3soy

pojeuinsy ainy abewaatsd  fo3lid

0202 ‘62 Areniged ybnosy 0Zoz ‘1 Arerugad
poLIad Juswaie}s .I_

juswajlels Junoddy

o110§H0d [edioulld - [1€18( 19SSV

1S10 NOILYIIHHI ITVANVO
owep wnoaay

saquny yunoaay I ou D z @



oL/¥

01 jo p abed

020Z/82/20 020Z/ LUy
62'982°CC %65t %61 0£08'66 00°86¢'L6E"L 2L L6E'96E'L 0000°000'007'} GSAVBEELE %0000°0 2S10 SNGJ X8 NV01IWOH 1034
0z0Z/87/¢0 0Z0Z/S1/v
99'060'09 %651 %YZ'S 0518'66 GZ910'89L'E 05'9YL'€3L'E 0000°000'52L'E 6OAVBEELE %0000°0 JS10 SNOJ Y8 NVO13IWOH 103
020Z/87/20 020Z/EL/Y
LULLBET %65t %80°C 0vZ8'66 00'09€'L6Y'L 85v6/'96%'1 0000'000°005'L INAVBEELE %0000°0 IS10 SNOJ Y8 Nv013INO0H 1034

unoasiq - Aauaby Jnog gn

ewoauj jenuuy PIGIA oljofuog jo  padlid ejeQ anyep 1oIeN siseg jso) PIoH suun Iaynuap] awep jassy
pajewis3y wauny abeweoaiad  [o31d /sareys Jassy

suojebijqQ Juswuianoy -I_

1£'950'225% %9l %bT it £66LYEBL'LES LTBVTELLES sjuajennb3 yseg 1 yseJ |&101
0zYLoZL/L 10
020Z/82/20 43dvd TW0D 3SId
19928'Ty %644 %ZEE 09£1'66 00v2Y'L8E'T EEL0LBLET 0000'000°007Z L19dE9/EY ONIYY31 SIS TYNOILYN
0Z/vz/9 0767/ 010
0202/8%/20 H3dvd TN0J 3810
99'9e9'0Y %0L 1L %LET 0£05'66 00Z/0'88€2 (9'958'€8E'Z 00000000072 YOJZNEVYL 014 WILN3dNYd
0Z/v/561/8/8 010
020Z/87/20 43dvd IN0D ISI0
£6'L0E'vE %6} %08°¢C 02ZL'66 0096676l 00°066'Z84'L 0000'000'008'L ¥¥39EELE8 02 110343 HOLOW V10AO0L

ydaay sayug/iaded |,wwo) asig

awoauf fenuuy PISIA oljopiodjo  pasudeieg  anfep JeMIEl siseg Js03 PleH suup Jaluepy suigp Jossy
pajeis3 wauny abeealed  [a91id /saieys Jassy

spuajeainby yse) B yse) -H_

(penuuod) 0J]OJHOd [ediould - [e1aq 19SSV

0202 ‘62 Arenigad ybnoiy) 0gog ‘1 Arerugad 1510 NOILVS1dHI 3IVAAVO
pousd juswalels .H_ suey junoaay i

JUSWIS}E}S JUNOJJY aaiiesid WO (9] @




01 /8

01 Jo 5 8bied

VILEE DEEBE R e

020%/8%/20 020%/L1/8
00'000'S9 %657 %6Y'E 06EE 001 00'GLY'805'Z 00'6Z6'86v'Z 0000'000'005Z 80QH90730 %0009°Z LN3 8 NLW HOA MIN INVE
0202/82/20 0202/51/90 %Sv'Z G10Z/£1/90 010
00'GZE'SY %SHT %857 00£1°001 00'GYL'ESe’ L 0VZESLYE'L 0000°000°058°L OXVHSLZLL S3ILON HS INI SAS 03S1D
020%/82/20 0202/21/90 %0012
000002y %01'Z %6LT 08£0°00L 00095100 00'0v9'E96'L 0000°000'000' 83v45ZELL VYNINVEILID
spuog 3jelodio)
owoouf jenuty  PI3IA oijojuad o pasidejeq  enje] IBHIBW siseg 3503 PIsH syun Jaypuap| urep jassy
pajewysy elny abpoassad [o3lld /saieys jossy
suonebijqp ajesodio) -H_
i LLZ'ObYS %65L %LE'8E ST06Y'60L'L2$ 85°68L°LLY (28 suopnebi|qQ Jwawwanog |2101
020Z/87/20 0zoz/8l/s
ELHOVOLL %85t %LLB 076966 00°0Y'8L6'9 00'080°£96'3 0000°000'000'L 8ZMVBEELE %0000°0 2510 SNOJ %8 NVO7 3NOH 1034
020Z/8220 0207/62/y
76'60/'8L %851 %69 0/G'66 00'058'£86'7 90'€65'086'7 0000'000°000'G SIMYEEELE 900000 2510 SNOD X8 NV013IWO0H 10H
020%/82/20 0z0U Uy
ZE VS8l %09'L %991 098L°66 00'9Z5'080°6 7L€78'190°6 0000'000°001'6 IXAVBEELE %0000'0 3S10 SNOJ Y8 NvO1 INOH 1034
Junodsiq - Aouaby 3a09 SN
awoauf [enuny PIaIA ofjogiod jo  pastid aieg anjep joxie siseg 309 PIoH syuf J1aynuspy awep jossy
poyeunisy aing sbejaated [33lid /saieys jossy
suonebijq Jusiuuianoy -\I_
(penunuod) 01j0J140d [edidulld - |1e1aq 19SSy
0202 ‘62 Arenuga ubnoi 0202 ‘1 Areniged 1S10 NOILYDI8HI TIVANVO
poLdd juswayels -l_ awep Wwnoaay -

JUSWalEIS JUN0JJY

1aquiny junoday ou:z @



0l /9

YT OES'EIE LS %06'L %00°00L SUSSTTHELLS 0£'9ES'60L'LLS sanjep Junoday [ej0]
YT 9EG'EIELS %06t %00°00L 81’859 vbS LIS 0E£'955'60L'LLS oljopiod [ediouud jejo)
05 LEV'SELS %yLY %99t 00'0'9bE'ES 05 LYV 'YPEES $8D1N29g SN-UON [el0]

0202/87/20 1202/ 0y

05 LEV'ET %L0€E %90'L 0zLg'101 00°0¥0'vaL 05726'29L 0000°000°'0SL 691654790 %0GZ1'€ 3 8 VIL0JS VAON INVE

0202/8%/20 L20Z/ /v

00°000'GLL %Sty %09°€ 096Z'€01 00'00%'285'Z 00'62Z'185C 0000'000°005°2 8AI8YLEVE %0009 38 NI 03 098v4 S11IM
spuog ajelodio) SN - UON

swoaufjenuuy  P3IA olopiodjo  padud e anje Byl siseg 3507 PIoH syun laypuapj awep Jassy

perewnsy waling ebeasiay  [foaud /sareys jassy
$3111N93S S[-UON -I_

00'628'2928 %26 %EGTL 00'8Z'500'6$ OL'1ZY'L96'8S suopefiqg sjesodio) [e)o)

0202/8%/20 020Z/51/01 %0SZ'Y

00'005'0L} %8LY %L9E 08L9°10L 00'890'2¥9'Z 00'12€'158' 0000°000°009' LNHHSZ99Y JLON 02 8 ISYHI NVIHOW df
spuog ajerodio)

awoauj fenuuy PI3IA ofjopiod jo  paalid ayeQq anjep 3212l siseg jso) PleH suup Joynuapjf awep jassy

pojeuiysy wa1iny abeasiey  [3alid /saieys jassy
suonebijqg ayeiodio) -I_
(ponunuod) 01j0J140d [edIdulld - |1e19Q 19SSY
0202 ‘62 Arenige- ubnoiy 020z *1 Areniged 1S10 NOILYOI1 ITVONVO
pousd jusuwalels .l\_ awep WnoadyY -

juswalels Junoddy

sequiny junoaay | ou : z @



0L/t

01 40 £ 8bed

(R TR L RITE L RIH

(1R LRI

0Z/£0/Z0 31va 3avyl
15#1-10 L1SNI IIWW LAGSY ALIN3AI4
{rr219'6LL°E) yZI96LLEe SOLG/L9LE 40 SLINNYYZLS'6LLE QT0S SOles 020
0Z/1€/1 01 0Z/1/1 WOY4 AN3IAIAID
£5#1-19 LSNI DIWIN LAO9 ALIT3AN
90YESEY SO1S.19LE NO 03NHV3 ONITIAIQ 40 1dIFITH HSVD  puaplald 0Z/£0/20
GE'09E'000°LLS 0008 aouejeg buluuiboag
siseg js0) yseg jedrauild Joynuapj uondusseq Aumpay ajeq
jassy
|leyaQg uonoesuel]
%00'00L S6'8L6'EV6'LSS L0'LS8'808° LSS 000'000°568'LS 00'0% jejol
J8AQ pue sieap AQuam|
S1e8) UdS)aUIN-01-Uaali]
$1B3) U3aUN04-0)-us]
6202
820¢
1207
920¢
G20z
¥202
€202
[A417A
%8L'S 00°0vY'IvE'e 05 /7L'vYE'E 000°000'0SZ'E 120z
%l V6 G6'8E5' L65 VS {S'60L Y9V HS 000°000'5%9'7S 0z0z
anje/ ja)yiepy pueg jo abeyusaragd anjep JoyIeH siseq 3s0) anjep 1ed anfep aseJ -l_
Arewwnsg Ajunjepy puog
0202 ‘6¢ Areniged ubnoiLy 0z0g ‘1 Arenigad 1S10 NOILYS14HI TWAAVO
poilisd yuswalels -l_ awep une23Yy -

JUSLIBYES JUNOOJY ey @ 4N @



0L /8

01 jo g obed

ZLLBE'96E'L

00°005'ZE

(zL 16E'96E'L)

05'958'760'C

(05'958'260°Z)

059v1'€9L'E

siseg JsoJ

(2L [6€'96E"L)

(00'005°Z€)

00'005'Z¢

ZLLBE'96E'L

(05958'260°Z)

09'958'260°C

{o59vL'eaL’e)

yseg jedjauLd

% 62v69ZvL 66 LV INTYA Hvd 000'00%'Y

INI NMOYE X31V 9¥NVE 3HISLNI0 HONOHHL A3SYHIUN

GSAVBEELE

SOLSLISLE

0z/81/2031v0 30vYl
0Z/£1/v 3S10 SNOJ %9 NV073IWOH 103
40 INTVA UV 000°007'L QISYHIEN S3SBYdINd 0Z/81/20

02/8Y/20 31v0 30v4L
£5#1-10 1SNI LIAIN LADD ALIT30N
40 SLINN00S'ZE 3SVYHIUNA  S8seydind 0z/8l/20

0Z0Z/L1/Z INT INTVA HYd 000'00SZ NC Ad 1$/€10°0

800HI0Y30

SOLS/19iE

0Z/L1/8 %009  SLN XHOA MIN 4

NO Q3INHV3I 1SFHILNI 40 LdIFIFH HSVD 1saisiu] 07/81/20
02/81/2031v0 30vHL
£5#1-10 LSNI IXAIN LAQD ALIN3CIS

40 SLINNZL L6E'96E'L A10S SIS 0z/8l/zo

% EEEER6GI 66 1V INTYA HYd 000°00L'Z

“INISLINHYIN Tv1IdVI ANE HINOYHL A3SVYHIUNd

XAVBEELE

SO1SL18LE

BOAVSEELE

12y1u5p|
Iossy

0202 ‘62 Arenugad ybnoayr 0zog ‘1 Areruge4

pouad Juawajels -I_

JUSWalelS JUN0JJY

0¢/%0/20 31v0 30VHL
0z/Zz/v 3S10 SNOJ X8 Nv013IWOH 1034
40 INTVA YV 000'00L'Z 0ISYHIHN  S@Seyaind 0&/v0/Z0

0Z/¥0/Z0 ILV0 3avHL
£5#1-10 1SNI IIWIN LAOD ALN3AN
40 S1INNGS'9S8'Z60°Z G10S  s8Ies 2]

% 989'66 1V INTVYA HVd 000'GLLE
AFINVLS NVOHOW HONOHHL QISVHIHNd

0Z/6Wz0 1LV 30vHL

0Z/51/¢ 2510 SNOJ ¥8 NY013IWO0H 1033
40 INTVA HYd 000'GLLE QISYHOHNd  Seseyaind 02/80/20
uopdussaq Apanoy a1eq

(penunuco) 1@} UOIIOBSURL]

1510 NOILY9IHYI 3TVAXVO
auey unoasy I

Joquiny Junoaay i 0“ Dz @



01 /6

TR LR CRUR LR L RITN ERTIN LRIt BT LRI

01 Jo 6 abed

07/S7/20 31va 3avHL
£5#1-12 1SNI LIWIN LAOY ALN30I4
00°000°00%'¥ (00°000°00%'Y) SOLSZ18LE 40 SLINN 000'00%'7 QISVHIHNA  S@seyaing 0Z/5¢/20

% 001 1V INTVA HVd 000°000°
0202/5%/2 INA INTVA Yvd 000'000°E NO Ad 1$/0
025Uz ¢/30 9 NOINIWOG-01NOHOL

LI18LYL 8HEVEL 168 NO GINYYI 1SIHILNI 40 LdIFIIH HSVD 1s8i3l] 0Z/52/20
% 001 1V INTVA HYd 000°000°€
02/57/70 31¥0 3dvyl
0Z/Sz/z /20 8 NOINIWOQ-01INOHOL
(€€'812'586'7) ££'817'586'C 8H4gVv6L 168 40 3NTYA 4Vd D00'000'E 0WNLYIN - suondwapayy/salimei 0z/52/20

% 001 1V INTVA HYd 000007 L
020/52/2 30 INTVA HYd 000007 L NO Ad 1$/0
0Z/SZ/Z ¢/20 WINOJ S3IBLSNANI V10A0L

ITY5ET) 94872E768 NO 03NHVI LSFYILNI 40 LdIFITH HSVD 1saialy| 02/54/20
% 001 1V INIVA Yvd 000°00%'L
07/6Z/z0 31v0 30vHL
0Z/57/2 /30 WIN0D SIIHLSNANI V10A0L
(8L5v9'L8E"L) 8L'5v9'L8E"L 94472E468 10 INTVA HYd 000'00¢'L QIHNLYIN - Suondwapay/saimen 0Z/5%/20

% ££50€98/'66 1V INTVA HVd 000'005'L
'SOHE NOWOTVS HINOYHL 03SVHIENd

0Z/y7/2031va 30vHl
0Z/Sl/¥ 3510 SNOJ X8 NV01INOH 1034
85¥6/'96Y'1 (85%6.'967°L) INAVBEELE 40 INTYA HVd 000'005'L 0ISYHIHNd s8seydind 0Z/vZ/20
0Z/v2/031v0 30vHL
£G#1-10 LSNI LIWIW LA0D ALIN3CH
(85¥64'96Y'L) 8G¥6/'967'L SOLSLi9LE 40 SLINN8S¥6.'96FL 010S  S3(ES 0¢/v/20
siseg js0g yseg [ediaupd iaypuapj uondussag Apangay ezeq
Iossy
(penujuod) jiB}9Q UOoIljoeSuUel |
0202 ‘62 Areniged ybno.ys 0202 *4 Areniged 1510 NOLLYOIYHI TWANVO
poliiad yuswdlels H_ ey oYy .

JUSWAJE}S JUN0JDY paisiid IO L (9] @



oL /ol

01 Jo o1 obed

— sposm ou —

0£'9ES'60L'LLS

0008

aouejeg buipu3

S6'601'E0LS

yv95'66€"L

00'509'666'C

(v 691'66E7)

syseg js0J

00'0$

(v v95'66€"L)

{00'509'666'Z)

691’66 Y

ysey jediaund

Aungoy 1oN
% £5888896'66 1V INTVA HVd 000°00%'L

“ON1*S31114NJ3S ISYHI HONOUHL 0ISYHIENd

8900¢EvLE9

02/87/Z0 31vQ 30vHL
0Z/9%/€ /30 d00J 111N TvHNY TLYN
40 INTVA HY4 000'00F L 0ISYHOHNA S8seydind 0Z/84/70

% EEEER986'66 1V INTVA HY d 000°000°€

N) S31LIYNIIS NOININOA OLNOYOL HINOHHL G3SYHIYENd

270v61168

SOLSL18LE

Joynuepy
mssy

0202 ‘62 Arerugad ybnoiyl 0z0g ‘1 Arerugad

pouad uswalels -I_

Juswdlels JUnNodY

07/82/20 31vQ 30vYL
0Z/z0/€  d/30 9 NOININCQ-O1NOHOL
40 INTYA HVd 000°000°t GISYHIHNd S8seyaing 0z/82/70

02/8%/z0 31va 3AvHL
{S#1-10 LSNI YA 1A09 A11N30H
40 SLINN ¥¥'69L'66E'Y G10S SIS 0z/82/20

uopduaseq Ajanoy ojeq .I_

(penunuod) preja@ uoljdesuel |

1510 NOILYOIYH! 3TVANVO
swey wnodsy Il

soquiny wnossy OED z @



PMIA/LAIF Performance Report

as of 02/29/20
PMIA Average Monthly LAIF Quarterly Performance
Effective Yields!!) Quarter Ended 12/31/19
Feb 1.912 Apportionment Rate™:  2.29
Jan  1.967 Earnings Ratio®;  0.000062500857789
Dec 2.043 Fair Value Factor™: 1.001770298

Daily™:  2.02%
Quarter to Date!”:  2.11%
Average Life™: 226

Pooled Money Investment Account
Portfolio Composition ()
02/29/20
$97.5 billion

Commercial Paper Loans
8.92% 0.64%

Time Deposits
5.02%

Certificates of
Deposit/Bank Notes

Treasuries
14.81%

48.76%

Agencies
21.83%

Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding

Daily rates are now available here. View PMIA Dally Rates

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment
pursuant to Government Code 20825 (c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public
Utility Code 3288 (a).

Source:
(1) state of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2 state of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller



California State Treasurer

Fiona Ma, cPA

Local Agency Investment Fund
P.O. Box 942809

March 02, 2020

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
TREASURER
1205 EAST "F" STREET
OAKDALE, CA 95361
Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

February 2020 Statement

Account Summary
Total Deposit:
Total Withdrawal:

0.00 Beginning Balance:
0.00 Ending Balance:

169,625.39
169,625.39



Ca}ifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund March 02, 2020

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT #22

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361

Tran Type
Definitions
Account Number:
February 2020 Statement
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

41,283.52
41,283.52



quifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund March 02, 2020
P.O. Box 942809
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home

PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT #41

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361

Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

February 2020 Statement

Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

178,551.21
178,551.21



quifomia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund March 02, 2020

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT #45

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361

Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

February 2020 Statement

Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

232,219.77
232,219.77



quifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund March 02, 2020

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT
DISTRCT #46

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361

Tran Type
Definitions
Account Number:
February 2020 Statement
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

342,653.17
342,653.17



Ca}ifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund March 02, 2020

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT #51

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361

Tran Type
Definitions
Account Number:
February 2020 Statement
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

372,583.71
372,583.71



Cajifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, cPA

Local Agency Investment Fund March 02, 2020

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT #52

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361

Tran Type
Definitions
Account Number:
February 2020 Statement
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

56,764.84
56,764.84



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

CAKDALE IRRIGATION DeSTRCT

A o

\SS

MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

February 29, 2020

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
February 29, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
REVENUE DETAIL
OPERATING EXPENSES SUMMARY

CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES

e
2

10
i

PAGE NO.




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Accrued Interest
Annexation fees
Agricultural water fees
Property Taxes Receivable
Due from other governmental agencies
Miscellaneous
Domestic water fees
Inventory of materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Due from Improvement Districts
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Accounts receivable - delinquencies
Due from other governmental agencies
Annexation fees receivable
Investments in Tri-Dam Project
Capital assets:
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Pensions
Bonds
Total deferred outflows of resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Payable from nonrestricted assets
Accounts payable
Due to other governmental agencies
Accrued salaries, wages and related benefits
Unearned revenue
Deposits payable
Due to Improvement Districts
Claims payable
Interest expense payable
Long-term liabilities, due within one-year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term liabilities, due in more than one-year, net
Pensions
Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

For the month ending February 29, 2020

2020 2019 Change
$ 1,997,741 $ 2,737,876 $ (740,135)
1,645,980 1,552,927 93,063
71,709,536 64,209,999 7,499,538
176,900 146,560 30,340
885,704 859,906 25,797
559,377 673,353 (113,976)
- (0) 0
452,463 1,088,155 (635,691)
2,759 2,204 555
3,899 284 3,614
646,627 691,945 (45,318)
260,055 258,783 1,272
115,745 37,211 78,534
78,456,786 72,259,203 6,197,584
10,922 2,761 8,162
122,374 101,475 20,899
13,221,546 14,107,249 (885,704)
45,331,728 40,167,235 5,164,493
12,992,056 27,007,855 (14,015,800)
97,180,463 77,400,120 19,780,343
168,859,089 158,786,697 10,072,393
247,315,874 231,045,899 16,269,977
667,856 667,856 -
3,111,921 3,275,706 (163,785)
3,779,777 3,943,562 (163,785)
251,095,651 234,989,461 16,106,191
271,259 1,145,136 (873,876)
931,383 1,009,708 (78,325)
- 193 (193)
198,676 12,400 186,276
56,985 15,259 41,726
1 4,800 4,799)
830,000 795,000 35,000
2,288,302 2,982,494 (694,192)
25,994,072 26,987,444 (993,372)
3,986,214 3,986,214 -
29,980,286 30,973,658 (993,372)
32,268,538 33,956,154 (1,687,564)
33,849 33,849 -
33,849 33,849 -
85,655,824 78,056,888 7,598,936
1,619,737 1,652,927 66,810
131,517,653 121,389,643 10,128,010
$ 218,793,214 ~§ 200,999,458 ~§ 17,793,756

Page 1



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

i
:
i

e

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION o
For the Month Ended February 29, 2020 A\
% of 2020
Budget
Current Month YTD Actual 2020 Budget Budget Remaining Remaining
Operating revenues:
Agricultural water deliver charges (base rate) $ 86 $ 2,056,409 $ 2,047,500 $ (8,909) 0%
Water sales 397 497 6,575,000 6,574,503 100%
Domestic water delivery fee 11,858 22,903 225,000 202,097 90%
Improvement District Fees 3,056 5,958 65,000 59,042 91%
Other water related revenues 5,822 30,797 65,000 34,203 53%
Total operating revenues 21,047 2,116,564 8,977,500 6,860,936 76%
Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance 245,626 403,084 5,081,200 4,678,116 92%
Water operations 59,219 127,210 3,227,786 3,100,576 96%
General and administrative 101,624 820,650 5,445,575 4,624,925 85%
Depreciation / amortization 224,694 464,885 3,500,000 3,035,115 87%
Total operating expenses 631,164 1,815,829 17,254,561 15,438,732 89%
Operating Income (loss) (610,117) 300,734 (8,277,061) (8,577,796) 104%
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
County property tax appropriations 498 837,469 2,650,000 1,812,531 68%
Net Investment income (loss) 68,610 (44,236) 1,200,000 1,244,236 104%
Gain (loss) sale of assets (17,099.00) (17,099) - - 0%
Debt service interest - (85,878) (1,011,000) (925,122) 92%
Tri-Dam Project distributions - 7,660,000 11,500,000 3,840,000 33%
Tri-Dam Power Authority distributions - 3,219,500 3,000,000 (219,500) 0%
Other non-operating revenue 500 1,000 6,000 5,000 83%
Total non-operating rev. (exp.) 52,509 11,570,756 17,345,000 5,752,145 33%
(557,608) 11,871,490 9,067,939 (2,825,651) -31%
Capital contributions - - - - 0%
Change In net position $ (557,608) $ 11,871,490 $ 9,067,939 $ (2,825,651) -31%
Capital expenditures & debt obligations $ 843,880 $ 1,285218  § 9,059,375 $ 7,774,157 86%

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

Page 2



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

REVENUES - DETAIL

For the Month Ended February 29, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Agricultural water service fees
Tier 1
Tier 2
Water sales
Tier 1
Tier 2
Local out-of-district
Out-of-district
Domestic water sales
Improvement District fees
Miscellaneous revenues
Service Charges & Penalties
Total Operating Revenue

NONOPERATING REVENUES
County property tax appropriations
Investment earnings
Investment earnings (loss)
Other Interest income
Gain (loss) sale of assets
Tri-Dam Project distributions
Tri-Dam Power Authority distributions
District rental properties
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Capital Contrilbutions
TOTAL REVENUES

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

el TR

e

% of 2020
Budget Budget
Current Month YTD Actual 2020 Budget Remaining Remaining
$ (86) $ 1,819944 $ 1,811,000 $ (8,944) 0%
(0) 236,465 236,500 35 0%
(2) (2) 575,000 575,002 100%
- - 650,000 650,000 100%
399 499 350,000 349,501 100%
- - 5,000,000 5,000,000 100%
11,858 22,903 225,000 202,097 90%
3,056 5,958 65,000 59,042 91%
5,822 30,797 65,000 34,203 53%
21,047 2,116,564 8,977,500 6,860,936 76%
498 837,469 2,650,000 1,812,531 68%
68,610 (44,236) 800,000 844,236 106%
400,000 400,000 100%
(17,099) (17,099) - 17,099 0%
- 7,660,000 11,500,000 3,840,000 33%
- 3,219,500 3,000,000 (219,500) 0%
500 1,000 6,000 5,000 83%
52,509 11,656,634 18,356,000 6,699,366 36%
- - - - 0%
$ 73,556 $ 13,773,198 $ 27,333,500 $ 13,560,302 50%

Page 3



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
OPERATING EXPENSES SUMMARY
For the Month Ended February 29, 2020

OPERATING EXPENSES

MAINTENANCE
SSJID Main Supply Diversion Works
North Main Canal Maintenance
South Main Canal Maintenance
Irrigation Water Lateral Maint-North Side
Irrigation Water Lateral Maint - South Side
Pumping Plant Operations and Maintenance
Drainage System Maintenance
Building and Grounds Maintenance
Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance

TOTAL MAINTENANCE

WATER OPERATIONS
Domestic Water System Maintenance
Irrigation Water Operations - North Division
Irrigation Water Operations - South Division
Drainage Water Operations
Water Measurement Management
TOTAL WATER OPERATIONS

GENERAL, ADMINISTRATION, AND DEPRECIATION
General and Administration
Depreciation and Amortization
TOTAL GENERAL, ADMINISTRATION,

AND DEFR.
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NONOPERATING EXPENSES
Interest expense

TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL OPERATING AND NONOPERATING
EXPENSES

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

wf._w_,, s

% of 2020
Budget Budget

Current Month YTD Actual 2020 Budget Remaining Remaining
$ - $ - $ 50,000 $ 50,000 100%
10,424 19,615 253,000 233,385 92%
2,679 15,944 203,100 187,156 92%
74,509 117,940 1,572,600 1,454,660 93%
77,888 113,609 1,355,000 1,241,391 92%
11,402 14,388 458,100 443,712 97%
811 1,815 230,300 228,485 99%
23,461 45,102 355,000 309,898 87%
44,452 74,671 604,100 529,429 88%
245,626 403,084 5,081,200 4,678,116 92%
18,945 31,291 280,300 249,009 89%
18,097 45,115 1,435,986 1,390,871 97%
18,059 45,031 1,439,700 1,394,669 97%
3,943 5,268 18,600 13,332 72%
175 505 53,200 52,695 99%
59,219 127,210 3,227,786 3,100,576 96%
101,624 820,650 5,445,575 4,624,925 85%
224,694 464,885 3,500,000 3,035,115 87%
326,318 1,285,535 8,945,575 7,660,040 86%
631,163 1,815,829 17,254,561 15,438,732 89%
- 85,878 1,011,000 925,122 92%
- 85,878 1,011,000 925,122 92%
$ 631,163 $ 1,901,707 $ 18,265,561 $ 16,363,854 90%

Page 4



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ended February 29, 2020

oy

e

GL ACCOUNT 2020 YTD
NO. GL DESCRIPTION PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL 2020 BUDGET
00-000-15200-00 Capital Work Capital construction projects (Water Resources Plan)
Canal and Lateral Rehabilitation $ 9,957 $ 1,600,000
Domestic Water Projects 5 -
Flow Control and Measurement Structures 918,557 1,800,000
irrigation Service Turnout Replacement 8,134 300,000
Main Canals and Tunnels Improvement Projects - 100,000
Miscellaneous in-system improvements - -
New and Replacement Groundwater Wells - -
North Side Regulating Reservoir - -
Outflow Management Projects 27,657 100,000
Pipeline Replacement 251,587 1,200,000
Reclamation Projects - -
Subtotal for Water Resources Plan Improvements 1,215,892 5,100,000
South Main Canal - Segment 4 (2019 Budget) 23,394 -
Operating Headquarters Design 13,141 1,300,000
Canyon Tunnel-Joint with SSJID (900k x 28%) - 252,000
Joint Main Canal Stabilization project (800k x 28%) - 224,000
Asset Management Program Implementation 31,108 100,000
South Main Canal - Tunnel 9 downstream design - 100,000
North Main Seepage Mitigation Project-90% Design - 50,000
Ag Pump Replacements - 50,000
1,283,535 7,176,000
00-000-15183-00 Miscellaneous Construction Equipment
MI-T-M Air Compressor w/ Electric Start 3,000
Wacker 5.6 KW Generator w/ Electric Start 2.7k) 2,700
Wacker 2" Trash Pump 1,700
Wacker 3" Trash Pump 2,700
Husgvarna cutoff saw 14" 1,200
Wacker Vibratory Rammer, Gas 3,175
Wacker Vibratory Plate, Gas 2,500
Multiquip Concrete Vib. w/21' Shaft 1,150
Multiquip Concrete Vib. w/14' Shaft 1,200
Portable Auger (SCADA) 5,000
- 24,325
00-000-15184-00 Autos/Pickups/Trucks/ Trailers
1/2 Ton Pickup 2WD (DSO) 29,000
1/2 Ton Pickup 4WD (DSO) 32,500
1 Ton Utility 4WD (C&M) 45,000
Heavy Duty Transport (Truck w/Lowboy) 316,000
Dump truck, 3-axle (diesel) 245,000
Water Truck (2000 gal) 145,000
Water Truck (3600 gal) 192,000
- 1,004,500
00-000-15187-00 Office and Engineering Equipment
Network security hardware (c/o from 2019 Budget) - 8,000
Computer upgrades and replacements
HP Mini (4 @ 1,025 ea) 4,100
EliteDesk (6 @ 975 ea) 5,850
HP Workstation upgrade (4@ 2,400) 4,800
HP Elitebook upgrade (1*1,800) 1,683 1,800
1,683 22,750
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS AND PURCHASES EXPENDITURES 1,285,218 8,227,575
00-000-22320-00 Current portion - COP Debt - 830,000
TOTAL CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES 1,285,218 9,059,375

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

Page 5



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Item Number: 6
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE TREASURER’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
THREE MONTHS ENDING MARCH 31, 2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Treasurer's Report and Financial Statements for the Three
Months Ending March 31, 2020

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

The Treasurer’s report provides the total Treasury and Improvement District Funds as of March 31,
2020. The month ended with $45.9 million in designated reserves, $1.65 million in restricted cash and
$26.8 million in operating cash.

The Financial Statements demonstrate the income and expenditures for the District for the three months
ending March 31, 2020.

As of the financial statement date, the District realized 50.8% of the budgeted revenues, and actual
expenditures (including capital projects and purchases) utilized 14.9% of the budgeted expenditures.
Additional information is provided within the attached reports.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS:
» Treasurer's Report
» Monthly Financial Report (unaudited)

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

QAXDALE IRAIGATION DSTRCT

. YA

\SS

TREASURER'S REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING
MARCH 31, 2020



TREASURER'S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUNDS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2020

PERIOD ENDING 3/31/2020 RATE 2/29/2020 NET CHANGE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT FUNDS

LAIF $169,625.39 1.787% $169,625.39 $0.00
OAK VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK CHECKING 928,819.95 658,438.19 270,381.76
OVCB BUSINESS PLUS SAVINGS 2,316,974.37 0.500% 1,168,927.54 1,148,046.83
UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA 69,262,384.48 1.690% 71,709,536.30 (2,447,151.82)

TOTAL TREASURY FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS

TOTAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

TOTAL TREASURY AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

72,677,804.19

1,656,823.73

1,656,823.73

$74,334,627.92

73,706,527.42 (1,028,723.23)
1,645,979.65 10,844.08
1,645,979.65 10,844.08

$75,352,507.07

($1,017,879.15)




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2020

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3/31/2020 3/31/2019 NET CHANGE
Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020 $73,706,627.42
Receipts / Earnings / Transfers 245,429.01
Expenditures / Transfers (1,274,152.24)
TOTAL DISTRICT TREASURY FUNDS ON HAND: 3/31/2020 $72,677,804.19 | $66,240,783.75 $6,437,020.44
GENERAL FUND
Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020 $27,805,178.38
RECEIPTS / EARNINGS
Net Investment Income 56,310.35
Collection Receipts 189,118.66
Total Receipts: 245,429.01
EXPENDITURES
Accounts Payable 930,692.00
Payroll 343,460.24

Total Expenditures:

BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020

(1,274,152.24)

$26,776,455.15 | $19,010,671.63 $7,765,783.52

CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020
Transfer from General Fund
Transfer to General Fund

BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020

$10,899,670.72
0.00
0.00
$10,899,670.72

$18,000,000.00 ($7,100,329.28)

RATE STABILIZATION AND OPERATIONS DESIGNATED RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020
Transfer from General Fund
Transfer to General Fund

BALANCE ON HAND:

$8,238,000.00
0.00
0.00
$8,238,000.00

$8,126,000.00 1 $112,000.00

VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020
Transfer from General Fund

Transfer Funds to General Fund
BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020

$0.00
0.00
0.00
| $0.00 |

$504,296.71 ($504.296.71)J

MAIN CANAL & TUNNEL REPLACEMENT/IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020

Transfer from General Fund

Transfer Funds to General Fund
BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020

$1,383,417.89
0.00
0.00
$1,383,417.89

$5,515,767.29 ($4,132,349.40)




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2020

DISTRICT TREASURY FUNDS - continued 3/31/2020 3/31/2019 NET CHANGE
BUILDING AND FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020 $3,075,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020 | $3,075,000.00 | $3,075,000.00 $0.00

RURAL WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020

Transfer from General Fund

Transfer to General Fund

BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION ABSENCES RESERVE

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020

Transfer from General Fund

Transfer to General Fund

BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020

JOINT CANYON TUNNEL PROJECT RESERVE
Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020
Transfer from General Fund

Expenditures
BALANCE ON HAND:

MUNICIPAL CONSERVATIONPROJECT RESERVE
Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020
Transfer from General Fund

Expenditures
BALANCE ON HAND:

OPERATING FACILITY PROJECT RESERVE
Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020

Transfer from General Fund

Expenditures

BALANCE ON HAND:

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE - maximum $21, 145,000
Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020

Transfer from General Fund
Expenditures
BALANCE ON HAND:

$1,004,134.14
0.00
0.00

$1,004,134.14 $829,964.12

$174,170.02J

$893,882.14
0.00
0.00

$893,882.14 $179,084.00

$714,798.14

3,500,000.00
0.00
0.00

[ $3,500,000.00 0.00]

3,500,000.00

100,000.00
0.00
0.00

[ $100,000.00 0.00

100,000.00

3,307,244.15
0.00
0.00

| $3,307,244.15 0.00

3,307,244.15

13,500,000.00
0.00
0.00

$13,500,000.00 11,000,000.00

2,500,000.00




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2020

RESTRICTED FUNDS 3/31/2020 3/31/2019 NET CHANGE
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS

Beginning Balance: 3/1/2020 $1,645,979.65

Receipts 10,844.08

Expenditures 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: 3/31/2020 $1,656,823.73 $1,534,991.91 $121,831.82

FILED: April 30, 2020 STATE OF CALIFORNIA / COUNTY OF STANISLAUS



& \MVEST, *&o{ WVEg,
S, ¢ & %
g ) PMIA/LAIF Performance Report 3 >
x 3 as of 04/15/20 3 'z
1!?77-t.lll'nm}ﬁ"'@? / / %)'"'ﬂ"“““&
PMIA Average Monthly LAIF Quarterly Performance
Effective Yields® Quarter Ended 03/31/20
Mar 1.787 Apportionment Rate!”;  2.03
Feb 1912 Earnings Ratio'”:  0.00005535460693046
Jan  1.967 Fair Value Factor'”:  1.007481015

Daily™:  1.73%
Quarter to Date'”:  1.89%
Average Life™: 208

Pooled Money Investment Account
Portfolio Composition *)
03/31/20
$98.1billion

Loans
0.64%

Commercial Paper
10.31%

Time Deposits
5.43%

Certificates of
Deposit/Bank Notes
14.37%

46.83%

Agencies
22.41%

Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding

Dally rates are now available here. View PMIA Dally Rates

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment

pursuant to Government Code 20825 (c){1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public

Utility Code 3288 (a).

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2 state of Calflornia, Offlce of the Controller

Treasuries



11 jo | ofieg

anjeA JunoJdy [eI0]  G6'6S0°E0H'69S %00°001L
$8NIINIBS SN-UON  0GZLLZIEE %LLY
suonefiqQ sjesodio)  05'9Z8'€86'8 %6l
suonefigpiuswuiarey S/ 0LS'ELLLZ %200y
siusjeanby ysey g ysey  0Z'06Y'EEEBL %LTTY
uapdusseq  anjep JeyIeW Junoaay jejof jo %

LLRUE LRI

"pazijnn aq pjnoys saniindas Aunb3 o ‘weans

awWoou 8|qels e 8piaoid 0] pazyin aq UeD $8IIINIBS 8UI0IU! PaXl4
‘palg|al Yseod aq ||Im s13sse ayl jo uoiiiod Jofew ay] "wuay-Buo

aUp J3A0 YK 183IBW ou 10 ajy| Buleag weans swoaul s|qepuadap
® yeas ) s 8Al9a(qo JuawsBeueyy Aupinbiy syl jo jeob Arewnsd ay |
XIfN 01[O]I0d JuaLing In0A

bW/t

|Ie18( uonJesuel)

Alewwng Aunmep puog

jie1a( 1essy

AJewwng suonaesuel| ysej

Alewwng sso/ulen pazijeasun
Aewwng onjopiod jedioulid

an[EAIUNCITY [B10] JO MBIAIBAQ .l_

SjuauoH

Apo1snopuelsniy/WodjuBquoIUn
ssaaay sutjug |

Jabeueyy Jusunsenuf ] 1afeueyy diysuoneroy [ ]
12141SIa NOILY91HY] 3TVANVO

awep wnoazy i

saquiny unosay Il

0202 ‘L€ OBy UBnosu) 0202 ‘1 UOJeIN
pouad Juswaiels -|_

JuaWale]S JUN0JJdY

Ki10DB91eD JUaWSaAU| AQ JUNODIY JO MIIAIBAQ

(2865 169'Z8) poyad 104 abueyy N
S6'650'607'69% 020Z/1§/50 uo anjep Buiso|)
81'859¥8'LL$ 020%/10/£0 uo anjep Buiuadg
67695051298

610Z/1€/Z} U0 anjep Buisoly -l_

anjeA JuUNoJ9Y [el0] JO MAIAIBAQ

19€56 VO ‘I VANVO
13341Ss .4, 1Sv3 S021

101Y1SIA NOILYDIYHI ITIVAANVYO

......... AUTT 3So)TUBW ------

$0LY6 VD ‘ODSIONVHA NVS
200Z1-H ‘13341S VINHO4ITVD OSE
S§30IAYIS AGOLSND V801D

94N



1/

11 jozabed

00°0$ suonoesuel] JaN [ejol
(LO09E"LSY" LZ$) s)uawasingsiq &0
{00'000°'005'2) $alJBI01}8Ua g 10}/0] SjuaWAR

(LO'09E"156'V2)

yseq jediounig

saseyaing
sjuawasingsiqg

II_

(penunuoo) A1RWIWING SUOI}OBSURL] Ysed

0202 ‘1€ Yorepy ybnoiul 020e ‘1 UdleN
poLIad Jusuwiaie}s .\I_

juswalels JUNnoddy

10°09'LSY LS sydieaay |e10)
90'65L'9EYEL suondwapay/saimep
LLTSL\96'EL sojes
v60vZ'ee 1sala|
vZ'L0961 puaping
sydiaosy

yse) jediound

"

Aewiwng suonoesuel) ysed

Ly SIgobLs 56'650°C0'69% 8y b8E'792'698 sso/uleg jejo)
{00°GL6'LE) 0SZLLZIEE 05 LyLES S8 98g SM-UON
0v'S0Y'2Z 05978'¢86'8 0L'1Zv'196'8 suonebijqp aresodio
L1'S8L10L SLOLSELLLT 8598 1LY LT suonebijqQ Juswuianoy
06'65Y'8Y 0Z 06Y'EEE'62 0€'080°S87'67 s1us|eaInb3 yseg g ysed
ssol/ureg anjep siseg uonduaseq
nstms 509 H—

Alewwng ssoT/uies) pazijeaiun

%60l  %0000L  SE'6SO'E0L'69S oljojuod [ediouud jejo)
%Ly %Ll 05ZLVZLEE saln2ag $N-uoN
%E6T  %VETL 05'978'€86'8 suonebiqQ eyesodio]
%651 %Z00Y SLOLSELL LT suonebygQ juswuisnog
%Zl'l  %ITTY 07 06Y'€£E'6Z slus|eAINb3 yse) B yse)
pisiA ologuodje  anfep uopdiasaq
ainy ebesarsy joyIEW .l_

Aiewwng oljojuod jedioutid

1S1Q NOILY9IHHI ITVAAVO
awep noasy i

soquiny w033y g ou D z @



l/€

L1 jo g abed

(9928°TY

99'9£9'0

00G/8'€9

2099255

€6'l0E'YE

1A )

62'62€'9E

awoaujf jenuuy
pajewnsy

%BL L

%0L°L

%EL'C

%581

%l61

%L9'L

%LC0

PIIA
Wa1iny

%SrE

%SY'E

%lEY

%lEY

%6S°C

%L

%SEGL

oljoguad jo

020Z/1¢€/€0
019966

0202/1¢/€0
09€9'66

0207/18/€0
09€. 66

020Z/18/€0
08LL66

020Z/1€/€0
085866

020Z/18/€0
0/L6'66

0207/1€/20
0000'1

paaiid ajeq

abesalad [331id

IR AU LR T RO TR T RTIN DRI LR | R

00'Z9'L6E'T

009Z'16€C

00'080°Z66'C

00'0PE'EB6'C

00vvy' L6L°L

05708'678

0L €E5'8ZY €L

anjep JoyIel

0202 ‘L€ UoIeW yBnoiy 0202 ‘1 Uoren
poLiad Juawaiels -l_

€E10L'6LET

(9'968'E8E'Z

00001'886'C

£8°02G'166'C

00°066'Z8L'L

££'€88'978

0/'EES'8LY'EL

siseg 1503

0000°000°00Y'C

0000'000'00%'Z

0000°000°000°€

0000'000°000°€

0000000008

0000000058

000/ €€5'8Z¥'EL

PISH suun
/saieys

0z/\/L 0/ L1 QL0
H3dVd TN0J 3SId
119dE9LET ONIHYI10 SIS TYNOILYN

0Z/vz/9 07/64/L 014
434vd IN0J 3SId
YO4ZNEYYL 31d TVILNIGNYd

0Z/10/90 0Z/Sz/e QL0
H3dvd 1N0J 3SIa
6142H9¥5C 00 1TVM AINSIQ 3HL

07/17/S00/v/e a10
H3dvd IN0J 3S1d
(VAERIA4 74 NOILV40dH0D 1V11dVd 38330 NHOP

02/%/561/8/8 10
H3dvd TIN0J 3SIA
¥¥39€€268 03 110342 HOLOW V10AOL

0/l 07/2d/1 010
43dvd N0J 3SId
800MIS8SY HIX3 TV ININILNOJHILNY

ydooy 1ajug/iade |, wwo) asig

801S.191€
»xxdJIMS INFWIDVNVIN HSYDssx
L5#1-10 011041404 1AQD SN

SOLS/L91E S01704140d HSYI 11SNIALITICH
spun{ ey Asuowy
13ynuapy awep Jassy
Jassy

sjuajeainby yses @ yses .M_

JuSWAlelS UN0JdY

o1joj0d |ediduid - [1e1eq 1essy

1S10 NOILY2IHH! 3TVANVO
awep uneasy Il

soquiny Junoasy g 0“ : z @



LL/y

1140 p abieq

020Z/1€/€0 0z0Z/62/Y

76'S0L'8L %LSL %0CL 056666 00'0SL'666'7 90'€65'086'Y 0000°000°000°S GIMPBEELE %0000°0 2S10 SNOJ X8 NV013IWO0H 1034

0z0z/1¢/€0 0zouzYy

ZEY58Yyl %651 %LLEL 0966 66 00'9£9'660'6 ZL'€T8'190'6 0000°000°00L'6 PXAPBEELE %0000°0 3S10 SNOJ X8 NY0TINOH 1034

020Z/1€/€0 0z20Z/ LMY

625827 %691 %c0C 0/66 66 00'856'66€’L ZLLBE'9BE’L 0000000°00%'L GSAVBEELE %0000°0 I$10 SNOJ X8 NVO013IWOH 1034

0207/ 1£/€0 020Z/SUy

99°'060°09 %65'L %i’S 0/66'66 GL988'VLLE 05971'EL'E 0000'000'SLLE BOAVBEELE %0000°0 3S10 SNOJ X8 NY07 3INCH 1034

020Z/1¢/€0 020ZEWY

LLLLB'ET %651 %91°C 086666 00°'0/6'66Y'L 85¥6L'96Y'L 0000000005t GNAVBEELE %0000°0 9S10 SNOJ X9 NY013N0OH 1034
junoasiq - Aouaby 1r0g S

awoou| fenuuy PlaIA oljojuod jo  padlid ajeq anjep iayiey siseg }s0) PieH syupn Jaynuap| awep 1assy

pajewnsy waiuny abvuasiad  [oad /saieys 1assy
suonebijqQ JuawuIaAon -I_

§60L0°82E$ %eL'L %LT Ty 0Z 061'€EE'6Z$ 0£'0£0'S8Z 623 sjuajeninby yseg 1 yseJ |01

0Z/€1/807/61/2 AL0

020%/1€/€0 ¥3dvd TN0J 3S1a

1565507 %EY L %65°€ 09/5'66 00'00v'68Y'C Yy rr'esy’c 00000000052 90HVIZIBL ANVdAWNOD V103 V200 3HL
1daoy Jaxug/1aded |, wwo) 3sig

awoauj jenuuy PRI ofjoiiod jo  padild ajeq anjep jexiey siseg 1s0J PIeH suuf Jeynuap| awey jassy

paewsy Jualny ebriaaiay  jooud /saieys jassy

0202 ‘1€ UOIElN YBNOI3 0Z0Z ‘| UDIEW
poLiad Juswajels .I_

sjuajeninby ysey B ysey -I_

jusuwalels JunoJdy

(penupuod) 0Jj0JHOd [edIOULd - [1B}2Q 19SSV

1S10 NOILVOIHHI 3IVAAVO
awep unoaay Il

ssquny wnoasy I 0“ : z @



1/s

TR TR LR R LRI LI LR

00'528'292$ %E6C %6k 05'928'€36'8S 01’121’ 196'88 suonebilq syesodio) Jejo)
020Z/1¢/€0 0202/51/01 %0SZY
00°0050LL %0C Y %8LE 0ovl'10l 00'0v9'629'C 001Z€'159'C 0000'000°009'C LNHHSZ99Y 310N 09 B ISYHI NVOHOW dl
020Z/1€/€0 0207/L1/8
0000059 %09¢C %l9€ 0£81°00L 00'6/9'705°C 00'526'86Y'C 0000°000°005°2 800HI0¥90 9%0009Z LNT X8 NLW YHOA MIN XNVE
0Z0Z/1€/€0 0Z0Z/G1/90 %S¥'Z G10Z/£1/90 410
00'SZE'SY %Sy %L9C 0641004 05'L1E°E8't 0LZ65'Lv8'L 0000'000°058'L OXvHSL2LL SILON HS INI SAS 03S1D
070%/1€/€0 0202/21/90 %001C
00000z %0L°¢C %88C 001866 00°002'966'L 00'079'€96'L 00000000002 83v44ZeLl YNINVEILID
spuog ajesodio)
ewaauf [enuuy PIsiA oljogiod jo  paalid aeQ anjep Jaxyiep sfseg jso) PI3H suuf 1synuapy auwep 13ssy
pajeunsy waling afvuasiad  feolid /saieys jossYy
suonebiqg ajei0d10) .I_
erLiIZ'obts %65} %20°0b SLOLS'ELL'LZS 8568L'LLY (TS suopeblqQ Jawwanoy jejo)
0207/1€/€0 070z/81/5
ELv0roLL %8S 'L %6001 016666 00'0/£'666'9 00'0€0'£96'9 0000°000°000°L 8ZMVBEELE 900000 2S10 SNOJ %8 Nv013WO0H 1034
Junoasiq - Asuaby 1a09 SN
awoau| [enudy PleIg oljojuod jo  padlld a1eg anfep JoyIe siseg jsog Plol suun synuspy awep jossy
pajewnsy waiuny abpuasiad  [o3iid /saleys jassy
suonebiyqQ Jwawuianoy H_
(penuuoo) OJ10JLIOd [ediound - [1e1eq 19SSV
0202 ‘L€ yorep ybnoayl 0202 ‘| YoseN 1810 NOILY 91441 3TVANVO
polad juswalels -\l_ auey yunooay i

uauwdlels Wunoddy

1aquiny wnodoy I ou D z @



/9

1140 9abed

8306b'69L'LS %69'L %00'001L 66'650'€0b69$ S'b8€'297'69% SaNjep JunoJay |ejo]
8706'691'1$ %69'L %00°00L 56'650'50L'69% 8b'b8E'297698 oljopod [ediduig [el0]
05 LEV'SELS %8l %LLY 0SZLLZLEES 05 LU L'TYE'ES SanLNadg SN-UoN [ejeL
0Z07/LE/E0 \Z02/02/v
05 LEV'E2 %B0°E %60°L 0£50°L0L 05'/68'L5L 05°226'29L 0000700005 691651790 %05Z1'€ J 8 V1L09S VAON INVE
0207/1£/€0 L20%/ Wy
00000°GL1 %08Y %89°E oLLLZ0L 00'S/Z'155'T 00622'185'C 0000°000°00S'Z 8A3GVLEVE %0009'7 38 N1 00 094V4 STIIM
spuog ayesodio s - uoN
awoau| [enuuy PISIA oljojuod jo  padild azeq anjep wyIeW siseg 1509 DIeH suun 13nnuapy awep jossy
pajewnysy walny ebewoaiad  foalld /sa1eys jossy
$anuna3as SMn-uoN -\I_

0202 ‘1€ Yosep ybnouyl 0goe ‘1 Uorew
poLiad Juswolels .I_

JuUSWaleIS JUN0JJY

(penunuoo) OJjOJ1I0d [edidulid - |1elaq 19SSy

1510 NOILY9IHYI FTVANVO
awey wnoaay

soquiny unoa3y | 0& D z @



L/t

1140 £ abied

(00°609'666'2) 00'509'666'C
¥Z L0961
¥2'L09'6L {vZ L09'61)

0£'9ES'60L'LLS 0008

siseg 1503 yseg [ediourld

%00°00L

%Z6'S
%8076
anfep joyieyy puog jo alieaaisd

ZeIveLLEs

SOLS/1S1E

SOLSLLSLE

Ioypuap|
jossy

§2925'16'55%

05ZLLTIEE
GL€SE'799'25
anjep jaxie

81'058°€£8'55S

05 [yL'vveE'e
87°€0L'68Y'2S
syseg 1509

0202 ° L€ UdJB YBNOIY} 0202 ‘1 UOJEN
pouad Juswajlels -H_

jusuwalels UuNnoddy

% 001 1V INTVA HVd 000000

0z/z0/en 31vQ 3avdl

07/20/¢  &/20 9 NOINIWOQ-0INOHOL
40 3N VA 4V 000'000'€ AIHNLYIN - suondwapay/salimen

07/62/7 01 0Z/1/2 NOHd GN3AIAID
£S#1-19 1SNI IIWW 1A09 AL1130H
NO 03NHV3I ANICGIAIQ 40 1413034 HSVD  PUSPIAID

0Z/¢0/E0 31VA 3avHL
£G#1-10 LSNI LINIA LAO9 ALIT30H
40 SLINN¥Z L0961 0ISYHIHN S8SBY3Ind

uopduasag  AuABIY

0U/Tu/eo
0Z/20/e0

04/20/E0

aouejeg Buluuibag

e

000°000'G26'5S

000'000°052°€
000000'6/9'ZS
anfep 184

anjep 9aeq

jlelo@ uonoesuell

lelol

18AQ pue S1Baj Auam |
sieaj U3a)auIN-03-udanl]
$Jeaj Usayno4-0}-us ]
620¢

820¢

£202

920¢

G202

ZAVA

XA

€20e

1202

0202

Il_

1510 NOILVOIHHI 3TVANV0
aurey yunoaay I

saquiny neasy Il

Arewwnsg Ajunjey puog

94N (o)



/8

11408 obed

(00°000°005°2)

00000°00%"

(7 ¥95'66E"L)

00°000°000°€

siseg Js0g

00'000'0052 SO1G/181€
(00°000°006°2)
{00°000'00%'1) SOLSLLOLE
95°GEY B89IIEVLEY
7 yISBEE L 8900EV/E9
{00°000°000°€) SOLGLLALE
00'568 720V61168
yse) jedjouid lsynuap]
jassy

0202 ‘1€ YoJsep ybnouyl 02oe ‘1 UdseiN
pouad Juawolels -H_

jusuwialels JUnoddy

02/Z1/€031Va 3avdl
£S#1-19 LSNI IIWA 1A09 ALN30H
40 SL1INN000'00SZ O10S  s8les 0Z/z4/e0

LINNOJJV TIV4INID

10141810 NOILYOIHH ITVANVO LLESXX

HIISNVHL IHIM

ANV ALINNAWOI AFTIVANVO0 0L 0IVd
ININISHNESIO HSYD  seueldyauag oo stuawheq 0Z/L1/€0

02/90/€0 31vQ 3aVHL
£5#1-10 ISNI LIWIN 1A09 ALN30A14
40 SLINN000'00%" L GISYHOUN S8SEY3INd 0Z/90/€0

% 001 1V INTVA HVd 000°00%'L
020Z/9/€ 3NA INTVA Hvd 00000 L NO Ad 1$/0
0z/90/€ /20 d00J LN TvHNE TLVN

NO 03INHV3I 1SFYILNI 40 LdIF0FY HSVI 188181 0Z/90/€0

% 001 1V INTVA BVd 000°00%'L

02/30/€0 31vQ 3avYl

0Z/90/€ /30 d00J LN TvHNY TLYN
40 INTVYA HYd 000°00¢' L 034NLVIN - suondwapay/salimeny 0Z/90/€0

0z/z0/e0 31va Javil
£S#1-10 LSNI LXAW 1A09 ALN3AI4
40 S1INN 000'000°€ QISYHIUNG S8SeYdInd 02/20/€0

%001 1V INTVA Hvd 000°000°
0207/2/£ INA INTVA B d 000'000°€ NO Ad L$/0
0Z/z0/s  4/30 9 NOININOQ-0LNOHOL

NO GINHV3I ISIHILNI 0 LdIFDIH HSVD 1s3lauy| 0z/z0/€0

wondiasag ApAOY ajeq

(penuguoo) IR}OQ UOIIOBSURLL

1S1a NOILYOIHE! 3TVANVO
awep unoday [

iaquin unoasy i wu : Z @



1L/

11406 9bed

05/89'866'C

(05'£89'866'C)

vy rresy'e

(v yvv'esr'e)

00000°005C

(90°€66'L8V°7)

siseg j1soJ

(T RITH LRI

% GZ956'66 LV INTVA HVd 000'000°€

INISLINYYN 1¥9019 dN0YDILII HINOYHL A3SYHIHNd

0/61/€0 31V0 IAVHL

0Z/97/8  &/20 NI3LSNYIEIONVITIV
40 INVA 4V d 000°000°€ QISYHIHNA  S8seynd 02/61/€0

0/61/€0 31v0 3AVHL

£6#1-10 LSNI LYWIN IAQD ALI3QIS
40 SLINNG/89'886Z 010 SaeS 02/61/€0

% 9LLLLEEB6 1Y 3NTVA HVd 0000052

(AN) SHOVS NVINA10D HDNOYHL 03SYHIYNd

0Z/L1/E031v0 3dvHL
0z/clL/8 4/20 03 V102 V309
40 3NTWA HVd 0000052 GISYHIENd  S8SBYDINg 0z/LL/ED

0Z/L1/€0 31VE JavHL
£G#1-10 LSNI LININ LAGS ALIT3AH
40 SLINN vYviy'E8y'Z 010S  S9Ies 0/L1/€0

0Z/91/€0 31V0 3AvHL
£5#1-10 LSNI IIWIN LAO9 ALIT30I4
40 SLINN000'00S'Z Q3SYHIHNG  S8seyding 0Z/91/€0

% 001 1V INTVA HYd 0000052

020z/31/ 3INA INTVA HYd 000°00S'Z NO Ad 1$/0

{05°£89'866'Z) £SAVS8L0
05'£89'866'Z SOLGL19LE
(o vi'e8y'z) 9aHvIZIBL
AL AR S0152191€
(00°000°005'Z) SOLG/LLE
690071 997238810
90'€66'L8Y'Z 999739810
yseg jedouily Jyop]

jassy

0202 ‘L€ Yosepy ybnosyl 0202 ‘1 Uosen
poliad 3uswole}s -I_

JuSWalelS JUN0JdJY

0z/91/€ /30 4400 NIF ZNVITV

NO Q3INHV3 1S3IHIINI 40 LdiFDF4 HSVD 1s8i8l| 0z/91/€0
% 001 1¥ INTVA HVd 0000052
0z/91/€0 31v0 I0VHL
0Z91/¢  4/30 dHOJI NI ZNVITY
40 INTVA ¥Yd 000°00G'Z AFHNLYIN - suondwepa/seimen 0Z/91/€0
vopduaseg Apanay azeg

(penuiuoo) IR}O(Q UONdBSURLL

1S10 NOtLYDIHHI ITVAAV0
awey wnovay

soquiny uineday I 0“ D z @



(A

114003 abed

% 001 1V INTVA Hvd 000'000°€

0202/Z/€ INT 3NVIVA HYd 000'000'E NO Ad 1$/0

0Z/97/¢ /0 NI3LSNHIFGIONVITIV

0SZIE'L €SIAKS8LO0 NO 03INHV3I 1SIYILNI 40 LdIFIFH HSVI

% 001 LV INTVA HVd 000°000°€

0Z/9Z/e0 31v0 30vHL

0Z/97/¢  4/20 NIFLSNH3IEIINVITTV

(05°£89'866'2) 05/89'866'C €SIAVS8L0 40 IN1VA 4vd 000°000°€ A3HNLVIN

% EEEEEE0966 LY INTVA YV d 000'000°

JNOINI A3XI4 HONAT TTIHHIW HONOYHL 0ISYHIHNd

0z/5Z/£031v03aviL

0Z/10/9 4/20 03 LIVM A3NSIA

00°001'886'C {00001'886°Z) 614249V 40 INTYA 4V d 000°000°€ ISYHIENd

0Z/52/¢0 31v0 JavHL
£G#1-10 LSNI DIWIN LACY ALN30H
00'000'000°€ {00°000°000°E) S01SZ191E 340 SLINN 000°000°€ 3SYHIYNd

% 001 1¥ 3NTVA HVd 000°000°€

0207/S7/£ 3NT INTVA HYd 000'000°€ NO Ad 1$/0

07/Sz/e  4/30 GLTX8 IIYVNDIVIN

(991661 GYIN£0955 NO 0INHV3 1SIHILNI 40 Ld13034 HSVD

% 001 1V INTVA Hvd 000°000°€

02/5¢/€0 31vQ 30v4l

0Z/57/¢  /0QL138 IHVYNOIVIN

(€£°€80'786'Z) eECE80'Y86'Z SHIML09SS 40 3INTVA HYd 000'000°€ GIHNLYIN

0Z/57/€0 31¥Q 3avdL
£5#1-10 1SNI LMW LAQ9D ALT301
(00°001'886'Z) 00°001'886'C SOLS/19LE 40 S1INN00L'886'Z 0108

siseg 1503 yseg jedjouird leypuap| venduaseg
ssy

1sasay) 0/92/50

suondwapay/sapimepy 02/92/£0

saseyaingd 02/5Z/€0

saseyaing 07/Sz/e0

isalaly| 0z/52/€0

suondwapaty/salnep 02/5¢/€0

$8jeg oe/se/en

Anngay aleg

(penunuoo) |1B}9Q UOIIOBSURBI L

0202 ‘1€ Yorep ybnouy) 0goe ‘1 Uore 1S1Q NOLLYSI4HI 3IVANVO

pouad juawaiels .l_

JUSWIale]IS JUNO0JJY

awep wnosay i

1aquiny wnoaay Il wu : z @



i

1140 11 obed

IR TR NTIE LRI L RITR L RIIN L RLIR L]

— sussul ou —

8r'v8E'792'69%

0008

aouejeg buipuz

(28 15V’ Lrb'Z$)

00000048

(€£'528'995)

(€8°025'166'Z)

£8'025'166'C

00°000°000°€

siseg }s0J

0008

{00°000'0£5)

[TYLLE

££'G78'999

€805'166'C

{€8°025'166')

(00°000°000°€)

yse jediauild

SOLS/19LE

LMJdESLET

LMIdEILEY

SOLSLI9LE

02/0€/€0 31v0 30VHL
LS#1-12 ISNI LYW LAQD ALIT30I
40 S1INN 00005 Q3SYHIENd

% 001 1V 3INTVA ¥V d 000'0L5

020Z/08/€ 30 INTVA HYJ 00005 NO Ad 1$/0
0Z/0¢/€ ¢/00 HNIHYID SI3S TYNOILVYN

NO 03INHV3 LSIHILNI 40 1dI3I3H HSVI

% 001 LV INTVA HYd 00005

07/0€/€0 31¥0 3avHL

0Z/0¢/ 4/90 9NI¥YITI $I3S TYNOILVN
40 INTVA Hvd 000°0£5 03HNLYIN

07/£z/€031v0 3avYL
£G#1-10 ISNI LIWW LAOD AL13014
40 SLINN £8'025'L66'Z 0108

% L9ELLL'66 LV INTVA HYd 000'000°E

JNOINI 03XI4 HONATTTIHHIN HONOUHL 03SYHIYNd

LNITZerve

S016/191E

soypuap)
Jossy

0202 ‘1€ Uose ybnoiyy 0202 1 UdeN

poliad Jusawalels .I_

usauwajels 1UnoJVY

07/9z/€0 3LvQ 3avHL
0¥/1Z/S 4790 03 TVILdvI IH3IA NHOP
40 3NVA HVd 000°000°€ GISYHIYNd

0Z/9z/€0 31v0 3avHl
£S#1-13 ISNI LYWW LAOD ALIT3AN
40 SLINN 000'000°€ A3SYHIHNA

uonduasag

saseyaingd

1s8ia1u|

suondwapay/seuimely

saes

saseyaing

saseyang

Ayanay

Auapoy 1oN

0z/0e/e0
07/0g/€0
02/0¢/€0

02/17/€0

0¢/Lz/e0

02/92/€0

"

1S10 NOILYI14HI 3TVANV0

(penunuod) |1B}9Q UOlldesuel ]

awey unoasy i

saquiny Juncaay Il 0u 3 Z @



California State Treasurer

Fiona Ma, cPA

Local Agency Investment Fund
P.O. Box 942809
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001

April 06, 2020

LAIF Home

PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

TREASURER
1205 EAST "F" STREET
OAKDALE, CA 95361

Account Number:

March 2020 Statement

Account Summary

Total Deposit:
Total Withdrawal:

Tran Type
Definitions

0.00 Beginning Balance:
0.00 Ending Balance:

169,625.39
169,625.39



California State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, cPA

Local Agency Investment Fund April 06, 2020

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT #22

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361

Tran_Type
Definitions
Account Number:
March 2020 Statement
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

41,283.52
41,283.52



Ca}ifomia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund April 06, 2020
P.O. Box 942809 _
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home

PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT #41

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361
Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

March 2020 Statement

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

178,551.21
178,551.21



Cajifomia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund April 06, 2020
P.O. Box 942809
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home

PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT #45

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361
Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

March 2020 Statement

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

232,219.77
232,219.77



Ca_iifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund April 06, 2020

P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT

DISTRCT #46

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361
Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

March 2020 Statement

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

342,653.17
342,653.17



quifomia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, cPA

Local Agency Investment Fund April 06, 2020
P.O. Box 942809
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home

PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT #51

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361
Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

March 2020 Statement

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

372,583.71
372,583.71



Ca.iifo rnia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, CPA

Local Agency Investment Fund April 06, 2020
P.O. Box 942809
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home

PMIA Average
Monthly Yields

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT #52

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1205 EAST F STREET

OAKDALE, CA 95361
Tran Type
Definitions

Account Number:

March 2020 Statement

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance:

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

56,764.84
56,764.84



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

OAKDALE IRAIGATION DESTRCT

AR o

g‘&\“

MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2020

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
March 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
REVENUE DETAIL
OPERATING EXPENSES SUMMARY

CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES

H— |
s

¥
§
B

.

PAGE NO.




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Accrued Interest
Annexation fees
Agricultural water fees
Property Taxes Receivable
Due from other governmental agencies
Miscellaneous
Domestic water fees
Inventory of materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Due from Improvement Districts
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Accounts receivable - delinquencies
Due from other governmental agencies
Annexation fees receivable
investments in Tri-Dam Project
Capital assets:
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Pensions
Bonds
Total deferred outflows of resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Payable from nonrestricted assets
Accounts payable
Due to other governmental agencies

Accrued salaries, wages and related benefits

Unearned revenue

Deposits payable

Due to Improvement Districts

Claims payable

Interest expense payable

Long-term liabilities, due within one-year
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Long-term liabilities, due in more than one-year, net

Pensions
Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

e o
\SS
For the month ending March 31, 2020
2020 2019 Change
$ 3416939 $ 4439882 $§ (1,022,942)
1,656,824 1,534,992 121,832
69,262,384 61,801,322 7,461,062
171,900 146,560 25,340
885,704 859,906 25,797
447,149 440,609 6,540
442,287 1,088,155 (645,868)
8,154 4,470 3,684
4,954 286 4,667
679,055 608,192 70,864
217,348 205,768 11,579
214,296 12,983 201,312
77,406,994 71,143,127 6,263,868
10,922 2,761 8,162
122,374 101,475 20,899
13,221,546 14,107,249 (885,704)
45,331,728 40,167,235 5,164,493
13,427,559 27,775,065 (14,347,506)
96,870,166 76,770,220 20,099,945
168,984,294 158,924,006 10,060,289
246,391,288 230,067,132 16,324,157
667,856 667,856 -
3,111,921 3,275,706 (163,785)
3,779,777 3,943,562 (163,785)
250,171,065 234,010,694 16,160,372
186,794 1,337,415 (1,150,621)
- 1,534,992 (1,534,992)
931,689 1,011,590 (79,901)
275 46 229
172,232 160,503 11,729
72,268 - 72,268
1 4,800 (4,799)
830,000 795,000 35,000
2,193,258 4,844,345 (2,651,087)
25,994,072 26,987,444 (993,372)
3,986,214 3,986,214 -
29,980,286 30,973,658 (993,372)
32,173,544 35,818,005 (3,644,459)
33,849 33,849 -
33,849 33,849 -
85,655,824 61,665,511 23,990,313
1,619,737 1,534,992 84,745
130,688,111 134,958,338 (4,270,226)

$ 217,963,672 $ 198,158,840 $ 19,804,831

Page 1



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT b i b
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Month Ended March 31, 2020 A

% of 2020
Budget
Current Month YTD Actual 2020 Budget Budget Remaining Remaining
Operating revenues:
Agricultural water deliver charges (base rate) $ 123 $ 2,056,534 $ 2,047,500 $ (9,034) 0%
Water sales 202 699 6,575,000 6,574,301 100%
Domestic water delivery fee 14,023 36,926 225,000 188,074 84%
Improvement District Fees 948 6,906 65,000 58,094 89%
Other water related revenues 9,667 40,462 65,000 24,538 38%
Total operating revenues 24,963 2,141,527 8,977,500 6,835,973 76%
Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance 269,065 672,145 5,081,200 4,409,055 87%
Water operations 223,618 350,826 3,227,786 2,876,960 89%
General and administrative 131,568 952,225 5,445,575 4,493,350 83%
Depreciation / amortization 314,977 779,862 3,500,000 2,720,138 78%
Total operating expenses 939,229 2,755,058 17,254,561 14,499,503 84%
Operating Income (loss) (914,266) (613,532) (8,277,061) (7,663,530) 93%
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
County property tax appropriations 11,189 848,658 2,650,000 1,801,342 68%
Net Investment income (loss) 51,310 7,074 1,200,000 1,192,926 99%
Gain (loss) sale of assets 21,724.00 4,625 - - 0%
Debt service interest - (85,878) (1,011,000) (925,122) 92%
Tri-Dam Project distributions - 7,660,000 11,500,000 3,840,000 33%
Tri-Dam Power Authority distributions - 3,219,500 3,000,000 (219,500) 0%
Other non-operating revenue 500 1,500 6,000 4,500 75%
Total non-operating rev. (exp.) 84,723 11,655,479 17,345,000 5,689,646 33%
(829,543) 11,041,947 9,067,939 (1,973,884) -22%
Capital contributions - - - - 0%
Change in net position $ (829,543) $ 11,041,947 $ 9,067,939 $ (1,973,884) -22%
Capital expenditures & debt obligations $ 441,496 $ 1,726,714 $ 9,059,375 $ 7,332,661 81%

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY Page 2



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

REVENUES - DETAIL
For the Month Ended March 31, 2020

QAMDALE PIOATON (RFACT

e

% of 2020
Budget Budget
Current Month YTD Actual 2020 Budget Remaining Remaining
OPERATING REVENUES
Agricultural water service fees
Tier 1 $ 123 1,820,069 $ 1,811,000 $ (9,069) 0%
Tier 2 - 236,465 236,500 35 0%
Water sales
Tier 1 2 - 575,000 575,000 100%
Tier 2 B - 650,000 650,000 100%
Local out-of-district 200 699 350,000 349,301 100%
Out-of-district - - 5,000,000 5,000,000 100%
Domestic water sales 14,023 36,926 225,000 188,074 84%
Improvement District fees 948 6,906 65,000 58,094 89%
Miscellaneous revenues
Service Charges & Penalties 9,667 40,462 65,000 24,538 38%
Total Operating Revenue 24,963 2,141,527 8,977,500 6,835,973 76%
NONOPERATING REVENUES
County property tax appropriations 11,189 848,658 2,650,000 1,801,342 68%
Investment earnings
Investment earnings (loss) 51,310 7,074 800,000 792,926 99%
Other Interest income 400,000 400,000 100%
Gain (loss) sale of assets 21,724 4,625 - (4,625) 0%
Tri-Dam Project distributions - 7,660,000 11,500,000 3,840,000 33%
Tri-Dam Power Authority distributions - 3,219,500 3,000,000 (219,500) 0%
District rental properties 500 1,500 6,000 4,500 75%
Total Nonoperating Revenues 84,723 11,741,357 18,356,000 6,614,643 36%
Capital Contrilbutions - - - - 0%
TOTAL REVENUES $ 109,686 13,882,884 § 27,333,500 $ 13,450,616 49%

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

Page 3



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
OPERATING EXPENSES SUMMARY
For the Month Ended March 31, 2020

AR T Pt

N

% of 2020
Budget Budget
Current Month YTD Actual 2020 Budget Remaining Remaining
OPERATING EXPENSES
MAINTENANCE
SSJID Main Supply Diversion Works $ - - 3 50,000 $ 50,000 100%
North Main Canal Maintenance 3,623 23,237 253,000 229,763 91%
South Main Canal Maintenance 3,409 19,353 203,100 183,747 90%
Irrigation Water Lateral Maint-North Side 86,110 204,050 1,572,600 1,368,550 87%
Irrigation Water Lateral Maint - South Side 91,630 205,238 1,355,000 1,149,762 85%
Pumping Plant Operations and Maintenance 10,837 25,225 458,100 432,875 94%
Drainage System Maintenance 7,076 8,890 230,300 221,410 96%
Building and Grounds Maintenance 21,219 66,320 355,000 288,680 81%
Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 45,161 119,832 604,100 484,268 80%
TOTAL MAINTENANCE 269,065 672,145 5,081,200 4,409,055 87%
WATER OPERATIONS
Domestic Water System Maintenance 10,775 42,066 280,300 238,234 85%
frrigation Water Operations - North Division 101,825 146,940 1,435,986 1,289,046 90%
Irrigation Water Operations - South Division 109,793 154,824 1,439,700 1,284,876 89%
Drainage Water Operations 297 5,564 18,600 13,036 70%
Water Measurement Management 928 1,432 53,200 51,768 97%
TOTAL WATER OPERATIONS 223,618 350,826 3,227,786 2,876,960 89%
GENERAL, ADMINISTRATION, AND DEPRECIATION
General and Administration 131,568 952,225 5,445,575 4,493,350 83%
Depreciation and Amortization 314,977 779,862 3,500,000 2,720,138 78%
TOTAL GENERAL, ADMINISTRATION,
AND DEPR. 446,545 1,732,087 8,945,575 7,213,488 81%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 939,228 2,755,058 17,254,561 14,499,503 84%
NONOPERATING EXPENSES
Interest expense - 85,878 1,011,000 925,122 92%
TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES - 85,878 1,011,000 925,122 92%
TOTAL OPERATING AND NONOPERATING
EXPENSES $ 939,228 2,840,936 $ 18,265,561 $ 15,424,625 84%

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

Page 4



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ended March 31, 2020

£
E
H

i

o

GL ACCOUNT 2020 YTD
NO. GL DESCRIPTION PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTUAL 2020 BUDGET
00-000-15200-00 Capital Work Capital construction projects (Water Resources Plan)
Canal and Lateral Rehabilitation $ 14,768 $ 1,600,000
Domestic Water Projects - -
Flow Control and Measurement Structures 1,143,657 1,800,000
Irrigation Service Turnout Replacement 21,031 300,000
Main Canals and Tunnels Improvement Projects - 100,000
Miscellaneous in-system improvements - -
New and Replacement Groundwater Wells - -
North Side Regulating Reservoir - -
Outflow Management Projects 31,435 100,000
Pipeline Replacement 402,339 1,200,000
Reclamation Projects - -
Subtotal for Water Resources Plan Improvements 1,613,230 5,100,000
South Main Canal - Segment 4 (2019 Budget) 62,474 -
Operating Headquarters Design 13,539 1,300,000
Canyon Tunnel-Joint with SSJID (900k x 28%) - 252,000
Joint Main Canal Stabilization project (800k x 28%) - 224,000
Asset Management Program Implementation 31,108 100,000
South Main Canal - Tunnel 9 downstream design - 100,000
North Main Seepage Mitigation Project-90% Design - 50,000
Ag Pump Replacements - 50,000
1,720,351 7,176,000
00-000-15183-00 Miscellaneous Construction Equipment
MI-T-M Air Compressor w/ Electric Start 3,000
Wacker 5.6 KW Generator w/ Electric Start 2.7k) 2,700
Wacker 2" Trash Pump 1,700
Wacker 3" Trash Pump 2,700
Husqvarna cutoff saw 14" 1,200
Wacker Vibratory Rammer, Gas 3,175
Wacker Vibratory Plate, Gas 2,500
Multiquip Concrete Vib. w/21' Shaft 1,150
Multiquip Concrete Vib. w/14' Shaft 1,200
Portable Auger (SCADA) 4,680 5,000
4,680 24,325
00-000-15184-00 Autos/Pickups/Trucks/ Trailers
1/2 Ton Pickup 2WD (DSO) 29,000
1/2 Ton Pickup 4WD (DSO) 32,500
1 Ton Utility 4WD (C&M) 45,000
Heavy Duty Transport (Truck w/Lowboy) 316,000
Dump truck, 3-axle (diesel) 245,000
Water Truck (2000 gal) 145,000
Water Truck (3600 gal) 192,000
- 1,004,500
00-000-15187-00 Office and Engineering Equipment
Network security hardware (c/o from 2019 Budget) - 8,000
Computer upgrades and replacements
HP Mini (4 @ 1,025 ea) 4,100
EliteDesk (6 @ 975 ea) 5,850
HP Workstation upgrade (4@ 2,400) 4,800
HP Elitebook upgrade (1*1,800) 1,683 1,800
1,683 22,750
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS AND PURCHASES EXPENDITURES 1,726,714 8,227,575
00-000-22320-00 Current portion - COP Debt - 830,000
TOTAL CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES 1,726,714 9,059,375

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

Page 5



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Item Number: 7
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION FOR THE DESIGNATION OF
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT’S AGENT FOR FILING OF APPLICATIONS WITH
THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (Cal OES)
FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
RELATED TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND ANY FUTURE DISASTERS FOR UP
TO THREE YEARS

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Adoption of the Resolution Authorizing the Chief Financial
Officer and the General Manager to Act as Agents for Oakdale Irrigation
District for all Matters Pertaining to State and Federal Disaster
Assistance

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

In accordance with section 502 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance
Act, eligible emergency protective measures taken to respond to the COVID-19 emergency at the
direction or guidance of the public health officials may be reimbursed under the Federal Emergency
Management Agency’s (FEMA) Public Assistance Program. Federal assistance is administered
through the Public Assistance Division of Cal OES.

This resolution authorizes the Chief Financial Officer and the General Manager to submit the required

information to receive any available State and Federal support as reimbursement for disaster related
expenses.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS:
» Resolution 2020-NIL

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




STATE OF CALIFORNIA Cal OES ID No:
GOVERNOR'’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES
Cal OES 130

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-NIL

DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT’S AGENT RESOLUTION
FOR NON-STATE AGENCIES

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District:

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer and General Manager are hereby authorized to
execute for and on behalf of the Oakdale Irrigation District, a public entity established
under the laws of the State of California, this application and to file it with the California
Governor's Office of Emergency Services for the purpose of obtaining certain federal
financial assistance under Public Law 93-288 as amended by the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, and/or state financial assistance
under the California Disaster Assistance Act;

WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District, a public entity established under the laws of
the State of California, hereby authorizes its agent to provide to the Governor’s Office of
Emergency Services for all matters pertaining to such state disaster assistance the
assurances and agreements required,

WHEREAS, this is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and future disasters
up to three (3) years following the date of approval below.

Upon Motion of Director, seconded by Director, and duly submitted to the Board for its
consideration, the above-titied Resolution was adopted this 5th day of May, 2020.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

CERTIFICATION

|, Lori Fitzwater-Presley, Clerk to the Board of the Oakdale Irrigation District, do hereby
certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a Resolution passed and approved by
the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District on the 5™ day of May, 2020.

Lori Fitzwater-Presley
Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Item Number: 8
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: APPROVE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT'S COMMITMENT TO FUNDING FOR THE
60% DESIGN LEVEL FOR THE CANYON TUNNEL PROJECT

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Oakdale Irrigation District's Commitment to Funding for the 60%
Design Level for the Canyon Tunnel Project

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

As part of the April 16, 2020 Tri-Dam Board Meeting an update and presentation was conducted on the
progress of the Canyon Tunnel Project (Project). The Board was provided with the 30% Design Report,
Preliminary Geologic Data Report and the 60% Design Proposal from Condor Earth Technologies. The
60% Design Proposal (attached) includes three tasks; Survey & Geologic Mapping, Subsurface
Investigation — Drilling & Geophysics, and 60% Design.

The total for the 60% Design is $1,037,737 with OID’s 28% share totaling $290,556. Included in the OID
Budget for 2020 was a line item of $252,000 for this Project. It is anticipated based on the schedule
provided in the 60% Design Proposal that approximately $210,000 of the OID share will be spent in 2020.

The current 1986 Agreement — Operation and Maintenance of the Joint Supply Canal outlines the OID’s
28% obligation based on design flow of the Joint Supply Canal (JSC). Staff from both Districts are
currently finalizing a term sheet specifically for this Project that will be drafted by SSJID’s legal counsel
into an Agreement and then brought before both District's board for formal adoption. Once the Project
Agreement has been adopted, staff will then prepare a separate Agreement updating the terms and
conditions for the JSC.

Contractually, Condor will be working under the direction of SSJID. OID staff have been and will continue
to be involved with this Project participating in site visits, document review/comment and attending team
Project meetings.

Staff recommends that the Board approve its commitment to funding for the 60% Design of the Project.
FISCAL IMPACT: $210,000 (anticipated costs for 2020)

ATTACHMENTS:
» Condor’s 60% Design Proposal

Board Motion:
Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




CONDOR EARTH

21663 Brian Lane, P.O. Box 3905
Sonora, CA 95370

209.532.0361

Fax 209.532.0773

CO N D O R www.condorearth.com

Condor Proposal No. 4320F1

April 9, 2020

Forrest Killingsworth

South San Joaquin Irrigation District
PO Box 747

Ripon, CA 95366-9750

Subject: Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel
South San Joaquin Irrigation District — Joint Supply Canal
Calaveras County, California

Dear Mr. Killingsworth:

Condor Earth (Condor) is pleased to present this Proposal to provide continuing engineering services to the
South San Joaquin Irrigation District (SSJID) for the proposed Canyon Tunnel project. The tunnel will
convey water along the SSJID Joint Supply Canal, and it will bypass a portion of the existing canal from
Goodwin Dam to the Access Ramp, over a length of approximately 11,800 feet. Condor previously
performed geologic hazard studies and found that the part of the canal that Canyon Tunnel will bypass is
susceptible to significant geologic hazards.

Condor’s previous work for the proposed tunne] project was performed between May 2019 and March 2020
and included an engineering study at the preliminary (30 percent) design level. Our deliverables for the
previous work included the following:

e Preliminary Geologic Data Report, Canyon Tunnel Project
e Canyon Tunnel 30 Percent Design Report

e Preliminary Construction Cost Estimate, including conventional (roadheader) and Tunnel Boring
Machine (TBM) tunnel excavation alternatives

Condor’s previous engineering study included surface and subsurface exploration to evaluate the geologic
conditions at the site. We evaluated potential tunnel alignments during that study, and we propose to
continue site investigation and engineering design work along the preferred alignment we identified in the
30 Percent Design Report.

Condor understands that SSJID would like to present this Proposal for continued design of the Canyon
Tunnel to the Board of Directors for acceptance and approval. This document presents our proposed scope
of services and fee estimate for Condor’s work during the 60 percent design phase.



Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel — South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 2

The primary components of the 60 percent design phase are as follows:

e Obtain additional site and subsurface data for the proposed tunnel alignment; this information will
augment the data obtained during the 30 percent design phase, and will also be used in later design
phases and during preparation of construction-phase Contract Documents,

e Optimize the downstream tunnel portal location and perform preliminary engineering design of the
portal shoring wall,

e Perform engineering analyses for the upstream portal location alternatives and perform preliminary
engineering design of the preferred alternative,

e Develop a conceptual plan and design to reestablish SSJID water service currently supplied by the
Ram Pump,

e Update the design Drawings, Design Report and Geologic Data Report,
e Prepare a preliminary Geotechnical Baseline Report Outline,
e Update the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost Estimate, and

e Evaluate a scope of services for the 90 percent design phase, including preparation of 90 Percent
Contract Drawings and Documents, discussion of potential tunnel construction means and methods,
and Condor’s assistance with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) assessment and land
entitlement (as needed).

The scope of the site and subsurface investigation work proposed herein was developed to target “gaps” in
subsurface data from the previous site investigation phase and to provide data for design of improvements
at the portals. We anticipate that if the site and subsurface investigation work proposed herein is approved,
no further site investigation work will be needed for final design. We will continue to perform the work in
phases to control costs and allow SSJID to determine how to move forward with project budgeting,
additional design and permitting phases, and tunnel construction.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES

Condor based the following proposed scope of services on our previous design work for the subject project,
and our experience working on geologic hazard studies, tunnel design and tunnel construction. We expect
that SSJID and OID staff will participate as the design work proceeds. Condor will perform our work in
tasks, we will meet with your staff at key milestones, and we will adjust our work scope as the project
develops to best suit your needs.

The subsections that follow present a summary of our proposed scope by task.

Task 1 — Survey and Geologic Mapping

Condor will perform the following:
e Task 1A — Survey Fieldwork
e Task 1B — Geologic Mapping Fieldwork and Test Pits

The subsections that follow summarize our work scope for these subtasks.

CONDOR




Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel — South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 3

Task 1A — Survey Fieldwork

The current site topographic information was obtained from an aerial topographic survey performed in
2006, and there is currently no topographic data over a portion of the preferred tunnel alignment. This task
will include Condor’s land surveyor subconsultant, Erik Ohlson & Associates, performing an aerial
topographic survey of the project area to update the site topographic information. Our land surveyor
subconsultant will also place stakes every 200 feet along the preferred tunnel alignment to be followed by
steel T-posts set by SSJID personnel. The stakes will be landmarks for our geologic mapping fieldwork and
for determining locations for subsurface investigations.

We propose to investigate the stability of the fractured rock slope immediately above the right abutment of
Goodwin Dam. Our land surveyor subconsultant will perform an additional, low-elevation drone flight to
obtain photographs of the slope that will be used to generate a 3D model. The model will be used in
conjunction with geologic field mapping and subsurface investigation data to evaluate the stability of the
slope.

Condor’s land surveyor subconsultant will also provide the as-drilled latitude, longitude and elevation of
the tops of each of the core holes. The cost estimate described herein also includes time for our land surveyor
subconsultant to locate the boundaries of the 25-acre tract related to the historic water rights associated with
the Ram Tunnel Pump Agreement.

We anticipate that the survey fieldwork described above will be performed during the spring/summer of
2020.

Our land surveyor subconsultant will return to the site after the start of the 2020/2021 winter canal outage
to perform a ground topographic survey of the upstream portal area near Goodwin Dam. The ground survey
will include locations and dimensions of pertinent site features, including the existing canal head gate
structures, Goodwin Dam and other features that will be considered during the design of the upstream portal
and canal diversion wall.

Task 1B — Geologic Mapping Fieldwork and Test Pits

Condor will perform detailed geologic mapping of exposed geologic conditions at the upstream and
downstream portal locations. We propose excavating several test pits within the proposed downstream
portal and laydown area to assess the shallow subsurface geologic conditions and evaluate the
design/construction requirements for the portal wall. The cost estimate included herein assumes that SSJID
forces will be available to perform the test pit excavation. We anticipate 2 days of site time for a Condor
geologist, SSJID operator and excavator/backhoe to perform the test pit work.

We understand that the upstream portal area will be cleared of vegetation, soil and loose rock during the
Joint Supply Canal maintenance work that is currently scheduled to occur during the 2020/2021 winter
canal outage. Condor will visit the site after the work has been completed to perform detailed geologic
mapping of the upstream portal area.

We will use the information to optimize the locations of the portal walls and the sites of the proposed
subsurface investigations to be performed during Task 2, including seismic survey transects and core holes.

CONDOR

-



Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel — South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 4

Task 2 — Subsurface Investigation — Drilling and Geophysics
Condor will update our work plan for Task 2 during our work in Task 1, if required.

Condor will perform the following work under Task 2:
e Task 2A — Coordinate and evaluate fieldwork
e Task 2B — Geophysical fieldwork
e Task 2C — Drilling fieldwork
o Task 2D — Core sample review and laboratory testing
e Task 2E — Data compilation and reporting

e Task 2F — Groundwater level monitoring
The subsections that follow present a summary of our scope of work by subtask.

Task 2A — Coordinate and Evaluate Fieldwork

Condor will prepare a field work plan for SSJID’s use to coordinate site access with the landowners. The
field work plan will include the anticipated schedule, duration and scope of field activities as well as a brief
discussion of the anticipated vehicle traffic at the site.

Prior to performing the geophysical and drilling fieldwork, Condor will prepare a fieldwork safety plan and
we will re-stake the boring locations based on our findings during our geologic mapping fieldwork (if
necessary). We will also obtain a drilling permit from the Calaveras County Environmental Health
Department.

The current subsurface exploration plan assumes that the upstream portal of the Canyon Tunnel will be
located a short distance downstream of the existing canal headgates at Goodwin Dam. The proposed
upstream portal core drilling locations described under Task 2C are designed to investigate the geologic
conditions that would be present along the upstream portion of the tunnel alignment, as currently designed.
We will evaluate upstream portal alternatives and revise our subsurface investigation plan, if necessary.

Prior to scheduling the upstream portal drilling fieldwork, we will coordinate a project meeting with
SSJID/OID personnel to discuss the preliminary findings of the geophysical and drilling fieldwork that we
anticipate will be performed during the summer of 2020. We will also discuss our recommendations related
to the location of the upstream portal. The upstream portal drilling fieldwork will not be feasible until the
start of the 2020/2021 winter canal outage in November 2020.

Task 2B — Geophysical Fieldwork

Condor and our geophysical subconsultant recommend performing additional ground-based transient
electromagnetic (TEM) geophysical surveys. Condor’s subconsultant, Green Geophysics, will perform the
fieldwork and data interpretation. The findings from the previously performed TEM surveys will be updated
as necessary based on our knowledge of the site geology and the existing core hole data. The locations of
the proposed core holes will be updated based on the findings of the TEM surveys, as necessary, to target
any anomalous geologic information pertinent to tunnel design and construction.

Condor also recommends performing several seismic refraction surveys at the site. The seismic surveys
will focus primarily on the downstream portal location, where the geometry of the geologic contacts is
complex. The findings of the seismic refraction surveys will inform the location of the downstream portal

CONDOR



Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel - South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 5

as well as the locations of the proposed core holes near the portal. We will use the data to optimize the
location of the downstream portal with respect to constructability and functionality.

The findings from the TEM geophysical surveys may inform the desired locations of the core holes above
the tunnel alignment. Therefore, we will first perform the geophysical surveys, perform initial evaluations
of the geophysical data, and re-assess and update the boring locations that we selected during Task 1.

Task 2C — Drilling Fieldwork

Condor proposes drilling a total of 14 geotechnical exploration borings, as shown on the attached Figure 1
— 60 Percent Design Exploration Plan. The purpose, location and methodology of the proposed borings is
as follows:

A. Eight (8) vertical core holes (B-10 through B-17) along the tunnel alignment accessed from the
existing ranch roads on site. The proposed depths range from approximately 190 feet to 430 feet,
and each boring will be drilled to a depth corresponding to approximately 20 feet below the
proposed tunnel invert.

B. Two (2) vertical core holes (B-18 and B-19) of approximately 30 feet (each) at the downstream
portal area to refine the downstream portal wall design.

C. One (1) horizontal core hole (B-20) of approximately 200 feet in length along the tunnel alignment
at the downstream portal area to estimate the geologic conditions present along the downstream
portion of the tunnel.

D. One (1) horizontal core hole (B-21) of approximately 200 feet in length along the tunnel alignment
at the upstream portal area to estimate the geologic conditions present along the upstream portion
of the tunnel. The core hole will be drilled through the canal sidewall from within the canal.

E. One (1) vertical core hole (B-22) of approximately 85 feet in depth to be drilled from above the
tunnel alignment at approximate tunnel Sta. 10+00. There is no vehicle access to this site, so we
propose mobilizing a helicopter-supported drill rig to perform the drilling in this location. This hole
is important to help understand the tunneling conditions (e.g., hard or soft rock) along the 2,000-
foot tunnel segment beneath the canyon slope.

F. One (1) vertical boring (B-23) from within the canal at the upstream portal location to refine the
foundation design of the canal diversion wall. The boring methodology may be hollow stem auger,
percussion, or rock core and will be drilled to approximately 30 feet in depth through the existing
canal invert.

The locations and depths of the borings detailed above may be revised slightly based on our geologic
mapping work and the findings of the geophysical surveys. The current cost estimate includes a budget for
up to approximately 3,050 total linear feet of drilling for the 14 borings. For each of the eight vertical core
holes above the tunnel alignment (Item A above), our drilling subcontractor(s) will install piezometer
casings and a subconsultant will perform downhole televiewer surveys. Each of the borings in Items B
through F will be backfilled with cement grout and no televiewer survey will be performed.

Based on the findings of our upstream portal alternatives analyses (included under Task 3) and SSJID/OID
input, we may revise the scope of the subsurface investigation near the upstream portal.

Condor will oversee the drilling, place the retrieved core samples in wood boxes and log the conditions
encountered. We will deliver the core to our office for further evaluation.

CONDOR

o



Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel — South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 6

Condor will install groundwater level data loggers in each of the eight borings listed in Item A. The
equipment will continuously measure and log groundwater levels every hour. Condor will use the
groundwater level data for our design work and tunnel contractors will require the data to bid project
construction.

Condor will store the core at our office until we complete our preliminary design work, for a period of
approximately 6 months. At the end of that time, we will deliver the core to SSJID’s storage container
located at the proposed tunnel site for long-term storage. We recommend that the core samples be stored
for future reference, for viewing by bidding tunnel contractors, and for potential construction disputes.

Task 2D — Core Sample Review and Laboratory Testing

Condor will review the core at our office, select specimens for laboratory tests and deliver the samples to
our laboratory subcontractor(s) for testing. We will invite SSJID/OID personnel to visit our office to review
the core with the Condor team.

Condor will use the test data for our design work and tunnel contractors will use it to bid project
construction.

Task 2E — Data Compilation and Reporting

After we complete our drilling, Condor will share the drilling data with our geophysical subconsultant. The
drilling results will be used to correlate the geophysical data with the actual encountered ground conditions
in the borings. The geophysicist will prepare a draft report.

We will compile the various data and schedule a meeting with SSJID/OID personnel to present the
following:

e Core logs

e Updated site plan showing the boring locations and geophysical survey locations

e Laboratory test reports (if available)

e Draft geophysics report

e Updated tunnel profile and cross sections with interpreted geologic contacts along the tunnel
alignment

e Updated portal configurations with interpreted subsurface geologic conditions

During the meeting, Condor will discuss primary tunnel design and construction issues based on our data
evaluation.

Task 2F — Groundwater Level Monitoring

Under Task 2F, Condor will return to the site on up to two occasions to retrieve the groundwater level data
from the data loggers. We will update our Preliminary Geologic Data Report with the new groundwater
level data.

Task 3 — 60 Percent Design

Coincident with the first phase of subsurface investigation and prior to scheduling the drilling fieldwork
near the upstream portal, Condor will perform preliminary analyses of the upstream portal alternatives. Our
preliminary analyses will focus on evaluating three upstream portal alternatives: one upstream and one
downstream of the existing canal diversion headwall, and one upstream of the dam. The analysis will

S

CONDOR



Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel — South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 7

consider several factors including risks related to potential slope failures above the dam and risk mitigation,
canal diversion operations, access for maintenance, and estimated construction costs. We will present our
initial findings and solicit SSJID/OID input at a meeting, and reevaluate the upstream portal subsurface
investigation scope as necessary.

After the subsurface investigation and laboratory testing is complete, Condor and our specialty tunnel
construction subconsultants will compile and evaluate the retrieved data and information. Our work will
include updating the current tunnel design drawings to include the additional subsurface data, portal shoring
wall design, and preliminary tunnel and portal wall details. We will also update the construction cost
estimate that was provided as part of the previous 30 percent exploration and design phase.

Condor will include a preliminary plan and design for reestablishing SSJID water service that is currently
provided by the Ram Pump. The plan will be intended for SSJID to present to the landowners.

The exploration data accumulated during the 60 percent effort will be added to the preliminary Geologic
Data Report (GDR) prepared during the 30 percent design work. We anticipate that the GDR will be nearly
complete at that point, unless additional exploration work is needed after the 60 percent design work. The
60 percent work will also include initial scoping of the Geotechnical Baseline Report (GBR). The GBR is
a construction contract document, and it is appropriate to prepare this document during the 90% design
effort. Including an outline in the 60% effort is intended to introduce the GBR concept to SSJID (GBRs are
standard practice in the tunneling business to manage owners’ risk). The GBR specifies the ground
conditions that the construction contractor will assume for his bid and contract purposes; the GBR includes
geologic data interpretations and forms the basis for any Differing Conditions Change Orders or Claims by
the contractor. The GDR is a factual report that includes all of the exploration data and is typically a
reference document to the construction contract.

Condor deliverables under this task will consist of updated reports and drawings, including:

e Conceptual design plan and drawings for reestablishing SSJID water service to replace the Ram
Pump

e Canyon Tunnel 60 Percent Design Report
e Updated Canyon Tunnel Geologic Data Report
e Preliminary Geotechnical Baseline Report Outline
e 60 Percent Design Drawings
e Updated Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs
We anticipate providing an updated Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs that includes

separate cost estimates for conventional tunneling methods (e.g. roadheader) and Tunnel Boring Machine
(TBM) method.

Condor’s team will meet with SSJID/OID staff to present the deliverables and discuss our preliminary
designs. We will assist SSJID in evaluating options, develop a scope of services for design work for the 90
percent design phase, solicit SSJID/OID input, and prepare a proposal for Condor’s services for the 90
percent design phase. Condor will present the findings of the 60 percent design effort and the proposal for
90 percent design services to the Board of Directors.

CONDOR



Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunnel — South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 8

FEE ESTIMATE

The attached Table 1 presents an itemized and approximate breakdown of our fee estimate by task. A
summary of fee estimate by task follows:

Task 1 — Survey and Geologic Mapping $65,147
Task 2 — Subsurface Investigation $820,280
Task 3 — 60 Percent Design $102,894
5% Contingency $49.416
Total Fee Estimate with Contingency $1,037,737

Condor will charge our fees on a time-and-expense basis according to the attached Schedule of Fees.

If we mutually agree that the project needs engineering work from Condor that is beyond our scope of work,
we will perform such work on a time-and-expense basis in addition to our estimated fee.

Condor’s Schedule of Fees is subject to change over time. Condor’s fee estimate is valid for 120 days
following the date of this Proposal. After this time, we should review and update our estimate, as necessary.

SCHEDULE

The attached Project Schedule — Gantt chart shows just over 1 year from Notice-to-Proceed to 60 percent
documentation deliverables. Many of the dates used for the schedule are tentative due to weather conditions
and subconsultant/subcontractor availability. Condor will update our schedule as the project progresses.

Following fieldwork planning activities, we anticipate beginning survey and geologic mapping fieldwork
(Task 1) within 4 or 5 weeks following your authorization to proceed, pending site access and weather
conditions.

The subsurface investigation will occur in two separate phases:

e Geophysical survey and drilling fieldwork above the tunnel alignment and at the downstream portal
will occur over an approximately 14-week long period beginning June 2020, including 2 weeks for
geophysical survey work and 12 weeks for drilling fieldwork

e Dirilling fieldwork near the upstream portal area will occur over an approximately 3-week long
period beginning in November 2020

We anticipate that laboratory testing and data compilation (Task 2E) will require approximately 8 to 10
weeks to complete following the completion of the second phase of drilling fieldwork. We will perform
groundwater level monitoring (Task 2F) intermittently after the piezometers are installed and anticipate
piezometer installation being completed in September 2020.

We will schedule a meeting with SSJID/OID personnel and our specialty subconsultants at our Sonora or
Jamestown office to view the retrieved core samples collected in our November drilling efforts in December
2020. Preparation of 60 percent design documents should be completed within 90 days following our
meeting with SSJID/OID personnel tentatively scheduled for December 2020.

CONDOR

.,



Proposal for Engineering Services — 60 Percent Design
Canyon Tunne! — South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Page 9

TERMS AND AUTHORIZATION

Please authorize our work by sending Condor a contract that incorporates the proposed scope of services,
assumptions and fee estimate contained in this Proposal. We will review the contract terms and negotiate
revisions, if required.

CLOSURE

Condor appreciates the opportunity to submit this Proposal and we look forward to working for you on this
project. Please contact us if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

CONDOR EARTH

-~

é\&s, CEG No. 18 Andrew S. Kositsky, GE No. 2532

Principal Tunneling Consultant Senior Geotechnical Engineer

Kyle White, CEG No. 2725
Associate Tunnel Geologist

Attached: Figure 1 — 60% Design Exploration Plan
Table 1 — Fee Estimate
Project Schedule — Gantt chart
Prevailing Wage Schedule of Fees

X:\Projectid000_prj\4320 SSJID\4320F1 Canyon Tunnel 60%\Contracts_Proposals_CE\P 20200409 SSJID Canyon Tunnel 60 Percent Design docx

CONDOR



e
=E J
JHNOH [HLI¥VI HOANOD

W WOINEE S NI B SO S S LAY B (7 58 S0 M TRV 20 SEqTI0) NTestaad w Wy el SETals WL AV G 6 B MY TACERORS 0 ERRVEROCR Seamwle W S0 M SIEMLW SSw 0 O AR WO TP B L U0 EXNGu MOSTASETY bty KR rh SMiTne sl S TENTTOS JJ

HOUNOD,

NV1d NOLLYHONdX3
NSIS3Q %08

T3ANNNL NOANVD

1O1HLSIA NOILYOIHHI

NINDVOS NVS HLNOS

i

ﬂ‘|

I

NOILINHLSNOJ 404 LON

I

ATINO M3IAJY NV'Id &0d

Avpeun md 50050 BE-I0-E beruvd LOErRiisstsg G0 DedhOvITLIONTY N ey vele LOITFONSS SEEVV ST RO AR 1

020C0¢'¢0

AHVYNINI3Hd

ANIWJOTIAIA N9IS3a

EESCaC MOILYION TR MUY 4 vl
(TR ATSNOIATN) SNOLIYDOT SNRIOE -8
aN3e31 \

(3R SO YA MO
1S NITWOS
[ —_|
o® oor °




A 4409 [T MO QIS SOF0T0 L@mIUNIE [ROOED FeRdoi) REeIIOC00 I L Ui | J0TEATISS OZEMGd D00MmS iy
ONI 'SIIDOTONHIIL HLYVI JOaNOD

LEL'LE0'L EE
9It'6Y § AousBunuo) %g
17€'386 § 1201 103f01g
1ZE'886 3 7 = o8Toz8 S Lrrse S HALL AG [FIOIYRG
B |
El E 0066 I 089 SAINS PIELL [E101anS
005°I [ 005 = (919 JOnn Ul "SI3I0) J[QELI0) S35
[ 9¢ = : 9% (3 ¥ ! £
SIS L6 [ 85 ¥ 1 z 59 o1 T 089 8 9 T 583
TIL'FY SIFHES Lewee S
1tz ] L
000°T 00T
00079
000°C =
D00'5ZS DO0'ST
669021 S
086'98€ 10| S
Ll
PBLGL FRL6L = S
L68'6€ S = L6W6E__ S
TSE ZbsT S95'szT o5l [ 851 091 066 Bl 06 [ 591 1L [ 334 [FUOISEj0L [8I0IqNS
056 Z£1 00TL 001 91 174 (14 104 = (1] s WUEISISSY QANBISTUTIRY
OLL oL [T [ [0] - 0 s
0159 9 1 8I t T 3 T [ ] ¥ + 01§
[l Tl 1 Tl b T ¥ [ 3 1T 9 0018
009°L ¥5 i T ] 0 LIS
[CII¥4 2 N z Tl = z 0 538
010°SZL 976 o1 6L (3 O [ 009 09 [ (55 [3 [ [ GEIS
DOGSL 05 =! [ S| FKE ] o ¥ 0T ot i (5] ir 0E ] 0518
096 91 = S 0 5 0 5§31
067 8C 8¢l SISl S| St 1 [ [ [ ¥ Z (] g ) T <08
06651 s €Tl o 22 3 ] £} 54 i 91 [ B v T T 0<1S
OLL'SY 5 661 s| s8 1 T 91 [2 3 g [ [ 0T r OEcs
S (810, SANOH [¥I0L PIE0MES| Smop | memumy | Smodsy  feer r.lrol M..u_M uEEw pouprd |00 [@I0)qUS | SINOH Brddayy fanmg wayInoy SHEIA TYNOISSTIOUd
EI09q) Lt pompmo)y |y -z g0y ofiapan e
s SR =g ~gEwy VZAI=L felolqng -g1i=L ol arey
=3z YL - YL
g%— NS, Fupddegy % pur L3ang
STHTEL HE BN
0707 '6 114dy

NBWISY 3]
uB1sa(f JUIIIAJ (9 - SINAIIS BursRuIBuy
puuny, uokug)) - 1dysi( uonedru] uinbeor ueg yinog
1 ATAVL



1 98eq

C Ajuo-ysiuiy — Auo-uoneing ) 3SEL PAIIIBY|  e— Aewwing
3 Ajuo-uelS T jsel [enuely @ UOISI|LIAl |BUIIIX] ® QUOISAIN 0z/6/¥ Ny :1eq
_— S59U50Jd  e— Aewwng jenuepyy N—————" Auewiwing saljeU|  EEEETE— SYse] [eusaixy wdg | "PIWS uBisaq %09 aIrss :13foid
* oujjpea(q mE===—= dnjj0y AJEWIWINS [ENUBIA & 3UOISIIA PAIIBU|  Dyrer—y Aewwns 19f0)d T Jsel
mt_._Oumco_.Z |2A37 J21EMPUNOIY - {7 YSeL hi7
— TZ/TT/E YL 1Z/T/T 14 M 0T (Su)(jup Yiog pue ge)} ezep |je 3j1dwo) ov
s 0Z/97/0T WO 0Z/92/0T UCIN Aep T s15Aydoan oy ejep puas Jopuo) 6
s/ot ¢ 0Z/S/0T UoW  0Z/S/0T UOW Aep T sunsa 8€
Suipoday pue ejeq - 3z ysel /€
Cm— TZ/T/THd 0Z/L/TT UON sim {Sunup pug) suoday qe 9¢
h 3 ozfvfernd og/v/er v Aep T (8uiup puz) sqej apisino o3 sajdwies diys SE
e 0Z/0Z/TT 14 0Z/ET/0T UOW M9 (8unup 1sT) suoday qe vE
x 0z/6/0T 14 o0z/6/0T 144 Aep 1 (8ui)|Lip 35T) sqe| apisino o3 sajdwes diys €€
s/or ¢ oz/s/oT oW 0Z/S/0T UoW Aep 1 8unasiy (43
| Sunisa)] el pue MalAlY 340D - AT YSeL 1€
| TEfefran)  1Z/1fEuon shep 7 J3ulejuod a8e.0]s QIfSS 01 52102 I3AI]RQ os
L] 0Z/TT/TTPaM  0Z/6/1T UOW shep € 193d0d1|3H 2103 T P
[ ] OZ/IT/IT PaM 0Z/E/11 uolW shep 8 2104 SN Sa10D ¢ 87
I pzfez/eany  OEfIE/eanl Aep T 5138307 e38Q MD ||RISU| 1T
=} 0z/1z/6 VO  0Z/vT/6 UOW shep g Jerod §q 52109 € 9z
E——— 0Z/11/6 14 0T/0Z/LuoW Mg uawWUSIjY [2uUn| $310) 8 oz
3uug - Dz Asel 124
| —] 0Z/02/1T 44 0E/92/0T UOW uow voday |euld W3L X4
e [ 0T/LT/L M4 0T/TT/9 YO uow T woday ereq WL [44
= oz/ot/L 14 0ZfET/9 uowW M g Hoday uonoelay 74
== ozfer/old  0T/8/9uowW Mz UOI10B1J3Y pUB NT] 10} YJ0MPp|al] 0z
s31sAydoa - gz ysel 6T
oT/0T ® oz/et/otMd4  0Z/9T/0T M3 Aept P [eH0d SN 03 Joud) Buiaai 1a2l0.d 1
(pam— _ 0Z/ST/SHU4  02/0T/¥ YO uow g s)wIad 0t
=] oz/ifs w4 0Z/OT/v vON M Z ueld Aajes 21is 91
e=a 0z/T/sud  0Z/0Z/v uoW M T - ue|d JIoMm ST
3}JoMmp|3l4 3)en|eA3 13 31eulploo) - ¥ Jsel I
e TZIT/ENYL  0Z/0Z/yUoN  Suow LT u013e3135aAU| BIBHUNSYNS - T JSBL €1
b 4 ozfor/trenL  0Z/6/1T vol shepz  (4om asueuauiew wolj} gnid-ysod [enod SN 1
I ogfefeanL  DZ/T/9vON shep z M31) AIrSS YHMm siid 1591 I
oz/ezfs 4 0Z/ET/S PAM shep € Suidden pjsl4 01
Buiddey 21801099 - gT Jsel 6
I 0Z/¢Z/TTUOW  0Z/T/TT Yo Aept |e1Od SN - € AL PdId Py
h o 02/L/6 Yo 0z/tfe von Aep T Bu|yup 3sod suonedo| de - z duy pla14 N
== oz/ez/sud  0Z/T1L/S uow M g 212y gz/auosq/udily [auuny - T duy plaiy 9
Yompjatd Asnns - v ysel 5
P T p——— ozfor/rranL 0zZ/IT/Suow  suow g9 Suiddely 2180]039 pue ASAINS - T jseL v
s/s @ ozfsfsanL  ozfs/sant Aep T pa32014 01 310N <
at/y @ oz/ot/pnuL  OzZfoT/vnuL Aep T $1019241Q 4O PJROg 0} UOIIRIUISId z
s/v ¢ 0zZ/e/y MUl 0Z/6/v NYL Aep T |euld jesodold %09 1
R UHEA] RKzenuef | JPGWAAGN | — iaquiaydas I zﬂq._l ﬂ..ﬂ' oiEpy ﬂql_ tﬂgﬂmj SUIEN el n_u__




7 98eyq
C Ajuo-ysiulg e Auo-uonesng NSEL SANIBU|  fi— Aewwng
3 Aluo-uElS Jsel |enuey ) 3UOISI|IIA [BUI3IX] Y auoIsAPN 0z/6/t Nyl :31eQ
—_— TE LR W—— Aewwns [enueiy  A— N A S BAIDRU|  [EEE—— SISE] [BUIBIXT M yds | MP3YAS UBISaQ %09 AINSS 1133j01d
S aujpesq === dn|0y AJEWWNS [ENUEW JUOISIIA SAIIEUY|  Drese—— Aerwwng ool IS ysey
oz/s ¢ | TzZfoz/snul  TE/oz/snuL Aep1 uonejuasald dunsa pieog 95
= 1Zfot/suow  TZ/e/S UOW shep 9 |esodoud |eutd 56
o TZ/OE v 144 Te/e/v 4 shep g |esodoud Yeiq I
uglsaq %06 4oy |esadolg €5
Life @ TT/LT/EPAM  TT/LT/EPOM Aep T Sunsaiy s
Ce— Te/1Z/rPam  0Z/LT/TENYL shep 06 alew}s3 3507 UOIPNIISUC) 15
e —— 1Z/TT/P POM 0Z/LT/TT Nyl shep 06 sduimeaq udisag 05
————— TZ/1Z/b POM 0Z/LT/TT nYL sAep 06 uoday ejeq 6
P —— T¢/17/v PO 0Z/LT/TT ML shep 06 uyoday udisag [
I 0Z/9T/TT P3M 0Z/9T/ZT PAM Aep T p 13qWIBAON M3IASL BuRSIW v
I 0z/0z/s YL 0Z/07/8 YL Aep 1 Sunaayy (UG SN oy
[ [ 0z/L/8 14 0z/0T/L 14 shep TZ siSAfeuy SaAIBUID|Y [EUOd Wwealisdn Sy
ugisaQ %09 - € Jsel 144
I _ 0Z/9T/TT UOW 0Z/9T/TT UON Aep T s9uIpeas Z HSIA S £
I | 0¢/8Z/6 UOW  0Z/8Z/6 UOW Aep T sSulpeal T YSIA NS s
| RN | e | AiEnuer | J3GUINON | JFqUIRIGas | a._ﬂq_ R | [TEY[T] USTuL] uEs]  uopeng| SWeR ysel] [ Iclw_




CONDOR EARTH
PREVAILING WAGE SCHEDULE OF FEES

2020
STAFF MEMBER RATE PER HOUR ($)
PRINCIPALS/PROJECT MANAGEMENT
SENIOT PLINCIPAL .. vvsrieseeeeisiaceerrieiere sttt st snse bbb eSS 240.00
Principal Tunneling COnSUIANL..........cooiuimiiiiieieirine sttt st 230.00
Principal ENgineer/GEOlOZISt .........cuiuiuririueriemssseismssrissse ettt sttt 215.00
PrOJECE DITECIOT ... ceeaiscecrecesisiasissise e st ras et s s bR A eSS s 205.00
CONSLIUCHION IMANAZET ... euveeeereeeensianereeerassssssessasse s et sra s st b R RS e A e AR SRRt b s s 200.00
PrOJECt/SENIOT IMANAZET ....cvuveceveeisiistsisesesessessesssrssetis st es e et e R4 b RS 180.00
TECHNICAL
Senior GeotechNiCal ENZINEET ........ieeveereririiiniietitei e st et et ra st 205.00
Certified Hydrogeologist/Engineering GeolOgiSt.......coeuvrieurneriercrniinirriiiissiniins st s 195.00
Senior Geologist/Engineer/Environmental Specialist .........ccccvvceiiiiiiiic e 185.00
Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) SPecialist ........oeveieiererrrrnmreneneiiiiiiiii s e 150.00
Resident Construction INSPECLOT .....cveverimirreisiisiiriseei sttt e s s s st 150.00
Associate Geologist/Engineer/Environmental SPecialist ... 150.00
Staff Geologist/Engineer/Environmental SPECialist.......c.ovvvreereniiiiiiiiiiec e 135.00
Field Environmental Specialist (GTOUP 2) ....ooueuirrremimstatarninmsesessietsenmssessisiii st e ss s s es 135.00
ENINEETINE ASSISTANT c....cucvsiviieiriissrsirsesesanss st s s sssesesees st s s s 110.00
DLy o1 e ¢ WO O TSP ISP R RIS SE SRS 100.00
MATERIALS TESTING*
Material Technician (Group I1#*)....c.ccovv i e s 140.00
Material Technician (Group 2##).......ccocviriiiiiinnne i s e s 135.00
Material Technician (GrOUP 3%%)......covr i e s s s e s s 130.00
Material Technician (GroUP 4%%)....ccovi i e e s 125.00
MTSI Project/Laboratory MaNAGET ...........vrivereuemueiemnsssssrsmsessesseseessmssnsississ st sassan s seastsbs s ssasss s ssssassssssse 125.00
Senior Materials Technician (NON-PW).....cccvrimiiiiiiii sttt et s 95.00
SUPPORT STAFF
Senior Project AGMINISITALOT.........cviuiriirerirereirssrsst st e s 130.00
AdMINISIAtiVE SPECIALISE . .cvueeeueverieerreectiritiisirt st ettt bbb 105.00
PrOJECE COOTAIMALOL .. .evvvvraeeesierisiisascassassa e rse s st ssss st bR s 105.00
TECHNICAL ElQITOT ..cuveveivietireeesceerieresesesaesesaesresseeseeseentsresaesassaease s e b esasssarere s s et s s s e s asess bt e s s sesremssadsa b s e s n st n b s e et e 77.00
AQMINISTIALIVE ASSISTAIL ....vcviirtiireireietisreeereeerereseareereesaessrresnesaessessessmssesbesrsssanas s east o bssatesesentsstsstesatsatsssssraenassrarss 72.00
MISCELLANEOUS

Overtime (all Saturday work is OVETHINE) covvvocerriiaresnasssrasessssessesmsssnssnssssensensessensssssssssscsssessesesenaennens (1.3 tiES rate)
Double-time (all Sundays and HOlidays) .........vcumursrmsssasesseesssnsssmsamsassssssssssssssessssssssssnsssssssasssssn (1.7 times rate)
Shift Pay*** (Night Shift) eereeeetesesssssssessanraseeseesaressssmsssiesiansnsssisssnsassnensrssersnsnsisssssnnnnnaisnnnes 1.3 — 1.7 times rate)

LItIZAtION SUPPOTE ..vucvvreeirrierirecrstsisire s mssssse s e rsa st bbb 300.00 — 400.00
NON-LABOR CHARGES
VEHICIE CRAIZE: ...vvereveereereereeeerietrteneerses st stnst s s e bbb bbb bbbt $85 per day

Laboratory Charges per Condor Laboratory Fee Schedule
Billable Field Equipment per Condor Billable Field Equipment Schedule

OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES
Billed at cost plus 10% and includes such items as travel expenses, equipment rental, laboratory fees,
subcontractors, postage and freight, subcontracted printing or reproduction fees, supplies, etc.

CONDOR



CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS GROUP CLASSIFICATIONS

Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 Group 4

ASNT Level II-IIT  AWS-CWI Geotechnical Driller ACI

DSA Masonry ICC Certified Structural Inspector ~ Soils/Asphalt Drillers Helper

DSA Shotcrete NICET Level III Earthwork Grading ICC Fireproofing

Lead Inspector Shear Wall/Floor System Excavation and Proofload

NICET Level IV Inspector Backfill Testing

NDT Level Two Building/Construction Inspector NICET Level II Torque Testing
NDT Level One

**(California Prevailing Wage increase effective July 1, 2020 for Group 1 and Group 2 (All Shifts) of $3.45; Group 3
of $2.58; Group 4 of $1.84. Condor bill rates for these staff types will increase by these amounts on the effective date.

***Shift Pay: A night shift is a shift which commences after 2:00 p.m. or before 4:00 a.m. during any twenty -four
(24) hour period commencing at 12:01 a.m.

)

CONDOR

X:\Office\Forms\Contracts\Fee Schedules\SSJID Schedule of Fees\2020 Fee Professional Consulting SSJID.docx



AGENDA ITEMS
ACTION CALENDAR

BOARD MEETING OF
MAY 5, 2020




BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
ltem Number: 9
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION
ACCEPTING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE OPERATING
ENGINEERS LOCAL UNION NO. 3 BARGAINING GROUP EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1,
2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the Resolution Accepting the Memorandum of Understanding
with the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 Bargaining Group
Effective January 1, 2020

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

At the November 19, 2019 Board Meeting, the Board approved the bargaining proposal for the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Non-Exempt Confidential Bargaining Group. OID and
the bargaining group met and conferred, agreeing to the following:

Three (3) year contract effective January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022

Cost of living adjustments
o Three and a half percent (3.5%) effective January 5, 2020 and January 3, 2021
o Three percent (3.0%) effective January 2, 2022

Equity adjustments as proposed

Health insurance rates as approved by the Board on November 19, 2019

Dental and vision insurance rates as approved by the Board on August 20, 2019

Per Board Policy, a Board approved resolution is required to adopt the MOU. The MOU has been
approved by the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 Bargaining Group and is being circulated for
signature. A fully executed copy will be provided once executed.

FISCAL IMPACT: Under Board approved budget

ATTACHMENTS:
» Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 Memorandum of Understanding
> Resolution 2020-NIL

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAKDALE IRHIGATION DISTRICT

N\

MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
AND ITS
OPERATIONS EMPLOYEES

January 1, 2020
Through
December 31, 2022




Table of Contents

PURPOSE OF THE MEMORANDUNM. ... ..ottt ee s ssia s ssssssasnasanaanes 3
SECTION 1 RECOGNITION ....ouueiiiiiiieiie et iibiis it ee e e e e e e 3
SECTION 2 COMPENSATION ....coiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeee ettt 3
2.1, Wage INCrEASES........ieiiiiiiiitiie e s 4
2.2Wages - GENEIal ..........coeviiiirnriiiiiiii e bisasbirssesbbaaasie s sossrabadaans bbb anais 4
2.3 Hours = Distribution System Operators (DSO) ........ccccooiiiviiriciiiiiiiinieinnn, 5
A B © V=Y 5 (111 1= TP U TP TP TR U PP 7
2.5 Temporary ASSINMENT..........ovviiiiiiiiii e 8
2.6 Call Back/Rest Period. ........c.uuuiiuiiiiiiiiieiiiiisse s sssnesrsssasansas s ssesseas 8
2.7 JUFY DULY oottt s i s S A SR SRS RIS 9
2.8 Payroll DedUCHONS............coc i ccsiiadosstsibasesddasensiassastanedibossbnviasins 9
2.9 REUIE@MENL.........cooeeee e e e AR SRR R SRR SRRSO 11
2.10 Mandatory Direct DePOSIt..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 12
SECTION 3 INSURANCE ...t b e e e e 12
3.1 Health, Dental and Vision INSUrancCe ............ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiinin e 12
3.2 State Disability INSUFANCE .........oevmiiiiiiiciiiie e 13
3.3 Workers' COmMPENnSatioN ..o iiiiiiriiiras e e e 13
3.4 Availability Of Plans..........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiii i 14
3.5 LIfe INSUMANCE ... ..ot et s s b s sa b 14
3.6 Long Term Disability.........c.c..ccomriiimeciniineisssdsioss sidannsvnsssduasvsss sauiasnbisiiis 14
3.7 Employee Assistance Program (EAP) ... 15
SECTION 4 LEAVES/HOLIDAYS . ..ot rriisses e et 15
A1 VACAHON.......uuciiieeiiie e e e s e e e e e e e e er e eeae e e TSROSO RO GBS A R 15
4.2 SICK LEAVE .......covveiriiierien e eeerr e ere e e e ARG RS PSR RS SRS R R T 17
4.3 HONAAYS......ooeiiiieiiie ettt 18
4.4 FUNEIAI LEAVE. ...... oo e b n b e s e e sa s b s 19
4.5 Appointment TIME .......coociiiiiinic iR R Te s h s wsaas v 20
SECTION 5 WORKING CONDITIONS ..o 20
5.1 Amendments to the Personnel Rules ..............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiici e 20
5.2 Pay Periods/Payday ...........c...cccoriiiinminnn i siviismassosissasmmsssneassnsiosssessasssonts so 20



5.3 Posting of JODS ......oooiiiiii e 20

5.4 DEfiNtIONS . ..couuieie e e e 21
5.5 SAIELY ...oeeiteeeeiiie e e e e 22
5.6 Examination and Continuing Education...........c...ccooo 22
5.7 Return to WOrk POlICY ........oviieeiiiiiiiie e 23
5.8 Alcohol and Controlled Substance — Supplemental Testing Program for
Safety Sensitive POSItIONS ..o 24
5.9 UNIform POlICY ... 28
5.10 Cell PRONE POIICY .....coooeiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 28
SECTION 6 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ... 29
B.1 GrievanCe ProCEAUTE.........euiiie et a e 29
6.2 Layoff RUIE ......oeeeiieeee e e 34
SECTION 7 MISCELLANEOQUS .....ooiiiiiiiieeeeee e e 35
SECTION 8 CARE AND RESPONSIBILITY OF TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT............... 35
SECTION 9 BOARD PACKET ...ttt 35
SECTION 10 ACCESS TO PLANT BY UNION REPRESENTATIVE........cccooeeiii 36
SECTION 11 NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT ......cooiiiiiiiii e 36
SECTION 12 NO STRIKE - NO LOCKOUT ...oiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 36
SECTION 13 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS ... 37
SECTION 14 CONCLUSION .....ooiiiiiiiie e 37
141 Term of MOU ..ot 37
14.2 IMpPasse ProCedure ............ococieiiiiiiiii e 38
14.3 INvalid ProViSiONS........ccooiiiii it 38
14.4 RE-OPENING ....ciiiiiieeiiiiieitee et s e 38
APPENDCIES ... .ottt e b e e e e e e 42
Appendix “A” Union Classifications Wage Scale ..., 42



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH
OPERATIONS’ EMPLOYEES
OF THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

JANUARY 1, 2020 through DECEMBER 31, 2022

PURPOSE OF THE MEMORANDUM

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter “MOU”) executed by and
between the designated representative of the Oakdale Irrigation District, a public
agency within the State of California (hereinafter “District”) and the Operations
Employee’s Unit constitutes the results of meeting and conferring in good faith as
prescribed by Section 3505 of the Government Code of the State of California. The
wages, fringe benefits and working conditions set forth in this MOU have been mutually
agreed upon by the signatories hereto who represent said parties.

The District is engaged in the operation and maintenance of ditches, canals and
waterways for the purpose of supplying water for agriculture and other purposes, which
require continuous operation. The parties acknowledge that responsibility for service
rest upon both the District and its employees. The purpose of this MOU is to assist in
facilitating effective services to the public by providing a framework for management of
the personnel in District service. This MOU is intended to set forth obligations, rights,
privileges, benefits and provisions provided and required of certain District employees.

It is not the intent of this MOU to replace or contradict any of the existing rules,
regulations, administrative orders and provisions currently in existence and enforced by
the District. The obligations, rights, privileges and benefits provided to the parties of this
MOU shall not modify any rules, regulations, administrative orders and provisions to any
greater degree than by this MOU's express terms and conditions. To the extent, there
is a conflict; the express terms of this MOU will take priority.

SECTION 1 _RECOGNITION

The District formally recognized the Operations Employee’s Unit as the exclusive
recognized Unit pursuant to Section 3501(b) of the California Government Code with
respect to wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for all Operations
and Distribution System Operators (DSOs) classifications.

SECTION 2 COMPENSATION




2.1. Wage Increases

2.1.1. Base Wage Adjustment (Cost of Living Adjustment)

Cost of Living wage increases effective at the beginning of the following pay
periods, and as described in Appendix “A”.

January 5, 2020 | 3.5%
January 3, 2021 | 3.5%
January 2, 2022 | 3.0%

2.1.2 Base Wage Adjustment (Equity Pay Adjustment)

Equity pay increase in wages effective in the pay period beginning January 5, 2020
in the following classifications, and as described in Appendix “A’:

SCADA Serviceman 2.5%

SCADA Technician 5%

Water Utilities Serviceman 5%

\Warehouseman Match Construction & Maintenance Worker

2.1.3. Pipe Crawling Pay

(a) Pipe crawling pay is only available to Construction & Maintenance, and
Distribution System Operators / Construction & Maintenance Worker
classifications.

(b) Construction & Maintenance Leadman will be paid a hazard stipend of
$5.00 for each pipe crawl confined space entry ticket performed during
the day.

i. Stipend is for “inspection” purposes only.

2.2 Wages - General

2.2.1. Alist of job classifications and applicable rates of compensation is
maintained on file in the District's office.

2.2.2. Employees will be paid the wage established for their job classification. A
list of job classifications and applicable wage rates is set forth in Appendix “A” attached.

2.2.3. Unless otherwise agreed upon in writing, at the time of the offer for
employment or promotion, all employees shall be entitled to a longevity step wage
increase as follows:



(a) A starting wage at 80% (Step 1) of the "Base Wage" for the classification
during the probationary period.

(b) A wage at 85% (Step 2) of the "Base Wage" for the classification upon
completion of the probationary period.

(c) Awage at 90% (Step 3) of the "Base Wage" for the classification
following the completion of 6 months continuous service after the
conclusion of one's probationary period in the classification.

(d) A wage of 95% (Step 4) of the "Base Wage" for the classification
following the completion of 12 months continuous service after the
conclusion of one's probationary period in the classification.

(e) The "Base Wage" 100% (Step 5) for the classification following the
completion of 18 months continuous service after the conclusion of one's
probationary period in the classification.

2.2.4. When an employee’s classification is changed to a lower paid classification
as the result of a classification study or other actions other than performance or discipline,
the employee may be placed on a “Y” rate. A “Y” rate means that the hourly
compensation for the employee shall remain in effect until such time as further changes in
the pay range of the new classification exceeds the “Y” rate. During the probationary
period of a promoted employee, if the employee is found to not have the necessary skills
to perform in the new position he/she will be placed on a "Y" Rate Schedule and
reassigned as determined by the District.

(Section 2.2.4. is also contained in the 2015 PP&P'S Section 5.204)

2.3 Hours — Distribution System Operators (DSO)

2.3.1 During the irrigation season, the workweek for DSOs working the day shift
commences at noon on Friday and ends on the following Friday at noon. DSOs will work a
schedule consisting of seven (7) consecutive days of work followed by seven (7)
consecutive days off. The normal work day shall consist of 11.5 hours, with an unpaid one-
half hour lunch to be taken daily at 11:30 a.m. As set forth below, the DSOs will work a
schedule which consists of one forty (40) hour workweek and one forty and one-half (40.5)
hour workweek, of which one-half hour is compensated at time and one-half. The DSO shall
then have seven (7) consecutive days off.

(a) The DSO’s schedule for workweek one (1) shall commence at 6:00 a.m.
on Tuesday and shall conclude at 12:00 Noon on Friday.



i. On Tuesday through Thursday of workweek one (1), the DSO shall
commence work at 6:00 a.m. and conclude at 6:00 p.m., with an unpaid
one-half hour lunch from 11:30 a.m. until 12:00 Noon.

ii. On Friday of workweek one (1), the DSO shall commence work at 6:00
a.m. and conclude at 12:00 Noon, with an unpaid one-half hour lunch
from 11:30 a.m. until 12:00 Noon.

(b) Workweek two (2) shall commence at 12:00 Noon on Friday and shall
conclude at 6:00 p.m. on Monday.

i. On Friday of workweek two (2), the DSO shall commence work at
12:00 Noon and conclude at 6:00 p.m.

i. On Saturday through Monday of workweek (2), the DSO shall
commence work at 6:00 a.m. and conclude at 6:00 p.m., with an unpaid
one-half hour lunch from 11:30 a.m. until 12:00 Noon.

(c) Following the conclusion of workweek (2), the DSO shall have off Tuesday
through Monday.

2.3.2 During the irrigation season, the workweek for DSOs working the night shift
commences at 11:30 p.m. on Friday and ends on the following Friday at 11:30 p.m. DSOs
will work a schedule consisting of seven (7) consecutive days of work followed by seven (7)
consecutive days off. The normal work day shall consist of 11.5 hours, with an unpaid one-
half hour lunch to be taken daily at 11:00 p.m. As set forth below, the DSOs will work a
schedule which consists of one forty (40) hour workweek and one forty and one-half (40.5)
hour workweek, of which one-half hour is compensated at time and one-half. The DSO shall
then have seven (7) consecutive days off.

(a) The DSO'’s schedule for workweek one (1) shall commence at 5:30 p.m.
on Tuesday and shall conclude at 11:30 p.m.

i. On Tuesday through Thursday of workweek one (1), the DSO shall
commence work at 5:30 p.m. and conclude at 5:30 a.m., with an unpaid
one-half hour lunch from 11:00 p.m. until 12:00 a.m.

i. On Friday of workweek one (1), the DSO shall commence work at 5:30
p.m. and conclude at 12:00 a.m., with an unpaid one-half hour lunch
from 11:00 p.m. until 12:00 a.m.

(b) Workweek two (2) shall commence at 12:00 a.m. on Friday and shall
conclude at 5:30 a.m. on Monday.

i. On Friday of workweek two (2), the DSO shall commence work at
12:00 a.m. and conclude at 5:30 a.m. on Saturday.

6



i. On Saturday through Monday of workweek (2), the DSO shall
commence work at 5:30 p.m. and conclude at 5:30 a.m., with an unpaid
one-half hour lunch from 11:00 p.m. until 12:00 a.m.

(c) Following the conclusion of workweek (2), the DSO shall have off Tuesday
through Monday.

2.3.3. The District and the Operations Employees Bargaining Unit agree to
utilize an Alternative Work Schedule (AWS) of four consecutive ten-hour days, without
payment of overtime as long as the employees do not work more than forty (40) hours
in a seven-day period that constitutes the workweek.

(@) Inthe event a holiday falls on a scheduled ten (10) hour work day, the
employee will be paid eight (8) hours holiday pay and may elect to
supplement the remaining two (2) hours with vacation or floater holiday

pay.

(b) The AWS will be assigned at the sole discretion of the District's
Management or Supervisory employees. The District will notify the
affected employees of a change in their work schedule at least five (5)
working days prior to implementation of the change. This notification
provides the employees with an opportunity to address personal needs.
The Employees may voluntarily agree to begin work on the new
schedule sooner if they wish.

(d) AWS schedule, other than the aforementioned AWS schedule, may be
requested either by the District or the employees, provided that the
District and the Union Meet and Confer over the impacts of such a
change.

(Section 2.3.3 is also contained in the 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.301.)

2.4 Overtime

2.4.1. Overtime, for DSOs classifications, is defined as:

(a) Time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a normal work week.

(b) Time worked on a non-work day.

(c) A minimum 15-minutes of overtime pay for an off-duty DSO when an on-
duty DSO calls that off-duty DSO at home for assistance. These calls
require the approval of a Supervisor prior to the call being made.

2.4.2. Overtime for Operations, Clerical and Technical classifications, is defined as:



(@) Time worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day or forty (40) hours per
week; or

(b) If on an alternative work schedule, for any work in excess of the regularly
scheduled hours in any work day or beyond forty (40) hours per week.

2.4.3. Overtime must be approved by the General Manager, Department Head, or
Supervisor and will be computed to the nearest one-quarter (1/4) hour. All employees will
be expected to work overtime under specific circumstances, which shall be defined by the
Department Head. Refusal to work, after requested to do so under those circumstances,
will be grounds for disciplinary action.

2.4.4. Overtime Compensation will be paid at a rate one and one-half (1-1/2) times
the regular rate of pay.

2.4.5. Overtime Criteria. Overtime will be distributed as equally as is practicable
among those employees who are qualified and available.

(Sections 2.4.2. through 2.4.5. is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.305.)

2.5 Temporary Assignment

2.5.1. If an Employee is temporarily assigned to the full duties and responsibilities
of a higher classification, he/she will be paid a higher rate for the entire period worked in
the higher classification. A Temporary Job Classification Assignment Request form must
be submitted and approved in writing and in advance.

2.5.2. Construction & Maintenance ("C & M") wages will be paid when DSOs are

assigned to perform C & M work utilizing the "Temporary Job Classification Assignment"
form.

2.6 Call Back/Rest Period

2.6.1. "Call-Back." Employees shall be entitled to a minimum of two hours pay at
the appropriate overtime rate whenever they are called back to perform work after being
released to go home upon the conclusion of a work shift or when called to work when they
are normally off-duty.

In addition, any employee called in, or scheduled to work an entire shift on their
normally scheduled day off, will be compensated at one and one half (1 %) times the
regular rate of pay for the entire shift.

(Section 2.6 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.308.)

2.6.2. "Meal and Rest Periods."




(a) Meal Periods: Employees working in a "DSOs" classification shall take
an unpaid meal break not to exceed thirty (30) minutes long during their
work shift. Such meal breaks shall be scheduled at 11:30 a.m. for the
day shift and 11:00 p.m. for the night shift.

(b) Rest Periods: DSOs are permitted one rest period for each four (4) hour
work period. These breaks shall be scheduled about midway through
each four (4) hour period and each break shall not exceed fifteen (15)
minutes.

(Section 2.6.2.(b) is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.302 11.)

2.7 Jury Duty

Documented time off without loss of pay (up to four (4) weeks) shall be granted to
full-time and seasonal employees called for jury duty. A full-time or seasonal employee
required to serve on jury duty shall be paid the difference between his/her regular pay and
the amount of the jury fee received for such duty. For the purpose of this calculation, the
jury fee does not include any mileage allowance. Employees released from jury duty prior
to the end of a scheduled work day must report back to work within one (1) hour after
being released from jury duty, unless there is less than two (2) hours remaining in the
employee's work day at the time of release.

(Section 2.7 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.810.)

2.8 Payroll Deductions

2.8.1 The District will provide for payroll deduction of the following amounts in
addition to the normal federal and state tax withholdings and benefit payments required by

law:
(a) Amounts designated by employees to be deposited in the District
Deferred Compensation Plan.

(b) The District will make the following deductions from an employee’s
earnings:

i. Medical and dental insurance contributions
ii.  Union dues (as authorized by the employee)
ii. Other deductions agreed upon in writing by the employee

(c) Appropriate sums shall be withheld from the paychecks of District
employees for:



i. Federal Income Tax (Withhold Tax)
ii. State Income Tax

iii. Social Security (F.I.C.A.)

iv. State Disability Insurance (S.D.l.)

(Section 2.8.1. is also contained in 2015 PP&P.)

2.8.2. The Union may have the regular dues of its members within the represented
unit deducted from employees' paychecks in accordance with Government Code section
1157.12. The Union has the exclusive privilege of dues deduction for its members.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Amounts deducted and withheld by the District shall be transmitted to
the officer designated in writing by the union as the person authorized
to receive such funds, at the address specified.

The employee's earnings must be sufficient after all other required
deductions are made, to cover the amount of the deductions herein
authorized. When an employee is in a non-pay status for an entire pay
period, no withholdings will be made to cover that pay period from
future earnings nor will the employee deposit the amount with the
District which would have been withheld if the employee had been in
pay status during that pay period. In the case of an employee who is
in non-pay status during a part of the pay period, and the salary is not
sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deductions shall be made.

If an employee is promoted to a position, which is represented by
another employee organization or to an unrepresented unit,
membership dues for the former unit will not be deducted from the
employee's paycheck by the District.

Indemnity and Refund. The Union shall indemnify and hold harmless
the District, its Board Members and Employees from and against any
and all loss, damages, costs, expenses, claims, attorney’s fees,
demands, actions, suits, judgments, penalties and any other
proceedings arising directly or indirectly out of any deductions from an
employee's paycheck for dues, service fees, or premiums for benefits
paid to or otherwise delivered to the Union. The Union expressly
agrees to defend the District, its Board Members and Employees upon
the District’s request, in any actions or proceedings brought against the
District in connection with any deductions from an employee’s
paycheck for dues, service fees, or premiums for benefits paid to or
otherwise delivered to the Union. The Union shall refund to the District
any amounts paid to it in error upon presentation of supporting
evidence.

10



(e) Enforcement/Severability. In the event that any provision of this article

is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or
unenforceable, the parties agree that the District will cease abiding by
such provision.

2.9 Retirement

2.9.1 CalPERS. The employees covered by this MOU will be entitled to participate
in the retirement program as provided in the CalPERS retirement plan contract with the
District. District to absorb all employer contribution increases in CalPERS costs. Any
modifications to the existing retirement plan, or changes involving underwriters affecting
District contribution, are subject to future negotiations.

2.9.2 CalPERS Classic Retirement

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is

sixty (60)

Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest thirty-
six (36) consecutive months of employment.

On January 1, 2015 CalPERS’ Classic Plan Employees began paying an
additional 1% of the employee’s contribution; and

On January 1st of each subsequent year thereafter, the employee began
paying an additional 1% of the employee’s contribution until the
employee’s maximum contribution of 7% was reached (January 2020).

2.9.3 CalPERS Public Employees Reform Act (PEPRA) Retirement (Effective

January 1, 2013)

(@)

(b)

()

Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is
sixty-two (62)

Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest
thirty-six (36) consecutive months of employment.

11



(d) PEPRA employees shall contribute 50% of the expected total normal cost
rate for the benefits based on the annual actuarial cost analysis provided
by CalPERS.

2.9.4. Deferred Compensation — 457 Plan. The District affords the opportunity for
its employees, at their own expense, to invest in a 457 deferred compensation retirement
plan. The District, at its sole discretion, has contracted with two (2) separate deferred
compensation plan providers. Employees may elect to invest with either plan provider.

Effective January 1, 2007, the District will make a matching contribution equal to
the amount contributed by that employee up to a maximum of one percent (1%) of the
annual salary of an employee that elects to contribute to a 457 deferred compensation
plan through District payroll deductions. Employees may use .5% of the 1% employer
matching contribution to reduce the employee’s insurance premium contribution.

2.9.5 Retirement Health Savings Program. All employees covered under this MOU
are required to participate in a Retirement Health Savings Program (RHS). At the time of
retirement, contributions will be made to the RHS using the employee’s accrued sick leave
time and will be contributed to the RHS as follows:

(a) The first ninety (90) days at the 25% value to be contributed to the
RHS Program. This is mandatory for each employee. (See section 4.2.3 Sick Leave at
Retirement)

2.10 Mandatory Direct Deposit

The employees covered by this MOU are required as a condition of employment to
enroll in direct deposit for the payment of wages.

SECTION 3 INSURANCE

3.1 _Health, Dental and Vision Insurance

3.1.1. Employees covered by this MOU will be covered by the District's health, dental
and vision coverage as provided by, and subject to, the provisions of Section 5.9010f the
District's 2015 PP&P’s. The District's health, dental, and vision insurance contribution caps
are:

HEALTH DENTAL VISION TOTAL
Monthly Premium INSURANCE | INSURANCE |INSURANCE CAP
Employee Only $407.83 $35.35 $20.19 $463.37
Employee + 1 $860.51 $73.84 $20.19 $954 .54
Employee + 2 or more $1,231.63 $135.03 $20.19 $1,486.85

12




As an option for employees, the District will provide an alternative core Plan to be
chosen by the District beginning on each plan's respective renewal date that will provide
coverage at no cost to the employee for their health insurance package. The benefits in
the alternative core plan may vary from those benefits available under other District plans.

3.1.2. Employees covered by this MOU will be covered by the District's Long Term
Disability policy as provided by, and subject to, the provisions of Section 5.901 VI of the
District's 2015 PP&P’s.

3.1.3 For those employees who opt-out of insurance coverage their

reimbursement under this MOU shall be determined as the employee only coverage for
medical insurance.

3.2 State Disability Insurance

3.2.1. “State Disability Insurance” payments are available to employees who
cannot work because of sickness or injury not job related.

(a) When an employee is off work and is receiving SDI benefits, payments
made by SDI may be supplemented up to the base wage entitlement of
that employee.

(b) Premium costs for providing SDI coverage shall be deducted from the
regular earnings of District employees.

(c) An employee covered by SDI shall continue to receive normal
paychecks to the extent that accumulated sick leave is available for
such payment. The District will draw a payroll check for the difference
between the employee’s regular pay and that amount received from
SDI to the extent that accumulated sick leave is available, and when
authorized by the employee, the District will use vacation days.

(Section 3.2 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.806.)

3.3 Workers' Compensation

3.3.1. Employees are responsible for reporting job-incurred iliness or injury to
their supervisor on later than the end of the shift in which the injury occurred. An
employee who is absent from work by reason of injury or illness covered by workers’
compensation shall continue in paid status under the following provisions:

13



3.3.2. Industrial Injury: When an employee is off work due to an industrial injury,
accrued sick leave or vacation pay may be paid for the first three (3) days. Thereafter
payments made by Workers’ Compensation may be supplemented up to base wage
entitlement of that employee to the extent that accumulated sick leave is available, and
when authorized by the employee, vacation days.

3.3.3. During the time the employee is in “paid status” while absent from work by
reason of injury or iliness covered by Workers’ Compensation, he/she shall continue to
accrue all benefits. For the purposes of this section, “paid status” shall include that period
of time during which the District coordinates benefits; i.e.; that period of time during which
sick leave and vacation days are used to supplement employee earnings. Once vacation
and sick leave balances are depleted, health, dental, vision, and life insurance premiums
will be paid by the employee. An employee who is on Workers Compensation leave and
has exhausted all accruals, will not accrue vacation and sick leave.

(Section 3.3 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.805.)

3.4 Availability of Plans

Copies of the above health and welfare plans are on file at the District office and
brochures are available to covered employees.

(Section 3.4 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.901.)

3.5 Life Insurance

Life Insurance coverage will be provided for all eligible employees. The term “Life
Insurance” shall be identified to mean Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000) of term life
insurance for operations employees. For all new hires, the effective date for this insurance
coverage is the first of any month following two full months of continuous service. The
District agrees to pay 100% of the premium for this insurance.

3.6 _Long Term Disability

3.6.1. Long Term Disability is defined as an employee’s status reached if, during
any year of employment, an employee because of ill health, physical or mental disability,
or for other causes beyond his/her control, shall have been continuously unable or
unwilling or have failed to perform his/her duties for which hired for eighty-nine (89)
consecutive days; or if, during any year of employment, he shall have been unable or
unwilling or have failed to perform his/her duties for ninety (90) days, whether consecutive
or not. For the purpose of this section, “any year of employment” shall mean any period of
twelve (12) consecutive calendar months.

14



3.6.2. Upon entering the “Long Term Disability” status, an employee may use
accrued vacation and/or sick leave sufficient to pay premiums as set by the District for the
continuation of health, dental and vision coverage.

3.6.3. While an employee is on “Long Term Disability” status, vacation, holidays,
and sick leave accruals will no longer accrue.

(Section 3.6 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.901.)

3.7 Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

The District will offer at no cost to the employee an Employee Assistance Program
(EAP) chosen by the District. The EAP offers information, consultation, and counseling for
employees and their immediate family members for issues related to financial or legal
problems, family or workplace violence, alcohol and drug abuse, and other areas as well.

(Section 3.7 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.901.)

SECTION 4 LEAVES/HOLIDAYS

4.1 Vacation

4.1.1. The annual vacation is intended to provide the full-time employee with a
period for rest and relaxation. The scheduling of vacations shall be specified to suit the
convenience of the District operations. All long vacations must be scheduled a minimum of
two weeks before the date of departure subject to Section 4.1.5. of this MOU. For
vacations of 3 consecutive days, only 2 working days’ notice need be given. Vacations of
2 consecutive days or less must be scheduled 24 hours in advance. Under special
circumstances, the Departmental Head may waive these notice requirements upon
receiving the General Manager's approval.

4.1.2. "Schedule of Benefits." Vacation days earned shall be based on the
following schedule of benefits for each year of continuous service accrued from the date of
hire and may be taken after completion of one's probationary period.

Schedule of Benefits:

Employment Anniversary Days of Annual Vacation Accrued
1st to 5th year 10
6th to 12th year 15
13th to 19th year 20
20 years and over 25

15



(b). Operation Employees, excluding the clerical and technical unit can bank
up to eighty (80) hours of overtime (one hundred twenty (120) hours
regular pay comp. time) at the equivalent of one and one-half (1%%) times
regular pay for future use.

(c) Clerical and technical employees may bank up to thirty (30) hours of
comp-time (forty-five (45) hours of regular pay) for use during the year.
The use of comp-time is contingent upon the Department Head's
approval. Remaining time will be cashed out on the first pay period in
April of each year.

4.1.3. "Minimum Periods of Leave Accounting." Vacation, and floater days off
must be taken in periods of no less than fifteen (15) minutes, and shall be scheduled with
the Department Head, and approval of the General Manager, with due regard for the
wishes of the employee and with particular regard for the needs of the District. All such
requests shall be submitted in writing on the proper form.

4.1.4. "Holiday on Vacation." A holiday falling within a vacation shall not be
counted as a day of vacation. When a holiday falls within an employee's vacation period,
he/she may take the day immediately preceding or immediately following his/her vacation.

4.1.5. “Irrigation Season Vacation Use." DSOs may take "time-off" from their
normal work schedule during the irrigation season, conditioned as follows:

(a) Any employee taking such a "time-off" leave shall be required to first use
accrued vacation time. If employee has an insufficient number of
vacation time accrued on the records of the District, the employee shall
use any accrued "Floater Holidays." If an insufficient number of “paid”
days remain on the Districts books the employee may be granted a short
leave of absence as provided within the 2015 PP&P’s. Under such
circumstances the "time-off" will not constitute a "break in one’s
continuous service", nor shall it result in an employee having to
reimburse the District for the costs of providing health care benefits.

(b) The "time-off" block is not additional paid time-off, it is merely a means to
permit District DSOs to enjoy a brief period of rest and relaxation during
the irrigation season. To receive pay during such a leave the employee
must use accrued vacation time or accrued Floater Holidays.

(c) DSOs will be allowed to take up to six (6) days’ vacation (separately or in
one block of time) off during irrigation season based on the Department
Head's approval and ability to conduct efficient District operations.

4.1.6. "Vacation at Termination/Retirement." Accrued but unused vacation, at the
time of an employee's termination or retirement shall be administered as follows:

16



(a) If an employee terminates and has accrued and unused vacation, he
shall be paid for each day recorded in District records.

(b) An employee who retires and has earned any unused vacation may elect
either of the following options:

i. Be paid out for unused accrued vacation.

i. Discontinue working and take accrued and unused vacation time
that would extend from last day worked up to the date of retirement.

(c) If option (2) is selected, deductions from vacation pay will be the same as
if employee is actually on the job and health care coverage will continue
to be provided under various group programs through the vacation.

4.1.7 “Vacation Buy Back” As of January 1 of each year, an Operations Bargaining
Unit employee can hold no more than fifty (50) vacation days in reserve. The District shall
permit all Operation’s Bargaining Unit employees to “buy” back” a portion of their
individually accrued and unused vacation days once each calendar year. Any such buy-
back shall not exceed a maximum of fifty percent (50%) of the vacation days accrued
during a normal calendar year by the requesting employees and a minimum of five (5)
accrued vacation days must remain in the employee’s accrual bank. Unless otherwise
specified, the hourly rate of pay for such days bought back by the employee shall be the
normal hourly rate of pay earned by the employee. A written request shall be submitted to
the General Manager at any time during the calendar year. The District shall issue
payment to the requesting employee within thirty (30) days after the date of the written
request.

4.1.8. "Sick Leave Not Vacation." Employees becoming sick or injured while on
vacation leave shall be entitled to change their vacation status to sick leave with a doctor's
verification the employee would be unfit for duty. Upon return to work, an employee shall
present to his/her supervisor a doctor’s verification slip for those days during the vacation
that was used as sick leave.

4.1.9. "Payment of Vacation Only After Earned." No vacation shall be paid prior to
it being accrued.

(Section 4.1. is also contained 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.802.)

4.2 Sick Leave

4.2.1. The employees covered by this MOU will receive the sick leave benefits
provided under Section 5.803 of the District's 2015 PP&P’s.

17



4.2.2. Sick leave will accrue at a maximum rate of 8 hours per month and shall be
deducted with the number of hours the employee is scheduled to work on the sick leave
day.

4.2.3. "Sick Leave at Retirement." Accrued but unused sick leave, at the time of
an employee's retirement shall be administered as follows:

(a)  An employee who retires and has unused sick leave shall

i. The first ninety (90) days, pay into the Retirement Health Savings
Program (RHS) twenty-five percent (25%) of unused sick leave

ii. Thereafter, employees may choose to contribute the remaining hours
after ninety (90) days at the rate of fifty percent (50%) of the value of
unused sick leave into either the RHS or cashed out.

(Section 4.2 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.803.)

4.3 Holidays

4.3.1. "Eligible Employees" are those District employees holding full-time positions,
except as otherwise provided herein, will be entitled to the following holidays off with 8
hours pay when they fall on a work day in the basic workweek:

New Year's Day Thanksgiving Day
President's Day Friday immediately following
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day
Independence Day Christmas Eve

Labor Day Christmas Day

Veteran's Day

4.3.2 Each eligible employee shall receive on an annual basis, two individual
Floater Holidays. For eligible employees hired hereafter, Floater Holidays shall be
accrued on the basis of one- one third (1 1/3) hours per month during their first calendar
year of employment. Thereafter, all eligible employees shall be credited with two Floater
Holidays on January 1 of each calendar year. Employee must give 24 hours' notice prior
to taking except under emergency circumstances. The minimum amount of Floater
Holiday time to be used is one hour. The District can deny request if it conflicts with
operations. If employee has not used floater by January 1st of the year after it was earned,
the day shall accrue as a vacation day and become subject to provisions of Section 5.802
of the District's 2015 PP&P’s .

4.3.3. "Holiday on Saturday or Sunday." When a recognized holiday falls on a
Saturday, the day immediately preceding shall be deemed to be the paid holiday. When a
recognized holiday falls on a Sunday, the next day shall be deemed to be the paid holiday.

18



4.3.4. "Absence Before or After a Holiday." If an employee is absent from work on
either the work day prior to the holiday or the work day following the holiday while on: (a)
non-workers compensation leave of absence, (b) dock time, or (c) without permission, he
will not receive pay for the holiday.

4.3.5. "Board-Ordered Holiday." The Board of Directors may from time to time
declare additional paid holidays or half-day holidays at their sole discretion, and the
granting of any such holiday shall not constitute a precedent for continued granting of such
holiday or holidays.

4.3.6. "Holiday Substitution." In conjunction with any holiday, a regular workday
may be substituted for a Saturday with prior approval of the Board of Directors upon the
recommendation of the Department Heads and the General Manager. The Saturday
worked must be in advance of the workday to be taken off, and field and shop personnel
must comply with the change. The Saturday worked will be treated as a workday, and the
workday taken off will be treated as a non-work day.

(Section 4.3 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.801.)

4.3.7. "Dock Days." During the non-irrigation season, District employees may be
allowed to take short term unpaid leaves of absence known as "Dock Days," as approved
in writing by the General Manager in accordance with Section 5.813 of the District's 2015
PP&P’s. Except when used to cover a rained out day or a personal emergency, notice of
intent to take a dock day must be given prior to the end of the preceding shift. Failure to
do so will result in an unexcused absence.

(a) The District shall pay the premium costs for the employee's health, vision,
dental, and life insurance plans for the maximum of two dock days per
calendar month during the non-irrigation season.

(Section 4.3.7. is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.813 1.)

4.4 Funeral Leave

4.4 1. In the event of a death in an employee's immediate family (spouse, domestic
partner, son, daughter, mother, father, brother, sister, half-brother, half-sister, father-in-law,
mother-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, grandmother, grandfather),
the employee may take a maximum of five (5) days leave (one of which shall be the date
of the funeral) without loss of pay for the purpose of bereavement, making necessary
arrangements and attending the funeral.

4.4.2. An additional limited amount of time off to attend funeral services outside the

State of California may be authorized with pay under special circumstances. The General
Manager is vested with full discretion to evaluate the circumstances and make the

19



determination. Attendance at funerals requiring absences of more than five days will be
charged to vacation or Floater Holiday accounts.

(Section 4.4 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.809

4.5 Appointment Time

All eligible employees shall be afforded up to ten (10) hours per year to attend a
pre-scheduled medical appointment for the eligible employee and/or the employee’s
spouse and eligible dependents. Appointment time taken must be during physicians’
office hours and pre-approved in writing by the employee’s Department Head. The
General Manager must approve all requests for appointment time over two (2) hours.
Any appointment time not used by the end of the calendar year will be forfeited. To be
an eligible employee, one must earn sick leave.

(Section 4.5 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.804.)

SECTION 5 WORKING CONDITIONS

5.1 Amendments to the Personnel Rules

All references to the District's 2015 Personnel Policies and Procedures (PP&P’s) in
this MOU mean those particular "Oakdale Irrigation District Personnel Policies and
Procedures adopted by the District's Board of Directors by Resolution dated August 18,
2015 as may be amended from time to time, after consultation with recognized
organizations.

5.2 Pay Periods/Payday

Wages will be paid at bi-weekly intervals as follows: Wages will be paid within 7
calendar days following the end of the pay period. Any paychecks not picked up by 4:00
p.m. on payday will be mailed.

(Section 5.2 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.303.)

5.3 Posting of Jobs

5.3.1. The employees covered by this MOU may bid on job openings outside the
bargaining unit pursuant to the District's 2015 PP&P’s.

20



5.3.2. When the District intends to fill a job opening, a notice of such opening listing
essential qualifications and functions of the job shall be placed on all designated bulletin
boards. Employees shall have fourteen (14) calendar days to apply for the position. All
interested employees must file an application to be considered for the open position. In
the event that no employees apply or are qualified for the position, the District may seek
other applicants. The fourteen (14) calendar day posting period in-house may be reduced
or waived when management is faced with emergency circumstances.. The remaining
provisions are contained in Section 5.207 of the District's 2015 PP&P’s.

5.4 Definitions

5.4.1. The District typically has at least four different types of employees based
upon the anticipated length of service and the regularity with which the employee is
expected to work.

These types of employees are as follows:

(8) Regular employees are employees who are anticipated to work the same
hours at the times of days and weeks on a regular re-occurring basis.
These employees may be either part-time or full-time regular employees.

i.  Afull-time regular employee is an employee normally scheduled to
work 40 or more hours a week;

ii. A part-time regular employee is an employee normally scheduled to
work less than 40 hours a week.

(b) Classification as a regular employee is not a promise or guarantee of the
availability of any specific hours of work per week or any pay in lieu of
hours of work per week.

5.4.2. "Temporary Employees." A temporary employee is an employee who is
hired to either perform a specific job of short duration and/or who is hired to work for a
specific limited duration.

5.4.3. "Probationary Employee."

(a8) A probationary employee is an employee who is serving a trial period to
demonstrate his or her ability to perform the job for which she or he was
hired or otherwise transferred into and to further exhibit the
characteristics of an employee who will make a total positive contribution
to the overall operation of the District.

(b) A newly hired employee who completes his or her probationary period
will be considered a regular employee.

21



(c) An in-house probationary employee serving a probationary period as a
result of a job promotion or transfer shall already have attained regular
employee status at the start of their probationary period.

(Section 5.4.1. through 5.4.3. is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.201.)

5.4.4. “Probationary Period." An employee shall not attain seniority in any
classification until he has completed a probationary period of six (6) months continuous
service to a full-time position with the District. The term continuous service as used in
this provision and as pertains to wage percentage increases means uninterrupted
service with the District as defined in Section 5.4.3., which service may not be
interrupted by unauthorized absences, or interruption of service due to illness, or
authorized leave of absence. Such interruptions or unauthorized absences may result
in the extension of the six (6) months probationary period, termination of employment,
or the commencement of a new probationary period based on the specific
circumstances.

(@) During the probationary period of a new employee the individual may be
terminated by the District for any reason with or without cause.

(b)  During the probationary period of a promoted employee, if the employee
is found to not have the necessary skills to perform in the new position
he/she will be placed on a “Y” Rate Schedule and reassigned as
determined by the District.

(Section 5.4.4. is also contained in 2015 PP&P'S Section 5.204.)

5.5 Safety
The safety program provided by the District's 2015 PP&P’s and the District's Injury

and lliness Prevention Program is incorporated herein by reference as presently provided
and as it may be amended from time to time to comply with state and federal law.

5.6 Examination and Continuing Education

5.6.1. "Medical Exams for Required Licenses and Certificates." The District will
provide a medical exam for all employees required to have a special license or certificate.
Persons bidding for new jobs, or new employees, will be required to obtain the required
license or certificate at their own expense in order to meet that requirement to qualify for
the promotion. The District will designate the physician who will give the exam. The
expense to renew the license or certificate shall be borne by the District with the prior
written approval of the General Manager.

22



(Section 5.6.1. is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.202 VI.)

5.6.2. "Training and Development." The District encourages the improvement of
services by providing opportunity for employee training and it is the intent of the District
that requests that fit the criteria set below will not be unreasonably denied. Compulsory
training may be required as a condition of continued employment. Such training programs
may include lectures, courses, seminars, demonstrations, reading matter or other devices
for improving job performance; however, where required, the District shall pay all
directly-related expenses. An employee shall be reimbursed for the cost of tuition and
books where he or she has completed a course of study which is directly related to a
present job classification or one wherein he or she aspires to be promoted to a higher
related classification with the prior written approval of the General Manager. That portion
of the cost and the approval to participate in such course(s) of study will be determined by
the General Manager upon weighing the benefits to the District. The reimbursement shall
only be available upon completion of the course with a grade of 70% or better.

(Section 5.6.2 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.903.)

5.7 Return to Work Policy

5.7.1. Purpose: To provide a productive temporary work assignment for an OID
employee, “employee,” injured on the job or otherwise and temporarily unable to
perform the duties of the employee’s regular work assignment due to a documented
physical or medical reason.

5.7.2. Scope: This policy and procedure applies to all Departments.

5.7.3. Policy and Procedure: This policy will provide a standard return to work
method for employees of the OID to resume productive workplace activity following
injury or illness from which the employee is expected to recover. The intent of the policy
is to improve workplace morale by creating an environment that allows employees who
have suffered injury or illness to be productive individuals and enable the department to
continue to meet its goal of providing efficient service.

5.7.4. Communication

(@) Upon notification by the employee’s treating physician that the employee
is unable to perform his regular work assignment, the employee must
notify his Department Head and Human Resources immediately. The
employee shall obtain a current job description and forward it to the
treating physician for his review in evaluating the employee. The
physician will complete a Work Status Report or OID’s “Attending
Physician’s Return to Work Recommendations Record.” It is the
employee's responsibility to assure that Human Resources is provided
the Attending Physician's Return to Work Recommendations Records

23



with specific temporary physical limitations indicated within twenty-four
(24) hours or as soon as practicable.

(b) Human Resources will provide the employee’s Department Head and
General Manager with documentation regarding the temporary physical
limitation, if any, indicated by the employee’s treating physician if injury or
iliness is work related and limited duty is prescribed.

(c) The department head may approve a temporary work assignment upon
receipt of a written evaluation from the employee’s treating physician.
Each temporary work assignment will be reviewed, assessed and either
extended or terminated by the General Manager on a week-by-week
basis. A “Modified Work Assignment” will be completed by the supervisor
and signed by the employee, supervisor and the General Manager.
Approval of temporary work assignment under this section shall not be
unreasonably denied.

5.7.5. Limited duty will not extend beyond sixty (60) calendar days from the date
of injury without an evaluation by the employee’s treating physician and approval from
the General Manager. Employees unable to perform regular duties with sixty (60)
calendar days from the date of injury must re-quality for limited duty through evaluation
by their treating physician or revert to workers’ compensation indemnity payment,
accumulated sick leave, FMLA or vacation benefits if available. Approval of an
extension of temporary work assignment under this section shall not be unreasonably
denied.

(Section 5.7 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.507.)

5.8 Alcohol and Controlled Substance — Supplemental Testing Program for
Safety Sensitive Positions

The parties agree that the following District policy shall be in full force and effect for all
operations employees as designated below:

5.8.1. Purpose

The purpose of this Supplemental Testing Program for Safety Sensitive Positions
("Program") is to augment the Oakdale Irrigation District's (“District”) Drug and Alcohol
Abuse Policy. The purpose of the Program is to:

(@) Further enhance safety in the workplace for all employees
(b) Promote employee health

(c) Maintain a high level of quality in the service to the public
(d) Improve productivity

(e) Provide protection against public liability

24



(f) Promote the public’s trust in the District.

5.8.2. Statement of Non-Tolerance: The use of alcohol or illegal drugs during
work hours is not permitted nor tolerated. The after effects of off-site alcohol or illegal
drug use is not permitted nor tolerated. It is not the intent of this policy, nor the desire of
the District and its agents, to terminate any person’s employment as a result of this
policy. However, it is recognized that employees sometimes make choices which
conflict with established District policies. Any employee whose violation of these
regulations is discovered either through investigation and/or by drug screening may be
terminated from employment.

5.8.3. Maximum Allowable Levels: A maximum allowable blood-alcohol level
while at work is 0.02. There are no allowable amounts of any illegal drug.

5.8.4. Recovery Assistance for Employees: Recovery assistance is available to
any employee with a chemical and/or alcohol dependency at any time while the policy is
in effect. An employee who voluntarily discloses his/her own chemical and/or alcohol
dependency, either to his/her department head or to the General Manager, will be
referred to a recovery program for substance abuse counseling and treatment. Such
disclosure must occur prior to the employee being informed of an impending drug test.
The District is not financially responsible for any counseling and treatment. The
employee may attend any treatment program that is approved by Management.
Regardless of the program selected, the employee must authorize the release of
medical information to Management so that recovery progress may be monitored. While
off of work for treatment, the employee may use paid time off or leave without pay. Paid
or approved unpaid leave will be afforded to the employee only if the employee is drug-
free and is making satisfactory progress in a Management-approved treatment program.
After the employee has, in the opinion of Management, made sufficient progress in
his/her recovery, the employee may return to work in his/her former position, if
appropriate. Failure to comply with every requirement of the program and this policy will
be considered to be non-compliance and may result in termination.

5.8.5. Screening Process: Employees and potential employees may, at
appropriate times, be tested for the presence of controlled substances in their
bloodstreams. This testing is performed via urinalysis sample (urinalysis or, in the case
of alcohol, Breathalyzer), at the District's expense. Actual testing may be performed in
the laboratory, at the office, or at some other appropriate location, and at all times the
employee’s privacy will be protected to the maximum extent practical. Testing will begin
on or after July 1, 2007.

Please note: An employee who is directed to take a drug screening test and refuses to
take that test will be terminated from employment.

The testing for the presence of controlled substances in the bloodstream may be
required by, but are not limited to, the following situations:

25



(a) Employees Involved in an Injury Accident or Property Damage Accident.
Employees involved in an injury accident (requiring more than simple
first-aid treatment) and/or employees involved in a property damage
accident (wherein the amount of the property loss is estimated to exceed
$1,000) will be tested as soon as practical following the accident.

(b) Discovery of Controlled substances and Drug Paraphernalia. Employees
having reasonable access to areas where controlied substances and/or
drug paraphernalia are discovered may be required to be tested.

(¢) Employees in “Safety Sensitive Positions. Employees in “safety
sensitive” positions will be randomly tested. “Safety Sensitive” positions
include all positions which, as a normal course of business require the
employee to operate District vehicles or equipment other than office
equipment, or those positions in which the employee’s performance,
reflexes, and/or judgment impact the safety of others. The following
positions at the District are classified as “safety sensitive:”

All job classifications except Administrative Support and Finance
Department Classifications.

This list of positions may be changed without notice based on changes in duties,
prevailing laws, or other substantive reason.

(d) Recovering Employees. Employees who volunteer for recovery
treatment during the introductory grace period will be randomly tested
after they return to duty.

5.8.6. Random Testing Selection Methodology: A third party administrator (TPA)
will be used for the random testing selection. The TPA will select which of the classified
employees will be tested and which dates. The TPA will operate within parameters that
provide one (1) test per classified employee per calendar year. If the selected classified
employee has been tested under the Department of Transportation (DOT) Program
within the calendar year then the classified employee will not be subject to additional
testing under the Safety Sensitive Drug Testing Program. [f an employee is not
available for testing on the date designated by the TPA, or the laboratory is not
available to perform the test on the designated date, the employee will be tested on the
next available work day.

5.8.7. Testing Procedure and Criteria: On the day that the employee is
scheduled for a drug screening, he/she will be informed of the screening by his/her
supervisor, department head, or other person of authority. The employee will be
provided paid time and transportation to travel to the medical facility to provide the
sample. As of the date of this policy, the designated location where drug screening
generally will be performed is:

26



(@)

(b)

(c)

Oak Valley Occupational Health Center
1420 West "H" Street, Suite C
Oakdale, CA 95361

(209) 847-5310

The location generally used for drug screenings may be changed without
notice.

The employee may travel to the screening location alone or in the
company of another designated employee or officer of the law,
depending upon circumstances. The employee is to check in at the
check-in counter of the medical facility and provide picture identification
(such as a driver license). When instructed by the medical staff, the
employee will proceed to the test collection area.

Alcohol breath tests shall be conducted on site with instant results
provided. The technician administering the test will explain the
procedure and identification verification. When instructed, the employee
will blow into a tube until the signal to stop is given. A read-out of the
concentration of alcohol in the bloodstream will immediately appear on
the test apparatus. If the test results exceed the allowed limit (0.02%),
the employee will be given a re-test after a brief wait (generally 10-20
minutes). If a re-test is administered, the procedure described in this
paragraph will be repeated.

Drug screening examinations are conducted via urinalysis. The
technician administering the test will explain the procedure and
identification verification. The employee may be asked to provide the
technician with a list of medications that the employee has ingested in
the past 30 days. The employee will sign an authorization for the test to
be performed. The employee will be asked to wash his/her hands. The
employee will then be provided with a receptacle and directed to the
authorized bathroom, where the employee will be afforded privacy. The
employee will urinate into the receptacle provided and, when finished,
return the receptacle to the technician. The employee will then again be
directed to wash his/her hands.

The technician will conduct two preliminary tests immediately on site and
in the presence of the employee. One test is a temperature reading to
ensure that the temperature of the urine sample is within the appropriate
range of temperatures for urine recently eliminated from the body. The
other test is a substance test that ensures that the fluid in the receptacle
is indeed urine as opposed to some other liquid. Once those tests are
complete, the technician will explain the identification and chain-of-
custody information to the employee. The employee will initial the unique
chain-of-custody identification number and sign the completed test form.

27



Subsequently, the urine sample is tested for the presence or absence of
certain substance groups. Concentrations of substances in the urine
sample are measured in nanograms per milliliter (abbreviated ng/ml).
Each substance group will have a minimum measurement reading,
below which the test result is to be reported as "negative” (absent of any
amounts of the substance). Urine samples that have concentrations of
tested substances greater than the minimum measurement reading will
be reported as "positive" (controlled substances present). If a test result
for a substance group is positive, a second test methodology known as
Gas Chromatography Mass Spectophotometry (CGMS) will be
conducted. The CGMS procedure tests the urine for exact substances
within the substance in the group, generally with a lower minimum
confirmation concentration. The CGMS produces a molecular
“fingerprint" of the substance in the bloodstream.

5.8.8. For non-D.O.T. required urine samples, the initial screening conducted is
for the following groups at the stated minimum measurements:

Substance Group Minimum Positive Measurement
Amphetamine 300 ng/ml
Barbiturates 300 ng/ml
Benzodiazepines 300 ng/ml
Cannabinoid 50 ng/ml
Cocaine Metabolite 300 ng/ml
Methadone 300 ng/ml
Methaqualone 300 ng/ml
Opiates 300 ng/ml
Phencyclidine 75 ng/ml
Propoxyphene 300 ng/ml

(Section 5.8 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.504 Revised 01/27/17.)

5.9 Uniform Policy

The purpose of this policy is to establish a uniform, safety shoe, and safety glass
guidelines for Oakdale Irrigation District (District) employees in order to maintain
consistency throughout all departments in regards to dress, as well as to clearly and
professionally identify employees to the public and fellow employees. See the District's
2015 PP&P’s Section 5.405 for entire policy. .

5.10 Cell Phone Policy

28



The intent of the cell phone policy is to set a reasonable standard of conduct for
employees as it relates to the District issued cellular phones. The policy attempts to
recognize the uniqueness of the work we do; the rural locations we work in; the long hours
away from family; and the recognition that contact with employees’ families is at times
necessary during the course of work.

Also of increasing concern to the District are the dangers of distracted driving and
the safety of its employees. There is a growing danger on our roads by talking, texting,
and/or emailing while driving. The use of cellular phones while driving poses a significant
safety risk to motorists, their passengers, pedestrians, and others on the road. See the
District's 2015 PP&P’s Section 5.603 for entire policy.

ECTION 6 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

6.1 Grievance Procedure

6.1.1. "Purpose." A grievance procedure has been established for the following
purposes:

(a) To promote improved employer/employee relations by establishing an
appropriate, orderly and equitable procedure for the presentation and
resolution of misunderstandings and disputes between the District and its
employees.

(b) To provide a method of resolving such claims as closely as possible to
the date of origin and as informally as possible. It is the intent of the
parties to review and resolve grievances at the lowest possible level.

(c) To encourage free communication between supervisors and employees.

6.1.2. "Definitions."

(a) Grievance - A grievance is defined as a claim by an employee that the
District has violated, misinterpreted or misapplied a term and condition of
employment established by this MOU or a written rule, regulation,
ordinance, procedure and/or policy of the District, provided, however,
that such term or condition of employment is not a subject outside of the
scope of representation as defined in Section 3500 et seq. of the
Government Code.

(b) Working Days - Working days are defined as regularly scheduled
working days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.

29



(c) Party - As used in this section, the term “party” means an employee, the
Union, the District or their authorized representatives.

6.1.3. "Grievance Procedure Steps for More Serious Discipline." The
procedures outlined in this subsection are only for those grievances pertaining to
suspensions, demotions, or terminations from employment for cause.

Step One: Mediation

An employee who has a grievance pertaining to suspensions, demotions,
or terminations from employment for cause shail submit the grievance in
writing to the General Manager within ten (10) working days after the
employee knew or reasonably should have known of the occurrence of the
cause of the grievance.

The written grievance shall state the specific provision of the MOU or the
written rule, regulation, ordinance, procedure or policy alleged to have
been violated, misinterpreted or misapplied, any facts known at that time
to that employee to support his or her position, and any proposed remedy.

Upon receipt of such request, the General Manager and the Union shall
submit a joint request to the California State Mediation & Conciliation
Service to appoint a mediator. The parties shall work cooperatively to
schedule a mediation hearing as soon as reasonably practicable.

Step Two: Advisory Arbitration

If the grievance is not resolved in Step One to the satisfaction of the
grievant, the aggrieved employee may initiate advisory arbitration by
submitting a request in writing to the General Manager within ten (10)
working days after the conclusion of mediation.

Upon receipt of the request for advisory arbitration, the General Manager
shall request that the State Mediation & Conciliation Service provide a list
of seven (7) names of arbitrators. An impartial arbitrator shall be selected
from that list with each party alternately striking one name until a single
name remains. Alternately, the parties can agree to mutually select a
single arbitrator either from that list or otherwise.

Upon being selected, the arbitrator shall convene an arbitration hearing as
soon as practicable. No later than three (3) working days before the
arbitration hearing each party shall present to the other a list of withesses
he/shel/it intends to call along with a brief statement of the nature of the
testimony, copies of any documents and descriptions of all other evidence
each party intends to introduce at the hearing if not previously provided.
The parties shall not be barred from producing any witnesses or

30



documents and descriptions of evidence not exchanged if there is a
showing of good cause as to why such information should be allowed to
be presented as determined by the arbitrator. However, the parties shall
be allowed to present rebuttal evidence.

At the arbitration hearing, each party shall have the opportunity to present
material and relevant evidence and to cross-examine witnesses.

The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the
Union and the District. Each party, however, shall bear the cost of its own
presentation, including preparation and post hearing briefs.

At the conclusion of the advisory arbitration proceeding and no later than
thirty (30) calendar days after conclusion of the proceeding, the arbitrator
shall render an advisory decision to the parties which should state the
reasoning behind it and present the evidence relied upon by the arbitrator.

Either party may appeal said advisory decision of the arbitrator to the
Board of Directors within ten (10) working days of the date the advisory
decision was mailed to the party pursuant to the procedures in Step
Three.

The costs of a transcript shall be borne by the appealing party. If both
parties appeal then the costs of the transcript shall be shared equally by
the Union and the District.

Step Three: Board of Directors

The aggrieved employee may appeal said advisory decision of the
arbitrator in Step Two within ten (10) working days after the mailing of the
advisory decision of the arbitrator by submitting a written request to the
General Manager asking for a hearing before the Board at its next regular
meeting.

Likewise, if the General Manager wishes to appeal the advisory decision
of the arbitrator, the General Manager shall within ten (10) working days
after the decision of the arbitrator submit a request to the President of the
Board of Directors asking for a hearing before the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors shall be provided with the advisory decision of the
arbitrator, a transcript if applicable, a copy of the written grievance and
any responses thereto and all evidence that was part of the record for the
advisory arbitration hearing. At the hearing, the parties shall be afforded
the opportunity to present oral argument and written briefs to the Board of
Directors.

31



The Board of Directors shall respond to the grievance at their next regular
meeting following the meeting at which the grievance was heard or within
twenty (20) working days after the hearing.

6.1.4. "Grievance Procedure Steps for Matters Other Than More Serious
Discipline." The procedures outlined in this subsection are for all other grievances other
than those grievances pertaining to suspensions, demotions, or terminations from
employment for cause.

Step One: Supervisor

Employees who have a grievance shall first take it up informally with their
immediate Supervisor within ten (10) working days after they knew or
reasonably should have known of the occurrence of the cause of the
grievance. The immediate Supervisor shall meet with the employee to
discuss the problem in an effort to clarify the issue and to cooperatively
work toward a resolution.

Step Two: Department Head

If the grievance is not resolved within ten (10) working days after its
submission in Step One, the employee shall submit the grievance in
writing stating the specific provision of the MOU or the written rule or
policy alleged to have been violated, misinterpreted or misapplied, any
facts known at that time to that employee to support his or her position,
and any proposed remedy.

This written grievance shall be submitted to his or her Department Head
within ten (10) working days after the meeting with his or her immediate
Supervisor. The Department Head shall meet with the employee within
ten (10) working days after submission of the grievance and shall deliver
his/her answer in writing to the employee within ten (10) working days
after such meeting.

Step Three: General Manager

If the grievance is not resolved in Step Two, the aggrieved employee will
submit his or her grievance in writing stating the specific provision of the
MOU or the written rule, regulation, ordinance, procedure or policy alleged
to have been violated, misinterpreted or misapplied, any facts known at
that time to that employee to support his or her position, and any proposed
remedy. This written grievance shall be submitted to the General
Manager within ten (10) working days after the Department Head’s answer
is received. The General Manager shall meet with the employee within
ten (10) working days after receiving the grievance and shall deliver
his/her answer to him or her in writing ten (10) working days after such
meeting.

32



Step Four: Board of Directors

For those grievances not resolved in Step Three, the aggrieved employee
will submit the grievance in writing to the Board of Directors through the
General Manager, within ten (10) working days after the conclusion of
Step Three asking for a hearing before the Board at its next regular
meeting.

This time limit may be extended to a definite date by mutual agreement of
the employee and the General Manager or by the General Manager alone
in order to comply with the Brown Act.

The Board of Directors shall be provided with the written grievance and
any written responses thereto for review. At the hearing, the parties shall
be afforded the opportunity to present oral argument to the Board of
Directors. Written briefs will be presented at the discretion of the Board.

The Board of Directors shall respond to the grievance at their next regular
meeting following the meeting at which the grievance was heard or within
twenty (20) working days after the hearing.

6.1.5. "General Provisions."

(@) Upon receiving an employee request, the General Manager, or his/her
designee, may approve the use of regular working hours for an
employee to meet with his/her representative to prepare and present
the grievance; otherwise, such meeting must be held off the job.
Requests for use of regular hours for grievance preparation shall not
be unreasonably denied.

(b) If a grievance is not filed within the time limit, it is waived. If appeal is
not made within the time limits indicated, the grievance will be
considered to be settled on the basis of the last decision rendered.
Any grievance not responded to by the District within the prescribed
time limits shown will have automatically been advanced to the next
higher step unless the time limit is extended by written mutual
agreement.

(c) Unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties all grievance materials,
correspondence and decisions shall be placed in the personnel file of
the grievant.

(d) Employees are assured freedom from reprisal for using the grievance
procedure.

33



(Section 6 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.409.)

6.2 Layoff Rule

"Layoff/Reduction in Forces."

(@)

(e)

When the Board of Directors determines it is necessary to reduce the
working staff of the District for lack of work or lack of funds or for other
causes outside of the worker's control, the District shall determine the
classifications in which the reduction is to be made and the number of
positions to be affected. Reduction in staff within the designated
classifications shall occur in the following order:

i. Employees who have temporary status only.
ii. Employees who are newly hired probationary.
iii. Part-time regular employees.

iv.  Full-time regular employees.

Among part-time and full-time regular employees, those having the
highest seniority with the District shall be retained provided they have
the necessary skill and ability to perform the required work efficiently
and without training. This process shall be defined as "bumping".

Any such employee desiring to utilize the bumping process shall notify
the District General Manager in writing within five (5) calendar days of
the date of notice of layoff. Failure to do so constitutes a forfeiture of
the right to bump based on seniority.

Recall from Layoff. Full-time employees who are laid off will be given
preference in filling future vacancies, for which they are fully qualified,
without limitations or restrictions, for a period of one year, provided
Section 5.210 I.E. of the District's 2015 PP&P’S has not taken effect.
However, they shall adhere to the terms of the layoff and advise the
District of any change of address.

District will attempt to give employees notice of any reduction in staff at
least two weeks prior to the effective date.

Exceptions to the order of layoff and recall as they are otherwise
affected by employee eligibility based on seniority may be made by the
District on the basis of documented negative performance, or
documented disciplinary action(s), or special qualifications required by
the District.

34



(f) To provide stability in the work force, an employee who is laid off and
elects to "bump" another employee with lesser seniority in another
classification shall be precluded from using the bidding process for
openings in other classifications for a period of one year.

(g) For Operation Employees who have been laid off, benefits shall be
handled in the following manner:

i.  Vacation: accrues during period of employment only.

i. Seniority and Retirement: accrues according to the time worked —
interruption for lack of work or funds has no negative effect on
seniority earned.

ii. Health Care: available during period of employment in accordance
with the medical plan in effect. Continuance coverage is available
under COBRA law.

SECTION 7_MISCELLANEOUS

7.1. Employees are required to supply the District with a telephone number where
he/she can be reached during emergencies. The District shall not disclose telephone
numbers to anyone other than Supervisors who must make emergency calls.

(This section is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.212.)

7.2. Employees who are laid off are free to work at any job available to them
during such lay off and will continue to maintain recall rights as set forth in Section
6.2.1(c) of this MOU

7.3. District will provide for up to six (6) DSOs per year to obtain Class “B” drivers’
licenses. Applications for this opportunity will be at the discretion of the General Manager.

7.4. Notations on an operation employee's time card referencing “unexcused” or
“excused” will no longer be made.

SECTION 8 CARE AND RESPONSIBILITY OF TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT

Sections 5.501 and 5.601 of the District's 2015 PP&P’S are incorporated herein by
reference in its form and as it may hereafter be amended from time to time.

SECTION 9 BOARD PACKET

35



Oakdale Irrigation District agrees to provide one free copy of the Board packets
to be picked up by OE3 at the District Office typically on the Friday afternoon before
each Board Meeting.

SECTION 10 ACCESS TO PLANT BY UNION REPRESENTATIVE

The duly authorized Business Representatives of the Operating Engineers Local
No. 3 (hereinafter “OE3") may meet with a member of the bargaining unit on District's
premise for matters relative to the employer's compliance with the MOU. After receiving
permission from the District's General Manager or his/her designee, the representative
may meet with the employee either in the field or at the District's headquarters, at the
option of the District's General Manager. While on the District's property or premises the
Business Representative shall not interfere with the District's work nor solicit union
membership. The District's General Manager is under no obligation to relieve any
employee other than at normal break times. The OE3 shall provide the District with the
name of its duly authorized Business Representative. There shall be no more than one
such representative. While on District's property or at such location the Business
Representative will observe, all District's safety rules.

SECTION 11 _NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT

"Non-Discrimination." The District and Operations Employee’s Unit fully and
without reservation subscribe to the public policies of the United States and the State of
California as expressed in all applicable statutes that are necessary to protect and
safeguard the right and opportunity of all persons to seek, obtain and hold employment
without discrimination or abridgment because of race, religion, sex, gender, gender
identity, national origin, age, disability, ancestry, medical condition (related to cancer or
genetic characteristics), marital status, veteran status, citizenship status, sexual
orientation, or any other characteristic protected by law.

SECTION 12 NO STRIKE - NO LOCKOUT

12.1. The District agrees that so long as this MOU is in effect, there shall be no
lockouts. The curtailing of any operation or a part thereof for business reasons shall not
be construed to be a lockout. The Operations and DSOs Employee’s Unit agrees that so
long as this MOU is in effect, there shall be no strikes, sit-downs, slow-downs, stoppage of
work, boycott or any other unlawful acts that interfere with the District's operations for any
reasons whatsoever. So long as the parties are meeting and conferring with regards to
the renewal of this MOU this provision will continue in effect beyond the MOU's expiration
until one party delivers to the other 10 days written notice of its desire to terminate this
MOU.

36



12.2. The Operations and DSOs Employee’s Unit will make every bona fide effort
possible to prevent and/or terminate any strike or any other violation of this provision.
These efforts shall include, but not be limited to, urging the employees to return to work or
otherwise terminate their conduct that violates this provision; advising the employees that
their conduct is a violation of the labor MOU; advising the employees that they are subject
to discipline up to and including discharge; advising the employees that such discipline is
not subject to the grievance provision of this MOU and, if the Officers and/or Stewards are
employees of the District, they shall return to work if ordered to do so by the District.

12.3. Any violation of this provision may be the subject of disciplinary action,
including discharge, and such action or the District's determination of the facts upon which
such action is based may not be raised as a grievance under this MOU.

12.4. The District and the Operations Employees’ Unit further agree that in the
event there is a lockout or strike during the term of this MOU by either party, the other
party shall have a right to obtain an injunction ordering the lockout and/or strike to end and
ordering the return to work by all employees. The party locking out or striking waives its
right to challenge venue of the court in which the injunction is sought and further waives
any right that it may have to notice by the other party that such injunction proceedings are
being commenced or that a preliminary injunction or temporary restraining order is being
sought. The parties recognize that a violation of this provision causes the other irreparable
harm, which cannot be adequately compensated for by the award of damages. However,
such injunctive relief does not waive the right to damages that the non-violating party may
have.

SECTION 13 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

The District and the Union recognize the right of employees to form, join and
participate in lawful activities of employee organizations and the equal, alternative right
of employees to refuse to form, join and participate in employee organizations. Neither
party shall exert pressure upon or discriminate against an employee in the exercise of
these alternative rights.

SECTION 14 CONCLUSION

14.1 Term of MOU

14.1.1. This Agreement became effective on January 1, 2020 and shall remain in
effect until 11:59 p.m., December 31, 2022.

14.1.2. Not more than 150 days prior to the expiration of this MOU nor less than
90, either the Operations Employee’s Unit or the District shall deliver its written proposal to
the other for meeting and conferring on wages, hours and other terms and conditions of

37



employment within scope of representation. The parties shall as soon thereafter as
practical meet and confer in good faith in regards to such proposals. If neither party
delivers written proposals to the other not less than 90 days prior to the expiration of this
MOU it shall automatically renew for a period of one year and shall annually renew
thereafter on its anniversary date for periods of one year until and unless timely delivery of
a proposal is made.

14.2 Impasse Procedure

14.2.1. If agreement cannot be reached between the District's Board of Directors
and the recognized bargaining unit or independently represented employees, the
designated impasse procedures shall be as follows: The District and the employee
organization or the independently represented employees, together may petition the State
Mediation and Conciliation Service to provide a mediator to attempt to mediate the
differences between the parties concerning the interpretation, application, and equity of the
proposals being deliberated. The mediator shall not have the power to impose a
resolution, but merely have the power to consult, suggest and persuade as to the
particular facts of the dispute in an attempt to encourage the parties to reach an
agreement.

14.2.2. If mediation is not successful, the Board of Directors retains all of the rights
contained in Section 3500 et al of the Government Code and may subsequently declare
an impasse.

(Section 14.2 is also contained in 2015 PP&P’S Section 5.1002.9.)

14.3 Invalid Provisions

In the event that any provision of this MOU shall at any time be declared invalid by
any court of competent jurisdiction or through State or Federal governmental regulations or
decree, such decision, regulation or decree shall not invalidate the entire MOU. It being
the expressed intention of the parties hereto that all other provisions not be declared
invalid and shall remain in full force and effect. This MOU supersedes all prior MOU'’s
between the parties hereto.

14.4 Re-opening

At any time during the term of this agreement, either party may request to re-
open negotiations on any existing language item or any existing benefits, provided that
a legitimate reason exists. It will take the agreement of both parties to re-open
negotiations. Should the negotiations fail to reach an agreement, the original language
or benefits shall continue unchanged.

38



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

By

Steve Knell Date
General Manager

[Additional Signatures Follow on Next Page.]

39



OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL UNION NO. 3
OF THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEER, AFL-CIO

By

Lee Scully Date
Operating Engineers Member

By

Robert Becker Date
Operating Engineers Member

By

Jimmy Blase Date
Operating Engineers Member

By
Cody Coonce Date
Operating Engineers Member

[Additional Signatures Follow on Next Page.]

40



FOR OPERATION ENGINEERS LOCAL UNION NO. 3
OF THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS, AFL-CIO

Darren Semore Date
Business Representative

Date
Business Manager

Date
Recording-Corresponding Secretary

Date

Director, Public Employees Division

41



APPENDCIES

Appendix “A” Union Classifications Wage Scale

3.5% Cost of Living Adjustment and Applicable Equity Pay Adjustments

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
2020 SALARY SCHEDULE
UNION CLASSIFICATIONS
AS OF JANUARY 5, 2020

TITLE Stepl Step 2 Step3 Step 4 Step 5

Construction & Maintenance Worker $26.49 $27.82 $29.21 $30.67 $32.20

Distribution System Operator/Construction & Maintenance Worker $26.49 $27.82 $29.21 $30.67 $32.20

Equipment Operator $29.48 $30.95 $32.50 $34.12 $35.83
Fleet Equipment / Mechanic $27.20 $28.56 $29.99 $31.49 $33.06
Leadman - Construction & Maintenance $29.14 $30.60 $32.13 $33.73 $35.42

Leadman - Distribution System Operator/Construction &

32.98 34.6! 36.36 .18 .09
Maintenance Worker (Irrigation Season) $ $ 3 $36.9 $38 $40

Leadman - Maintenance & Operations $31.82 $33.41 $35.08 $36.84 $38.68
Maintenance / Operations Worker $28.93 $30.37 $31.89 $33.49 $35.16
SCADA Serviceman $29.40 $30.87 $32.41 $34.03 $35.73
SCADA Technician $34.40 $36.12 $37.93 $39.83 $41.82
Warehouseman / Yardman $26.49 $27.82 $29.21 $30.67 $32.20
Water Utilities Serviceman $25.91 $27.20 $28.56 $29.99 $31.49
Water Utilities Technician $29.54 $31.01 $32.56 $34.19 $35.90

3.5% Cost of Living Adjustment

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

2020 SALARY SCHEDULE
UNION CLASSIFICATIONS
AS OF JANUARY 3, 2021
TIME Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step S
Construction & Maintenance Worker $27.42 $28.79 $30.23 $31.74 $33.33

Distribution System Operator/Construction & Maintenance Worker $27.42 $28.79 $30.23 $31.74 $33.33

Equipment Operator $30.51 $32.04 $33.64 $35.32 $37.09
Fleet Equipment / Mechanic $28.15 $29.56 $31.03 $32.59 $34.21
Leadman - Construction & Maintenance $30.16 $31.67 $33.25 $34.91 $36.66

Leadman - Distribution System Operator/Construction &

34.13 35.84 .63 39.51 1.
Maintenance Worker (Irrigation Season}) $ s =2 $ $41.49

Leadman - Maintenance & Operations $32.93 $34.58 $36.31 $38.13 $40.03
Maintenance / Operations Worker $29.94 $31.43 $33.01 $34.66 $36.39
SCADA Serviceman $30.42 $31.95 $33.54 $35.22 $36.98
SCADA Technician $35.61 $37.39 $39.26 $41.22 $43.28
Warehouseman / Yardman $27.42 $28.79 $30.23 $31.74 $33.33
Water Utilities Serviceman $26.82 $28.16 $29.57 $31.04 $32.60
Water Utilities Technician $30.57 $32.10 $33.71 $35.39 $37.16

42



3% Cost of Living Adjustment

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

2020 SALARY SCHEDULE
UNION CLASSIFICATIONS

AS OF JANUARY 2, 2022
TITLE Step 1 Step 2 Step3 Step4 Step 5
Construction & Maintenance Worker $28.24 $29.66 $31.14 $32.70 $34.33
Distribution System Operator/Construction & Maintenance Worker $28.24 $29.66 $31.14 $32.70 $34.33
Equipment Operator $31.43 $33.00 $34.65 $36.38 $38.20
Fleet Equipment / Mechanic $28.99 $30.44 $31.96 $33.56 $35.24
Leadman - Construction & Maintenance $31.07 $32.62 $34.25 $35.96 $37.76
e e e s | g | wom | g | sam | san
Leadman - Maintenance & Operations $33.92 $35.62 $37.40 $39.27 $41.23
Maintenance / Operations Worker $30.83 $32.38 $34.00 $35.70 $37.48
SCADA Serviceman $31.34 $32.90 $34.55 $36.28 $38.09
SCADA Technician $36.68 $38.51 $40.44 $42.46 $44.58
Warehouseman / Yardman $28.24 $29.66 $31.14 $32.70 $34.33
Water Utilities Serviceman $27.62 $29.00 $30.45 $3L97 $33.57
Water Utilities Technician $31.49 $33.07 $34.72 $36.46 $38.28

43




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-NIL

ACCEPTANCE OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH THE OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL UNION NO. 3
BARGAINING GROUP

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2020, a Memorandum of Understanding was entered into by and
between the representatives of Oakdale Irrigation District, hereinafter referred to as
"District," and the named employees executing the Memorandum of Understanding who
were independently represented in the meet and confer process.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Memorandum of Understanding is
submitted to the Board of Directors for its consideration and approval. This resolution
supersedes any other previous resolution relating to the above subject matter.

Upon Motion of Director , seconded by Director , and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 5" day of May
2020.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Item Number: 10
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION

ACCEPTING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE NON-EXEMPT
CONFIDENTIAL BARGAINING GROUP EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the Resolution Accepting the Memorandum of Understanding

with the Non-Exempt Confidential Bargaining Group Effective January
1, 2020

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

At the November 19, 2019 Board Meeting, the Board approved the bargaining proposal for the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Non-Exempt Confidential Bargaining Group. OID and
the bargaining group met and conferred, agreeing to the following:

Three (3) year contract effective January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022

Cost of living adjustments
o Three percent (3.0%) effective January 5, 2020, January 3, 2021 and January 2, 2022

Equity adjustments and title changes as proposed

Increase 457 retirement match from 2% to 3%

Health insurance rates as approved by the Board on November 19, 2019

Dental and vision insurance rates as approved by the Board on August 20, 2019

Per Board Policy, a Board approved resolution is required to adopt the MOU.

FISCAL IMPACT: Under Board approved budget

ATTACHMENTS:
> Non-Exempt Confidential Memorandum of Understanding
> Resolution 2020-NIL

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAKDALE IHHIGATlON DISTRICT

NS

\, .i

MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
AND ITS
NON-EXEMPT CONFIDENTIAL
EMPLOYEES

January 1, 2020
Through
December 31, 2022




MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH
NON-EXEMPT CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES
OF THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

JANUARY 1, 2020 through DECEMBER 31, 2022

PURPOSE OF THE MEMORANDUM

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter “MOU”) executed by and between the
designated representative of the Oakdale Irrigation District, a public agency within the
State of California (hereinafter “District’) and the Non-Exempt Confidential Bargaining
Unit. This agreement constitutes the results of meeting and conferring in good faith as
prescribed by Section 3505 of the Government Code of the State of California. The
wages, fringe benefits and working conditions set forth in this MOU have been mutually
agreed upon by the signatories hereto who represent said parties.

The District is engaged in the operation and maintenance of ditches, canals and waterways
for the purpose of supplying water for agriculture and other purposes. The parties
acknowledge that responsibility for service rest upon both the District and its employees.
The purpose of this MOU is to assist in facilitating effective services to the public by providing
a framework for management of the personnel in District service. This MOU is intended to
set forth obligations, rights, privileges, benefits and provisions provided and required of
certain District employees.

It is not the intent of this MOU to replace or contradict any of the existing rules, regulations,
administrative orders and provisions currently in existence and enforced by the District. The
obligations, rights, privileges and benefits provided to the parties of this MOU shall not
modify any rules, regulations, administrative orders and provisions to any greater degree
than by this MOU's express terms and conditions. To the extent, there is a conflict; the
express terms of this MOU will take priority.

SECTION 1 - TERM OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

1.1 The term of this MOU is three (3) years, from January 1, 2020 through December 31,
2022.

SECTION 2 — COMPENSATION

2.1 Salaries — Base Wage Adjustments

211 Base Wage Adjustment (Cost of Living Adjustment)

Cost of Living wage increases effective at the beginning of the following pay
periods, and as described in Appendix “A”:



e January 5, 2020 3%
e January 3, 2021 3%
e January 2, 2022 3%

212 Base Wage Adjustment (Equity Pay Adjustment)

Equity pay increase in wages effective in the pay period beginning January 5,
2020 in the following job classifications, and as described in Appendix “A”:

e Accountant (Previously Principal Account Clerk) 13.5%
e Account Clerk 5.5%
o Receptionist/Typist Clerk/File Clerk 5.0%

213 The levels of pay identified under the Salary Schedule (Step 1-Step 5) shall
be granted on a merit basis, and available to employees only upon receiving
satisfactory performance appraisals given on an annual basis, or sooner as
determined by management. This change only applies to new employees hired after
January 1, 2005.

2.2 Hours

221 The District and the Confidential Employees Bargaining Unit agree to utilize
an Alternative Work Schedule (AWS) of a Nine-Eighty (9/80) schedule. The schedule
will consist of five (5) consecutive days for which the employee will work nine (9) hours
per day for four (4) days and eight (8) hours per day for one (1) day, followed by two
(2) consecutive days off; followed by four (4) consecutive work days for which the
employee will work nine (9) hours per day, followed by three (3) consecutive days off.

Sunday | Monday | Tuesday | Wednesday | Thursday | Friday | Saturday

Off 9 9 9 9 8 Off
Off 9 9 9 9 Off Off

Overtime will be paid for hours worked over each scheduled day and hours worked
on scheduled days off.

In the event a holiday falls on a scheduled nine (9) hour work day, the employee will
be paid eight (8) hours holiday pay and may elect to supplement the remaining one
(1) hours with vacation or floater holiday pay.

The AWS will be assigned at the sole discretion of the District's Management or
Supervisory employees. The District will notify the affected employees of a change in
their work schedule at least five (5) working days prior to implementation of the
change. This notification provides the employees with an opportunity to address
personal needs. The Employees may voluntarily agree to begin work on the new
schedule sooner if they wish.

4



AWS schedule, other than the aforementioned AWS schedule, may be requested
either by the District or the employees, provided that the District and the Confidential
Employees Meet and Confer over the impacts of such a change.

222 Members of the Confidential Bargaining Group may accumulate up to thirty
(30) hours of comp-time (forty-five (45) hours of regular pay comp-time) for use during
the year. The use of comp-time, as with all leave, is contingent upon the Department
Head'’s approval.

2.3 Retirement

231 The employees covered by this MOU will be entitled to participate in the
retirement program as provided in the CalPERS retirement plan contract with the District.
District to absorb all employer contribution increases in CalPERS costs. Any
modifications to the existing retirement plan, or changes involving underwriters affecting
District contribution, are subject to future negotiations.

2.3.2 CalPERS Classic Retirement

(a) Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is

sixty (60)

(b) Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

(c) Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest thirty-
six (36) consecutive months of employment.

(d) Effective January 1, 2015 CalPERS’ Classic Plan employees began
paying an additional 1% of the employee’s contribution; and

(e) Effective January 1st of each subsequent year thereafter employees
began paying an additional 1% of the employee’s contribution until the
employee’s maximum contribution of 7% was reached (January 2020).

2.3.3 CalPERS Public Employees Reform Act (PEPRA) Retirement (Effective
January 1, 2013)

(a) Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is
sixty-two (62)

(b) Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

(c) Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest
thirty-six (36) consecutive months of employment.



(d) PEPRA employees shall contribute 50% of the expected total normal cost
rate for the benefits based on the annual actuarial cost analysis provided
by CalPERS.

Any modifications to the existing retirement plan, or changes enacted by Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) or involving underwriters affecting District
contribution, are subject to future negotiations.

2.4 Matching Contributions to 457 Plan

241 District will match 100% of an employee's contribution up to a maximum of
3% of base wages to the employee’s 457 Plan account. Employee may use 1% of the
3% employer matching contribution to reduce the employee’s insurance premium
contribution.

2.5 Mandatory Direct Deposit

2.5.1 The employees covered by this MOU are required as a condition of employment
to enroll in direct deposit for the payment of wages.

SECTION 3 - INSURANCE

3.1 Health, Dental and Vision Insurance

3.1.1 Employees covered by this MOU will be covered by the District's health, dental
and vision coverage as provided by, and subject to, the provisions of Section 5901 of
the District's Personnel Policies and Procedures adopted by the Board of Directors on
August 18, 2015. The District's health, dental, and vision insurance contribution caps
are:

HEALTH DENTAL VISION TOTAL
Monthly Premium INSURANCE | INSURANCE |INSURANCE CAP
Employee Only $438.53 $35.35 $20.19 $494.07
Employee + 1 $961.81 $73.84 $20.19 $1,055.84
Employee + 2 or more $1,231.63 $135.03 $20.19 $1,386.85

As an option for employees, the District will provide an alternative core Plan to be chosen
by the District beginning on each plan's respective renewal date that will provide
coverage at no cost to the employee for their health, dental, and vision insurance
package. The benefits in the alternative core plan may vary from those benefits available
under other District plans.

312 For those employees who opt-out of insurance coverage their reimbursement
under this MOU shall be determined as the employee only coverage for medical
insurance.



3.2 Life Insurance

3.2.1 Life Insurance coverage will be provided for all eligible employees. The term
“ife Insurance” shall be identified to mean Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) of term life
insurance for confidential employees. For all new hires, the effective date for this
insurance coverage is the first of any month following two full months of continuous
service. The District agrees to pay 100% of the premium for this insurance.

SECTION 4 - LEAVES

4.1 Vacation Buy-Back

411 As of January 1 of each year, a Confidential Employee can hold no more
than six-hundred (600) hours (8 hrs x 75 days) in reserve. The District shall permit all
Confidential Employees to “buy” back” a portion of their individually accrued and
unused vacation days once each calendar year. Any such buy-back shall not exceed
a maximum of fifty percent (50%) of the vacation days accrued during a normal
calendar year by the requesting employees and a minimum of five (5) accrued
vacation days must remain in the employee’s accrual bank. Unless otherwise
specified, the hourly rate of pay for such days bought back by the employee shall be
the normal hourly rate of pay earned by the employee. A written request shall be
submitted to the General Manager at any time during the calendar year. The District
shall issue payment to the requesting employee within thirty (30) days after the date
of the written request.

4.2 Sick Leave Policy

421 The District provides paid sick leave in order to prevent a loss of eamings that
may be caused by iliness, injury, or time off required to seek preventative care. Paid
sick leave is not intended to provide additional paid time off for reasons unrelated to
injury, iliness, or the other purposes set forth in the complete policy. See Oakdale
Irrigation District Personnel Policies and Procedures Section 5.803 (Sick Leave).

SECTION 5 - WORKING CONDITIONS

5.1 Health and Wellness Policy

511 The District is committed to its employees and has established a policy for an
Employee Health and Wellness Program that will encourage a healthy lifestyle, reduce
absenteeism, lower health and insurance costs, lower workplace injuries, reduce stress,
and improve employee performance and moral. See Oakdale Irrigation District
Personnel Policies and Procedures Section 5.905 (Employee Health and Weliness
Program).



5.2 Holidays

5.2.1 Eligible employees are entitied to the following holidays with 8 hours pay
when they fall on a work day in the basic workweek:

New Year's Day Thanksgiving Day

President’s Day Friday immediately following Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Christmas Eve Day

Independence Day Christmas Day

Labor Day

Veteran's Day
When a recognized holiday falls on a Saturday, the day immediately preceding shall be
deemed to be the paid holiday. When a recognized holiday falls on a Sunday, the next
day shall be deemed to be the paid holiday.

SECTION 6 - FUTURE BARGAINING

6.1 Representation

6.1.1 Non-Exempt Confidential Employees may meet and confer on a one-on-one
basis with the General Manager on all future issues of wage and benefits negotiations.

6.2 Re-opening

6.2.1 At any time during the term of this agreement, either party may request to re-
open negotiations on any existing language item or any existing benefits, provided that
a legitimate reason exists. It will take the agreement of both parties to re-open
negotiations. Should the negotiations fail to reach an agreement, the original language
or benefits shall continue unchanged.



SECTION 7 - CONCLUSION

This Agreement becomes effective on the date it is executed and shall remain in effect until
11:59 p.m., December 31, 2022.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

By: !j\xil/ 4//25/20

Steve Knell, General Manager Date

NON-EXEMPT CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES

o Clilhats @Dh $)23)2020.

Nichole Fiez Date
By: M&&mﬁ_ U |25 ] 2020
Denise Freiwald Date



ol

1D1HLSIA NOLLYDIHYI ITIVANVO

S8S/Ev  8vi9Tv  €0696€ E0UBLE  c0009¢ 79610 Svec6T SBTEBT  €9VhLT  SSTIT [543 e 06" 18T [7%:72 MNYUTTD T11/1SIdAL NHTTD/ISINOLLAIITY
6v0509 8£¢9LG 86/8YS ¥99LCS  9LLL6V ¥576L°C 9569C T6TEST OETIYC SViL6TC T6VE VOEE 99TE STOE wUB YU NOILVALSINTAQY / Xu310 TIOUAVd
VITi0a 6687 €C995¥ CEBeev ELTELT T6L1€¢  ¥5100¢ Tredlc OEC007  S6'9067T 168 6547 (1412 €0'ST YT NI LINNOIIV
OTY8CL  0c4€69 $69099 E£<6¢d  OLT66S 7619c€ €810t JE6vDE SIPO6C 9899L¢ 0T W00 ase [ (SVE INVLNNODIY
sdaxs pdats gdags zdss tdas gdas pdas sdxs zdas Tdags sdags pdays  gdms zdms  pda;s LINN TVLLNIGIINOD 1dWDGE-NON
ATHLNOW ADEIMAE ATSNOH
T20Z ‘S AUVNNVYT 40 SV
S3IA0TdNI NOINN NON
INGIHIS AYVIVS T20T
1IRILSIQ NOLLYDIYH ITVARVO %€
ov8vZy OU9v0'r  ChESR'E  €6'699E  LI'SBY'E 02096T €981 O0SSLLT 1IS€69T OUEI0T TS5 YE'ET [543 1Te 91°0¢ AT 114/LSIdAL NYTID/LSINOIL3IFY
VIS  vSveS ETgZES  Lvbl0S OCTIL¢ Oressc VIeSv'e vOTveEe TS90eCe 68'€E Fr&43 vLOE 876 8T WYTTD NOLLVULSININGY /X831 TIO¥AVd
(8'S/8Y 89€V Sscvv 96 TICY  GETIOV 0v'0sZ¢ vCeviz SUIv0C 86EW6LT  IPISET €18 6L'9C 155 0T 2554 Y¥I1D LNNODV
00Z0L VCSEL9 TSVIv9 9060T9 S 8I8S 00%9Te [SSOT'E bS096C LS6I8C  (0E'S897 080 98°8E 10°ZE VZ'SE LS'EE INVINNOIOV
gdag pdag gdals zdas Tdag gdag pdas gdag 2dag Tdag gdxng pdas gdms gdas pdus LINN WILNIGIINOD LdWTX3-NON
ATHLNOW ATEIM-18 AT4NOH
0202 ‘S AYVNNVYE 40 SV
$33A01d3 NOINN NON
TINAIHIS ANVIVS 0202

%E

¥/ Xipuaddy




bl

1314151 NOLLYDINYI ITVANVO

TI205% 05760 019807 €veos€ COBOLE TT080C  SLT86T  18988T 16961 OUTILT 009 [TR73 65°EC vz 6€TC MUTDD THI/LSIAL YHITI/LSINOLLITITY
107609 SCS66G  (9C™S  whesEs 60ZLIS 16087 VEoeELC 06809¢ [9v@r¢ SEU9EC S6s€  WVE  19¢ it 8560 JUI10 NOLLVULSINIAQY / XeT 1D TIO¥AVd
T8UTS  8v96r 63169 VB3 89" SviRe?  OL€[lC 6vs9r¢ Le<0C 9I196T et el 0L 8lsC  Sav T INAOIOY
WTET  ToSTL  OTSe0  OLTEr9  GvZIiD | | BLZ0vE  S3L6LE  WBOWE SCIebC tESWBC | | Scew W 9reE  6elt 195 INVINNOJIV
sdag ydag gdag zdaig rdas sdxng pdas gdais zdas 1das sdais  pdas  gdms zdws pdas LINN TVLLN3GIINOD 1dWE)X3-NON
ATHLNOW ADHIMAG ATSNOH
2202 ‘T AYYNNYT 40 SV
533A01dIN3 NOINN NON
FINAIHIS AYVIVS 2207




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-NIL

ACCEPTANCE OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH THE NON-EXEMPT CONFIDENTIAL BARGAINING GROUP

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2020, a Memorandum of Understanding was entered into by and
between the representatives of Oakdale Irrigation District, hereinafter referred to as
"District," and the named employees executing the Memorandum of Understanding who
were independently represented in the meet and confer process.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Memorandum of Understanding is
submitted to the Board of Directors for its consideration and approval. This resolution
supersedes any other previous resolution relating to the above subject matter.

Upon Motion of Director , seconded by Director , and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 5" day of May
2020.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
ltem Number: 11
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION
ACCEPTING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE EXEMPT
SUPERVISORY BARGAINING GROUP EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the Resolution Accepting the Memorandum of Understanding
with the Exempt Supervisory Bargaining Group Effective January 1,
2020

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

At the November 19, 2019 Board Meeting, the Board approved the bargaining proposal for the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Exempt Supervisory Bargaining Group. OID and the
bargaining group met and conferred, agreeing to the following:

Three (3) year contract effective January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022

Cost of living adjustments
o Three (3.0%) effective January 5, 2020, January 3, 2021 and January 2, 2022
Equity adjustments and title changes as proposed
Increase 457 retirement match from 2% to 3%
Health insurance rates as approved by the Board on November 19, 2020
Dental and vision insurance rates as approved by the Board on August 20, 2019

e e @ o

Per Board Policy, a Board approved resolution is required to adopt the MOU. The MOU has been
approved by the Exempt Supervisory Group and is being circulated for signature. A fully executed
copy will be provided once executed.

FISCAL IMPACT: Under Board approved budget
ATTACHMENTS:

> Exempt Supervisory Memorandum of Understanding
» Resolution 2020-NIL

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAI(DALE IHHIGATION DISTRICT

NS

MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
AND ITS
EXEMPT SUPERVISORY
EMPLOYEES

January 1, 2020
Through
December 31, 2022




MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH
EXEMPT SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES
OF THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

JANUARY 1, 2020 through DECEMBER 31, 2022

PURPOSE OF THE MEMORANDUM

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter “MOU") executed by and between the
designated representative of the Oakdale Irrigation District, a public agency within the
State of California (hereinafter “District”) and the Exempt Supervisors Bargaining Unit.
This agreement constitutes the results of meeting and conferring in good faith as
prescribed by Section 3505 of the Government Code of the State of California. The
wages, fringe benefits and working conditions set forth in this MOU have been mutually
agreed upon by the signatories hereto who represent said parties.

The District is engaged in the operation and maintenance of ditches, canals and waterways
for the purpose of supplying water for agriculture and other purposes. The parties
acknowledge that responsibility for service rest upon both the District and its employees.
The purpose of this MOU is to assist in facilitating effective services to the public by providing
a framework for management of the personnel in District service. This MOU is intended to
set forth obligations, rights, privileges, benefits and provisions provided and required of
certain District employees.

It is not the intent of this MOU to replace or contradict any of the existing rules, regulations,
administrative orders and provisions currently in existence and enforced by the District. The
obligations, rights, privileges and benefits provided to the parties of this MOU shall not
modify any rules, regulations, administrative orders and provisions to any greater degree
than by this MOU's express terms and conditions. To the extent, there is a conflict; the
express terms of this MOU will take priority.

SECTION 1 — TERM OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

1.1 The term of this MOU is three (3) years, from January 1, 2020 through December 31,
2022.

SECTION 2 — COMPENSATION

2.1 Salaries — Base Wage Adjustments

211 Base Wage Adjustment (Cost of Living Adjustment)

Cost of Living wage increases effective at the beginning of the following pay
periods, and as described in Appendix “A™:



e January 5, 2020 3%
e January 3, 2021 3%
e January 2,2022 | 3%

21.2 Base Wage Adjustment (Equity Pay Adjustment)

Equity pay increase in wages effective in the pay period beginning January 35,
2020 in the following job classifications, and as described in Appendix “A”

e Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board 5.0%

e Human Resources Administrator 1.60%
e |IT Systems Administrator 7.94%
e Safety Coordinator 19.00%

e Water Utilities & SCADA Supervisor 5.50%

213 The levels of pay identified under the Salary Schedule (Step 1-Step 5) shall
be granted on a merit basis, and available to employees only upon receiving satisfactory
performance appraisals given on an annual basis, or sooner as determined by
management. This change only applies to new employees hired after January 1, 2005.

2.2 Retirement
221 The employees covered by this MOU will be entitled to participate in the
retirement program as provided in the CalPERS retirement plan contract with the District.

District to absorb all employer contribution increases in CalPERS costs.

2.2.2 CalPERS Classic Retirement

(@) Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is

sixty (60)

(b) Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

(c) Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest thirty-
six (36) consecutive months of employment.

(d) Effective January 1, 2015 CalPERS’ Classic Plan employees began
paying an additional 1% of the employee’s contribution; and

(e) Effective January 1st of each subsequent year thereafter, employees
began paying an additional 1% of the employee’s contribution until the
employee’s maximum contribution of 7% was reached (January 2020).



2.2.3 CalPERS Public Employees Reform Act (PEPRA) Retirement (Effective
January 1, 2013)

(a) Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is
sixty-two (62)

(b) Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

(c) Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest
thirty-six (36) consecutive months of employment.

(d) PEPRA employees shall contribute 50% of the expected total normal cost
rate for the benefits based on the annual actuarial cost analysis provided
by CalPERS.

Any modification to the existing retirement plan or changes enacted by Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) or involving underwriters affecting District
contribution, are subject to future negotiations.

2.3 Matching Contributions to 457 Plan

2.3.1 District will match 100% of an employee's contribution up to a maximum of
3% of base wages to the employee's 457 Plan account. Employees may use 1% of the
3% employer matching contribution to reduce the employee’s insurance premium
contribution.

2.4 Mandatory Direct Deposit

2.4.1 The employees covered by this MOU are required as a condition of
employment to enroll in direct deposit for the payment of wages

2.5 Standby Pay During Non-Irrigation Season

2.5.1 Employees in the following positions shall, during non-irrigation season, be
assigned to perform standby services for a period of 7 contiguous days:

o Assistant Water Operations Manager
e \Water Operations Supervisor

Only one such person shall be on standby during each day of duty.
Employees will receive sixteen (16) hours of Administrative Leave per year to

compensate employees for standby assignments. Hours will be added during the 18t
pay period of each year.



SECTION 3 - INSURANCE

3.1 Health, Vision, and Dental Insurance

3.11 Employees covered by this MOU will be covered by the District's health, dental
and vision coverage as provided by, and subject to, the provisions of Section 5.901 of
the District's Personnel Policies and Procedures. The District's health, dental, and

vision insurance contributions caps are:

HEALTH DENTAL VISION TOTAL
Monthly Premium INSURANCE | INSURANCE [INSURANCE CAP
Employee Only $438.53 $35.35 $20.19 $494.07
Employee + 1 $961.81 $73.84 $20.19 $1,055.84
Employee + 2 or more $1,231.63 $135.03 $20.19 $1,386.85

As an option for employees, the District will provide an alternative core Plan to be
chosen by the District beginning on each plan's respective renewal date that will provide
coverage at no cost to the employee for their health, dental, and vision insurance
package. The benefits in the alternative core plan may vary from those benefits
available under other District plans.

3.1.2 For those employees who opt-out of insurance coverage their reimbursement
under this MOU shall be determined as the employee only coverage for medical
insurance.

3.2 Life Insurance

3.2.1 Life Insurance coverage will be provided for all eligible employees. The term
“Life Insurance” shall be identified to mean Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000)
of term life insurance for exempt supervisory employees. For all new hires, the effective
date for this insurance coverage is the first of any month following two full months of
continuous service. The District agrees to pay 100% of the premium for this insurance.

SECTION 4 - LEAVES

4 .1 Vacation Buy-Back

4.1.1 As of January 1 of each year, an Exempt Supervisory Employee can hold
no more than six-hundred (600) hours (8 hrs x 75 days) in reserve. The District shall
permit all Exempt Supervisor Employees to “buy” back” a portion of their individually
accrued and unused vacation days once each calendar year. Any such buy-back
shall not exceed a maximum of fifty percent (50%) of the vacation days accrued
during a normal calendar year by the requesting employees and a minimum of five
(5) accrued vacation days must remain in the employee’s accrual bank. Unless
otherwise specified, the hourly rate of pay for such days bought back by the employee
shall be the normal hourly rate of pay earned by the employee. A written request
shall be submitted to the General Manager at any time during the calendar year. The



District shall issue payment to the requesting employee within thirty (30) days after
the date of the written request.

4.2 Sick Leave Policy

421 The District provides paid sick leave in order to prevent a loss of earnings
that may be caused by iliness, injury, or time off required to seek preventative care.
Paid sick leave is not intended to provide additional paid time off for reasons
unrelated to injury, illness, or the other purposes set forth in the complete policy. See
Oakdale Irrigation District Personnel Policies and Procedures Section 5.803 (Sick
Leave).

4.2.2 Payment of Sick Leave at Retirement or Termination of Employment. At the
time of retirement or termination of employment, Supervisory employees will receive
thirty (30%) percent of their pro-rated salary for each day of accrued and unused sick
leave for the first sixty (60) days, and fifty (50%) percent of their pro-rated salary for
each day of accrued and unused sick leave for all days in excess of sixty (60) days.

4.3 Miscellaneous Short Term Leaves

Employees may also take time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer
firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel. Exempt
employees who work any portion of a workweek in which they perform these duties
will receive their full salary for that workweek. Otherwise, employees may substitute
accrued vacation or floating holiday pay to receive pay for leaves taken for these
purposes. See Oakdale Irrigation District Personnel Policies and Procedures Section
(5.813 Miscellaneous Short Term Leaves).

SECTION 5 - WORKING CONDITIONS

5.1 Health and Wellness Policy

511 The District is committed to its employees and has established a policy for
an Employee Health and Wellness Program that will encourage a healthy lifestyle,
reduce absenteeism, lower health and insurance costs, lower workplace injuries,
reduce stress, and improve employee performance and moral. See Oakdale
Irrigation District Personnel Policies and Procedures Section 5.905 (Employee Health
and Wellness Program).

5.2 Holidays

521 Eligible employees are entitled to the following holidays with 8 hours pay
when they fall on a work day in the basic workweek:



New Year's Day Thanksgiving Day

President’s Day Friday immediately following Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Christmas Eve Day

Independence Day Christmas Day

Labor Day

Veteran’s Day
When a recognized holiday falls on a Saturday, the day immediately preceding shall

be deemed to be the paid holiday. When a recognized holiday falls on a Sunday, the
next day shall be deemed to be the paid holiday.

SECTION 6 - FUTURE BARGAINING

6.1 Representation

6.1.1 Exempt Supervisory Employees may meet and confer on a one-on-one
basis with the General Manager on all future issues of wage and benefits
negotiations.

6.2 Re-opening

6.2.1 At any time during the term of this agreement, either party may request to
re-open negotiations on any existing language item or any existing benefits, provided
that a legitimate reason exists. It will take the agreement of both parties to re-open
negotiations. Should the negotiations fail to reach an agreement, the original
language or benefits shall continue unchanged.



SECTION 7 - CONCLUSION

This Agreement becomes effective on the date it is executed and shall remain in effect until
11:59 p.m., December 31, 2022.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

By:

Steve Knell, General Manager Date

EXEMPT SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES

By:

Anthony (“A. J.”) Borba Date

By:

Joe Kosakiewicz Date



e8'vL0'6  TLTY9'8  OU'TEL’R  (OC6E8'L  06'SIV'L 6€'89T'y  P6BE6'E  00'66L'E  60BIYE  UB'SHL'E SE'TS 98’6y 6Ly €2'Sy L0'EV HOSIAYIANS YAYDS B SIILMILA HILYA
¥L709'8  €TC6L8  €0'TOBL  OS'OEY'L  L9'9L0°L €0'0L6'E S608LE  ¥EOOOE Ov6ereE  9T99TE £9°6 9Tty T0°6Y 87Ty €80V YOSIAYINS SNOILYYIJO ¥3LYM
I8'STE6  9C¢l88 LL6WWS Oviv0s 6LVI9L €9°66CY 681607 68668°€ SBLVILE  CELESE SLES 6T'TS S8y EED W JOLVNIGYO0D AL34VS
OE'€S9'6  C¢9€6T6  €8SS.8 BSBEEB 6L IV6L LESSv'y TCEwCy ST TvOV  TL8YBE€ WY S99E 69°SS VO'ES 1505 T8y (22 HOLVHISININGY SWALSAS 1)
LTOEL'6  ©P906L'8  POTLER®  [EEL6'L  BYEESL 8009Cy ¢Z/S0Y ZO'V9R'E  C00B9E  SLWOSE ST'ES [7A73 0E'8Y 00°9% 18'ey JOLYYLSININGY SIOUNOSIY NYWNH
69'878°L  6B'SSY'L  SB00T'L  TL7T9L'9  8I0VF9 YZETIE  BUTW'E  CELLL'E  SCTZIE  29°TU67T sy TOEY L60Y 20°6E 9T'LE 4OSIAY3ANS IDNYNILNIVIA 137714
vLT09'8  ETZ6L'8  €0C0BL  OSOEY'L  [99/0°L €00L6't 8608L'E 6000 Ov6ere 9T 9OCE €96V 9Ly 10°Sy 18Ty €80V ¥OSIAHIANS SNOLLYYIAO a13id
00TIOL  ST'ZL9'9 6T'6SE'S  LE9S0'9  L6L9L'S G8'SEC'E 9L T80E  TOSE6C  SCS6LC  YIT99C Syoy 53 69'9€ 6 VE 8TEE Q¥v0d 3HL OL X4ITI/LNVISISSV IAILNITXA
8669901 O0L/STOT 00796 EEE€EIC6 09bLL'8 8576y LI8BYY  CevIry TETSCY (86t €519 09'85 18°5S ST'ES 7908 Y3INIDNI ILYIDOSSY
L6'l6V'6  69SK0'6  ve'vI98  TLV0C8  TOVISL 8EBEY  €6PLIY  ET9L6'E  6LUBL'E  OVO09E 08'%s 61'TS 0’6k EE'LY 80°SY YIOVNVIN SNOLLYYIJO ¥ILYM LNVISISSY
LLEET'E 288698 6 VBL'S  60088L  LEVISL 8S'ST¢y  ¥BYI0Y  99'€78’€  8STYI'E  LT'SOPE 697 61°0S 08'LY 75'sh SE'EY HIINIDNI LNVLSISSY
sdaig pdars gdag zdas Tdais sdars pydag gdais zdars Tdags sdais  pdag gdais  zdais Tdais 1INN AYOSIAYZANS LdWIXA
ATHLNOW ADi3aM-8 ATNNOH
TZ0Z ‘€ AYVNNVT 40 SY
$33IA01dN3 NOINN NON
TINAIHDS AYVIVS TZ0Z
10191510 NOILYOIHYI ITVAIVO %E
60188 S606E8  8ETE6'L  V8OT9L  Tv'8YT'L 8E'990'Y  VLTR'E  EE'88YE  69TCISE  IYSYE'E €8'0S ey 0TSy T6°EY [2512 4OSIA¥IANS ¥AYIS B SILLMILA ¥ILYM
8TTSE®  O0SE€S6L  LLPISL  90VICL  v50L8°9 6EVSBE  S80/9'C  S0'96V'E  LSELEE  COTLLE 8T8y 68'SY 0L'EY 9Ty ¥9'6E HOSIAYIANS SNOLLYYIJO HILYM
Olv¥0'6  €vEI98 9Ce0C8 €9TIBL  OIOWP'L 0TV[T'v  €Y'SL6'€  CU'98LE  €8°S09'F  CTWEVE 81°TS 6961 €€y £0'Sh €6°TY YOLVYNIQYOOI ALI3VS
EVTLEG  LT'SC68 (10058  OF'SE08  O06'60LL 87T'STEY  TEBILY  SUEZ6'E  VE9EL'E  TY'8SS'E L0YS Cas vo'sy oL'9y srvy YOLVYLSININGY SWALSAS LI
L1968  SPPESS  SOBLT'®  00TW.'L  BETLEL T6'SETY  86BEGE  TYISL'E  LLUSE  YIUOVE oLTS vT6r 68'Sy 9’y £S°TY HOLVYLISINIWAY SIUNOSTY NYNNH
80009, LI'BECL 0S'€689  vZ'995°9  T9TSC9 ELI0GE OLOvEE Z918TE LIOEOE C8S88¢C | | S8ev LTy 1168 88'LE L0'9€ HOSIAYAANS IDNYNILNIVIN 13314
8TTSE'8 0S€S67 LLwISL 9OVILL V5089 6EYS8'€ SBOL9€  SO9K'E  [S6IEE  C0TLIE 8T8 68°Sty 0L'EY [Z33] ¥9'6€ YOSIAH3dNS SNOLLYYIJO a13ld
99'908'9  €978Y'9  VB'ELT'9  S86L8'S  98'665'S VaTYTE ¥6'166C OY6Y8C SLEILT  SSV8ST LT6E Ov'LE 79'SE T6'EE 1e'CE Q4vOH IHL OL ¥¥FI/LINVISISSY JAILLNDIXT
€9°GSE'0T 157986  98'C6E'6  BS'SWE'S  09'61S'8 IS6LLY  E61SST  LTSEEY €L8CTYy  CUIE6E V165 0695 6TYS 1918 ST6V ¥3INIDN3 ILVID0SSY
vI'7ZZ'6  66'78L'8 9L'VIES  EV'996'L  BOLSSL LE95C'Y  69'€SO'Y  99'098°t  TB'9LYE  ELTOS'E oz'es L9005 9T'8y 9%6'Sy LLEY YIOVNVN SNOILYYIO YILYM LNVLSISSY
06'/98'8  T9SPY'8  SPEVOB  EV099'L  SOSETL 83760 86'L68'€ OEZIL'E  BGGESE  TULYEE 9rTS [7%:72 0v'9v 6TV 60Ty ¥IINIONT LNVISISSY
s dais pdas g dais zdais Tdars gdxs pdas gdays zdals Tdais gdays  pdayg gda)s zdays pdais LINN AYOSIAY2NS LAWTA
ATHLNOW A3Im-1a ATINOH
0Z0Z ‘S AYVNNYT 40 SY
S3IA0TdINI NOINN NON
3INAIHIS AYVIVS 0202
1JI¥LSIA NOLLYDIYI 3TVANVO %E

Y, Xipuaddy



bl

60LVEG 002068  60SLU'E  [EP08 98689L | | vOVIEY 19801% 96CI6€ E992LE  [LGVSE €6°'€S 9E'TS T6'8 859 9EWY YOSIA¥INS YAVIS '8 SILLITLLN YILYM
6L'658'8 68'L€y'8 60908 CVESOL  L6SBIL €T'680  IYP68'€E  96'80L'€  SETESE  VIPIEE I8 89°8Y 9E'y ST soTy HOSIAYIdNS SNOILYEIJO HILYM
GE'G6S'6  Cv8EL'6  9CE0LB  ¢88BC'8  IIVESL 098y ELLITY 68910  T9'SZSE  tEV9'E 9€°'SS 75 1208 Wiy ¥S'sy YOLVNIGYOO0D AL33VS
796’6 [0'69Y'6  9T'8TO6  ¢L88S8  PLGLIB 98'885y  VEOLEY €Ty  EOVIE'E  9TSLLE 9€'LS €95 €0°7S as'ey (5577 HOLYYLSININGY SWALSAS LI
069056 617S06  PO'€C9'8  Zv'CIT8  SETI8L 08'[8€y 9BBLIY 986L6'E SEO0BL'E  SBBOI'E S8YS A SL6Y 8LV sy JOLVYLSINIAQY SIDUNOSIH NVINNH
G5'E90'8  LS6L9L  SSETEL 095969 O6EEY9 VOTZL'E vys€E EISLEE 6G3VILE OB 190€ S €YY {447 610y LT'8E YOSIAYIINS IONVNILNIVIA 13314
606588  68°LEV'8  60'9€0'8  TYES9L  L6'88TL EU'680Y  TYPG8'E  9680L'E  SETCESE  PIVOEE 18 898y 9€'9Y STt 22 YOSIAYIdNS SNOLLYYIJO a13id
I97TTCL  BLLL8'0  [ZOSS9  SE'BELY  6LTVES S0'EEE'E  9E'WLT'E  OC'ETOE  VT6L8T  ETTWLT 9°TH 89'6E 6L'LE 66'SE 8TVE QYVOR FHL OL NYFID/LNVLSISSY IALNDIXI
GG'GRE'0T  EYTOVOT  CTV96'6  €L68Y6  V8LEDS ST0L0's 18878y [8'86SV  SRGLEW €LY gEt9 909 6v'LS SLYS 14Xx4] HYIANIONT LVIDOSSY
T678L'6 90LIEG  6E€/88  SBOSK'8  EVBWOB 6UGISY  8T00E'Y  Tv'S60r  6E006'E  SIVILE '9s SLES 6TTS SL'8y E&2 YIDVNYN SNOLLYYIO 431VM INVISISSY
O86EL'L SOCveEy 6CSELY [coebE EBUSLE ZLCLSE 8TVS 69'TS [E434 689% S9bp H3IINION3 INVLSISSY
sdas vdais gdais zdas Tdas s dais pdas gdas zdas Tdas sda)s  pdeis  edsis zdais pdags 1INN AYOSIAMIINS 1dWE
ATHINOW ADIIM-Ie ATYNOH
20T ‘T AMYNNYT 40 SY
S$3IA0TJNT NOINN NON
ITNAIHIS AUVIVS TT0C

1DLSIA NOILYOIYI 3TVANVO




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-NIL

ACCEPTANCE OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH THE EXEMPT SUPERVISORY BARGAINING GROUP

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2020, a Memorandum of Understanding was entered into by and
between the representatives of Oakdale lIrrigation District, hereinafter referred to as
"District," and the named employees executing the Memorandum of Understanding who
were independently represented in the meet and confer process.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Memorandum of Understanding is
submitted to the Board of Directors for its consideration and approval. This resolution
supersedes any other previous resolution relating to the above subject matter.

Upon Motion of Director , seconded by Director , and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 5" day of May
2020.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Itemm Number: 12
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION
ACCEPTING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE EXEMPT
MANAGEMENT BARGAINING GROUP EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the Resolution Accepting the Memorandum of Understanding
with the Exempt Management Bargaining Group Effective January 1,
2020

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

At the November 19, 2019 Board Meeting, the Board approved the bargaining proposal for the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Exempt Management Bargaining Group. OID and the
bargaining group met and conferred, agreeing to the following:

e Three (3) year contract effective January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022
e Cost of living adjustments
o Three percent (3.0%) effective January 5, 2020, January 3, 2021 and January 2, 2022
Equity adjustments as proposed
Increase 457 retirement match from 3% to 4%
Health insurance rates as approved by the Board on November 19, 2019
Dental and vision insurance rates as approved by the Board on August 20, 2019

Per Board Policy, a Board approved resolution is required to adopt the MOU.

FISCAL IMPACT: Under Board approved budget

ATTACHMENTS:
» Exempt Management Memorandum of Understanding
> Resolution 2020-NIL

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAI(DALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

NS

-~

MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
AND ITS
EXEMPT MANAGEMENT
EMPLOYEES

January 1, 2020
Through
December 31, 2022



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH
EXEMPT MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES
OF THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

JANUARY 1, 2020 through DECEMBER 31, 2022

PURPOSE OF THE MEMORANDUM

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter “MOU”) executed by and between the
designated representative of the Oakdale Irrigation District, a public agency within the
State of California (hereinafter “District”) and the Exempt Management Bargaining Unit.
This agreement constitutes the results of meeting and conferring in good faith as
prescribed by Section 3505 of the Government Code of the State of California. The
wages, fringe benefits and working conditions set forth in this MOU have been mutually
agreed upon by the signatories hereto who represent said parties.

The District is engaged in the operation and maintenance of ditches, canals and waterways
for the purpose of supplying water for agriculture and other purposes. The parties
acknowledge that responsibility for service rest upon both the District and its employees.
The purpose of this MOU is to assist in facilitating effective services to the public by providing
a framework for management of the personnel in District service. This MOU is intended to
set forth obligations, rights, privileges, benefits and provisions provided and required of
certain District employees.

It is not the intent of this MOU to replace or contradict any of the existing rules, regulations,
administrative orders and provisions currently in existence and enforced by the District. The
obligations, rights, privileges and benefits provided to the parties of this MOU shall not
modify any rules, regulations, administrative orders and provisions to any greater degree
than by this MOU's express terms and conditions. To the extent, there is a conflict; the
express terms of this MOU will take priority.

SECTION 1 — TERM OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

1.1 The term of this MOU is three (3) years, from January 1, 2020 through December 31,
2022.

SECTION 2 — COMPENSATION

2.1 Salaries — Base Wage Adjustments
211 Base Wage Adjustment (Cost of Living Adjustment).

Cost of Living wage increases effective at the beginning of the following pay
periods, and as described in Appendix “A”".



e January5,2020 | 3%
e January 3,2021 | 3%
e January 2,2022 | 3%

212 Base Wage Adjustment (Equity Pay Adjustment

Equity pay increase in wages effective in the pay period beginning January 5,
2020 in the following job classifications, and as described in Appendix “A’

¢ Chief Financial Officer 9.75%
e Support Services Manager 3.00%

» Water Operations Manager/District Engineer 11.80%

213 The levels of pay identified under the Salary Schedule (Step 1-Step 5) shall
be granted on a merit basis, and available to employees only upon receiving satisfactory
performance appraisals given on an annual basis, or sooner as determined by the
General Manager.

2.2 Retirement
221 The employees covered by this MOU will be entitled to participate in the
retirement program as provided in the CalPERS retirement plan contract with the District.
District to absorb all employer contribution increases in CalPERS costs.

2.2.2 CalPERS Classic Retirement

(a) Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is

sixty (60)

(b) Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

(c) Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest thirty-
six (36) consecutive months of employment.

(d) Effective January 1, 2015 CalPERS’ Classic Plan employees began
paying an additional 1% of the employee’s contribution; and

(e) Effective January 1st of each subsequent year thereafter, employees
began paying an additional 1% of the employee’s contribution until the
employee’s maximum contribution of 7% was reached (January 2020).

2.2.3 CalPERS Public Employees Reform Act (PEPRA) Retirement (Effective
January 1, 2013)




(a) Vesting occurs after five (5) full years of service. Normal retirement age is
sixty-two (62)

(b) Retirement benefits will be equal to two percent (2%) of average monthly
final compensation times credited years of service.

(c) Final compensation is the average monthly pay rate over the highest
thirty-six (36) consecutive months of employment.

(d) PEPRA employees shall contribute 50% of the expected total normal cost
rate for the benefits based on the annual actuarial cost analysis provided
by CalPERS.

Any modification to the existing retirement plan or changes enacted by Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) or involving underwriters affecting District
contribution, are subject to future negotiations.

2.3 Matching Contributions to 457 Plan

2.31 District will match 100% of an employee's contribution up to a maximum of
4% of base wages to the employee's 457 Plan account. Employees may use 1.5% of
the 4% employer matching contribution to reduce the employee’s insurance premium
contribution.

2.4 Mandatory Direct Deposit

2.41 The employees covered by this MOU are required as a condition of
employment to enroll in direct deposit for the payment of wages.

SECTION 3 - INSURANCE

3.1.1 Employees covered by this MOU will be covered by the District's health, dental
and vision coverage as provided by, and subject to, the provisions of Section 5.901 of
the District's Personnel Policies and Procedures. The District's health, dental, and vision
insurance contributions caps are:

HEALTH DENTAL VISION
Monthly Premium INSURANCE | INSURANCE [INSURANCE
Employee Only $438.53 $34.33 $21.32
Employee + 1 $961.81 $71.83 $21.32
Employee + 2 or more $1,231.63 $130.93 $21.32

As an option for employees, the District will provide an alternative core Plan to be chosen
by the District beginning on each plan's respective renewal date that will provide
coverage at no cost to the employee for their heaith, dental, and vision insurance



package. The benefits in the alternative core plan(s) may vary from those benefits
available under other District plans.

3.1.2 For those employees who opt-out of insurance coverage their reimbursement
under this MOU shall be determined as the employee only coverage for medical
insurance.

3.2 Life Insurance

3.21 Life Insurance coverage will be provided for all eligible employees. The term
“ife Insurance” shall be identified to mean One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000)
of term life insurance for Exempt Management Employees. For all new hires, the
effective date for this insurance coverage is the first of any month following two full
months of continuous service. The District agrees to pay 100% of the premium for this
insurance.

SECTION 4 - LEAVES

4.1 Vacation Buy-Back

411 As of January 1 of each year, an Exempt Management Employee can hold
no more than six-hundred (600) hours (8 hrs x 75 days) in reserve. The District shall
permit all Exempt Management Employees to “buy back” a portion of their individually
accrued and unused vacation days once each calendar year. Any such buy-back shall
not exceed a maximum of fifty percent (50%) of the vacation days accrued during a
normal calendar year by the requesting employees and a minimum of five (5) accrued
vacation days must remain in the employee’s accrual bank. Unless otherwise
specified, the hourly rate of pay for such days bought back by the employee shall be
the normal hourly rate of pay earned by the employee. A written request shall be
submitted to the General Manager at any time during the calendar year. The District
shall issue payment to the requesting employee within thirty (30) days after the date
of the written request.

4.2 Sick Leave Policy

421 The District provides paid sick leave in order to prevent a loss of earnings that
may be caused by illness, injury, or time off required to seek preventative care. Paid
sick leave is not intended to provide additional paid time off for reasons unrelated to
injury, illness, or the other purposes set forth in the complete policy. See Oakdale
Irrigation District Personnel Policies and Procedures Section 5.803 (Sick Leave).

422 At the time of retirement or termination of employment, Exempt
Management Employees will receive fifty (50%) percent of their pro-rated salary for
each day of accrued and unused sick leave.



SECTION 5 - WORKING CONDITIONS

5.1 Health and Wellness Policy

5.1.1 The District is committed to its employees and has established a policy for an
Employee Health and Wellness Program that will encourage a healthy lifestyle, reduce
absenteeism, lower health and insurance costs, lower workplace injuries, reduce stress,
and improve employee performance and moral. See Oakdale Irrigation District
Personnel Policies and Procedures Section 5.905 (Employee Health and Wellness
Program).

5.2_Holidays

5.2.1 Eligible employees are entitied to the following holidays with 8 hours pay
when they fall on a work day in the basic workweek:

New Year's Day Thanksgiving Day

President's Day Friday immediately following Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Christmas Eve Day

independence Day Christmas Day

Labor Day

Veteran's Day
When a recognized holiday falls on a Saturday, the work day immediately preceding

shall be deemed to be the paid holiday. When a recognized holiday falls on a
Sunday, the next work day shall be deemed to be the paid holiday.

SECTION 6 - FUTURE BARGAINING

6.1 Representation

6.1.1 Exempt Management Employees may meet and confer on a one-on-one
basis with the General Manager on all future issues of wage and benefits negotiations.

6.2 Re-opening

6.2.1 At any time during the term of this agreement, either party may request to re-
open negotiations on any existing language item or any existing benefits, provided that
a legitimate reason exists. It wil take the agreement of both parties to re-open
negotiations. Should the negotiations fail to reach an agreement, the original language
or benefits shall continue unchanged.



SECTION 7 - CONCLUSION

This Agreement becomes effective on the date it is executed and shall remain in effect until
11:59 p.m., December 31, 2022.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

By: %&J— ¢/ 4 [3;% Lo
Steve Knell, Genaral Manager Date

EXEMPT MANAGEMENT BARGAINING GROUP

By: W 6%?’0%90

Sharon Cisneros Date ' 7/
By: L — Ag— 7/44020
Xfason Jones Daté 7
By __few & Py —" Y /3ofz0
Eric Thorburn, P.E. Date/ 7/



00VbLST 98VE6 WL Z308CYL SLO09ET ETESETT VLS9TL  TLO6'9 SLI6SS  SLLLZS  LERLES €806 1598 6EER Ly8L ELVL YIINION3 LIIMLSITAEOVNYW SNOLLYHIAO HILVM
BTSOS VT LVVISEL VO9SL ST E€TOESCT SV EEGIL 89°€8 0L6L 06°5L (571 5389 WIDOVNV 53J1AN3S 1804dNS
L —— — —
065SvST  066ILVT  968I0VI 6ETSEEel T9SLLCT GUEETL  OFE6L0  GLOLY9 8L ¢9L9  vL8I8s (168 w6 8808 0L SEEL AN SVILL/HIDIFI0 TVIINYNIE 1D
sdays vdas sdas zdas tdas gdas pydas gdais zdays tdas sdys pdms sdas zdas tdaEs ANIWIDYNVIN LAWINE
ATHLNOW ADEIM-IE ATINOH
2202 ‘T AYVNNVT 10 SV
$33A014INI NOINN NON
2INAGIHIS AUVTVS 2202
1IR1SIA NOLLYDINYI IIVANYO %€
70982'ST  CIBSSWL  [8V98'El  VOWOT'ET  S8'SLS'TT 60SS0'L  ETEIL'D  LUG6E9  SPEE09  vEP0s'S BE'88 66'€8 6661 auas sl HIINIONI LIULSIO HIDYNYIN SNOLLYHILO HILYM
TL730%T OLCLyel €velldl [LS9TCT  88'S8STT TL66v9 OCOGL9 EvS68S OLPI9S  EELVES SZ18 SELL 69EL STOL ) YIDVNYIN STIIALIS [H0ddNS
€L900GT LU T6C¥L PIOI9EL TGCI6¢T SCGVECE 715269 165650 91829 OLCe6S 184695 | | 598 SV e 78°8L BLYL ZTiL H3ENSYIBL/EID140 TVIDNYNI 331HD
sdas pdais sdas rdxs T dags sdais vdas gdxs zdxs Tdas gdas  pdms  gdws zdas tdas LNBWIDYNYIN LAWIE
ATHINOW Aaam-a ATINOH
TZ0Z '€ AJVNNVT 40 SV
$33A01dN3 NOINN NON
31NAIHDS ABVIVS 1202
IDRILSIA NOILYOIHYI TIVAIVO %€
SZOVBVT (OEEL¥L LSOOVEL 696I8TT ELBOCTL 9E6Y8'9  OCELS9  LSTIX9  ELIT6S  66EY'S 798 $S18 9L 96'EL VoL ¥33INIONE LOIULSIA/4IOVNYIN SNOLLYEIO HILVA
ITC/9ET C¢LTZ0El  90T0r¢t VSOI8Tl  ELSKZIT $ZOIE0  GL6000 [SECLS COISvS WvI6LS 888 T SL vSIL 9 6819 YIDVNVN S3IIAY3S 140ddNS
OTBOS VT UV VZGET GLEICEl FE€GVES T OCSE61Il | | LL€¢LO 65E0r9 998609 V808  99TESS S0 Y008 €C9L 097, ST'ed d3ANSYILLIIIFI0 TVIDNYNIH S3THD
sdais ydas gdus zdas ydag sdxs ydas gdas zdas Tdag sdas  pdas gdas  zdas  1das LEWIOVRVIA LD
KTHINOW ADIZIM-1E ATYNCH
0202 ‘S AYYONVS 40 SV
$33A01dINI NOINN NON
FINAIHIS AVTVS 070C
1D141SIa NOLLYDINYI ITVaNVYO %€

Y Xipuaddy



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-NIL

ACCEPTANCE OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH THE EXEMPT MANAGEMENT BARGAINING GROUP

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2020, a Memorandum of Understanding was entered into by and
between the representatives of Oakdale Irrigation District, hereinafter referred to as
"District," and the named employees executing the Memorandum of Understanding who
were independently represented in the meet and confer process.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Memorandum of Understanding is
submitted to the Board of Directors for its consideration and approval. This resolution
supersedes any other previous resolution relating to the above subject matter.

Upon Motion of Director , seconded by Director , and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 5" day of May
2020.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Iltem Number: 13
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING
THE EMPLOYEE 2020 OFFICIAL SALARY AND WAGE SCHEDULE

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution Approving Employee 2020 Official Salary and Wage
Schedule

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

The attached salary and wage schedules approving a 3.5% wage increase for Operating Engineers
Local Union No. 3 and 3.0% for the three (3) unrepresented groups was agreed upon as part of 2020
negotiations.

3.5%
» Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3

3.0%
> Non-Exempt Confidential Group
> Exempt Supervisory Group
> Exempt Management Group

FISCAL IMPACT: Included in 2020 Budget

ATTACHMENTS:
> Unrepresented Employees Salary Schedule
> Resolution 2020-NIL

Board Motion:

Motion by: ' Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




020c/Vis

VNI 02'6Z 70 NOINN NON NOILYDIHISSY IO ¥3d IINATHOS ALY VS 020210202\sWa)| pieoq HHsHodey epuaby plecg\seoinossy uewnHyz

1O144S1d NOLLYDIYYI ITVAlNVYO

906¥7y EL9V0 ZOVSS'E 0S0L9E TLSeVE | | TIT96'T  zL98'T  8L8LLT  80U69T  THETYT 1S¥7  s€€z €Tz 8TIZ  LTOT YHT1D T4/LSIAL ¥HTTD/LSINOILAIITY
ITVIS'S  ¥SY6S'S  ET'STE's  Trvl0'Ss  LL7est | | ozTizT oressT  viesyT  vOTvET 15082 68°€€E  87TTE  VLOE 86T  88LT YYT1D NOLLVHLSINIAIGY / ¥HITD TIOHAVd
77918y I0Wh9y 88Ty LTy 89TIOVW | | LS0StT ovevT'c  ecTvO'T  TUVYET SSTS8T | | €8T 697 TS O0EWT bUEC o Y4310 INNOJDY
107L07 STSEL'9 ZSVIV'G 206019 OT'SIS'S | | T0¥9z's 8S'80T'E  SS096T LS6T8T T€5897 08°0r 988  TOLE  ¥TSE  LSEE N INVLNNODDV
Gdais  pdeys gdas gdaws pdais gdals  pda)s  gdays zdais  pdais gdais  pdas gdas  gdaxs  tdaxs 1INN TVILNIGIHNOD LIW3IX3-NON
6v'018'8  S6'06E'8 SET66L PSOT9L vsvrs | | 88°990v vrz8'E €889 69TIS'E  THSKEE €30S I¥8 OI9y  I6€r  ¢8TH YOSIAYIANS YAYIS 8 SALNILN ¥ILYM
STISE'S 0S€S6'L LL7ISL 90viZL vs089 | | 6evss’s s30/9't  Sso96vE  (S6ze’€ coTLlE | | 8T8y 68Sk  OLtEr ¢TIy vO6E - HOSIAYIANS SNOILYYIdO HILYM
OT'vv0'6  EVEI98 9Z'€0z'S €9ZI8L 090vY'L | | 0cviT'y  €v'Si6'€  TT98L'E  €8'S09€  TIVEV'E STZS 696  €€Lv  LOSt  €6Tb - YOLVNIQYOOD AL34VS
EV1/E6  LT'S26'8 LT00S8 Ovse08 06'60LL | | sTszey 1e6TTv  STEre'€  ve9eL’e evssse | | covs  ev1S w06y OL9v  8vbY HOLVHLSININQY SWILSAS LI
[T196'8 Srvese SOSTL8 00TvLL seeiss | | eeseTv seses’s  Tvisse  LLTiS'€ voTov'e | | oc1s  vzer 689y 99%y  £STw WOLVHLSININGQY SID4N0OSTY NVWNNH |
80009L LT8ET'L 0S€68°9 25959 197529 | | e£20s'e ocove's ¢918T’e  TT0€0't 85887 | | s®Ev  oLTv  Lr6€  88LE  L0'9E $OSIA¥IJNS FONVYNILNIVIA L3314
QTTSE'S  0S€S6L LL¥IS'L 90VITL v50.8'0 | | 6svS8'e  s80/9'c SO96v'E  [S6rE€ COTLIE | | 8T8y 685y  OL€r 9T vI6E YOSIAYIANS SNOILYYIdO 1314
| 999080 £578v'9 VR'ELT'9 S8'6L8'S 98665 | | ¥STVT'E v6T166T 9VEVRT 8LETLT SS¥8ST LT6€  OFLE  T9SE  T6EE  TECE B QY04 FHL OL YITD/INVLSISSY IAILNDIA
£9°6SE0T  19798'6  98°76€'6 85'Sv6'S 096158 | | 25644y  €6TSSY  LTSEEY €L8CTY  CTZEG'E v£6S 0695  6TVS  T9TS  ST6Y - ¥3INIONT ALVDOSSY |
YT72T'6  66'73L°8 OLVIE'S £v996'L 80L8SL | | LE9STY  69€S0T 99098’ 78'9L9'E  E€LTOSE OTES (905 978y  96SY  LLEV WIDVNVIAl SNOILVHIJO H3LYM LNVLSISSY
06798'8 79Shr'8 Srev0's €099 S9sezs | | s8z60'r 8668 o9eziL'e  85ses’€ cos9gs | | or1s  zesy  ovoy  eTvr 60w S ¥IINIDNT LNVLSISSY
s das pdais g days zdaxs T daxs g daas pdais gdas zdaxs 1 dog gdayg pdays gdays zdays  pdas LINN AYOSIAYIANS LdIN3XT
STOVS'YT 09EETVT LSOI'ET 6561871 £T'607TT| | 966v8'9 0z'€2s'9  LSTTT'9  €L916'S  6677EY'S 7958 vSI8  99ZL  96€L  PYOL ¥IINION3I LIIYLSIG/YIOVNYIN SNOILYHIO HILYM
[TTL9€T ZITZ0'ET 90'TOV'Zl ¥SO0T8'TT SU'SYeTl| | €20TE'9 S'600°9 LS'€TL's ZOTSY'S vwi6T's | | 888L  crsc  vSTL ¥189 689 YIDYNVIN SIDIAYIS 140ddNS
(078951 vrvi8'sT SLETZ'ET £5485CT 92s86TT | | Lo€24'9 65E0v'9 998600 ©7'808'S 99°TESS | | sove  v008  €zor  09TL  ST'69 ¥IUNSYIYL/YIDI340 TYIONYNIA 431HD
s daxs pdais g dais zdais T dais s dayg y dais gdas zdaxs T days gdals pdays gdeys  zdeys  pdays AN3IWIOVNYW LdINIXT
ATHLNOW ADIFIM-18 ATYNOH
0202 ‘S AYVNNYT 40 SV
$33A01dIWT NOINN NON
JINAIHOS AYVIVS 0202

%E




3.5% OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
2020 SALARY SCHEDULE
UNION CLASSIFICATIONS
AS OF JANUARY 5, 2020

TITLE Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
Construction & Maintenance Worker $26.49 | $27.82 | $29.21 | $30.67 | $32.20
Distribution System Operator/Construction & Maintenance $26.49 $27.82 $29.21 $30.67 $32.20
Worker
Equipment Operator $29.48 | $30.95 | $32.50 | $34.12 | $35.83
Fleet Equipment / Mechanic $27.20 | $28.56 | $29.99 [ $31.49 | $33.06
Leadman - Construction & Maintenance $29.14 | $30.60 | $32.13 | $33.73 | $35.42

Leadman - Distribution System Operator/Construction &

32.98 4, 36.36 .18 40.09
Maintenance Worker (Irrigation Season) 2 234.63 2 >38 >

Leadman - Maintenance & Operations $31.82 | $33.41 | $35.08 | $36.84 | $38.68
Maintenance / Operations Worker $28.93 | $30.37 | $31.89 | $33.49 | $35.16
SCADA Serviceman $29.40 | $30.87 | $32.41 | $34.03 | $35.73
SCADA Technician $34.40 | $36.12 | $37.93 | $39.83 | $41.82
Warehouseman / Yardman $26.49 | $27.82 | $29.21 | $30.67 | $32.20
Water Utilities Serviceman $25.91 | $27.20 | $28.56 | $29.99 | $31.49
Water Utilities Technician $29.54 | $31.01 | $32.56 | $34.19 | $35.90

FileH:\Classification and Compensation\1 - Salary Schedules\2020\2020 SALARY SCHEDULE PER CLASSIFICATION_UNION 05.01.20
FINAL.xIsx




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-NIL

ACCEPTANCE OF 2020 OFFICIAL
SALARY AND WAGE SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, on April 23 and 30, 2020, the salary and wage schedule was entered into by
and between the representatives of Oakdale Irrigation District, hereinafter referred to as
"District," and the named employees executing the Memorandum of Understanding for
Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3, Non-Exempt Confidential group, Exempt
Supervisory group and Exempt Management group, who were independently
represented in the meet and confer process.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2020 Official Salary and Wage
Schedule is submitted to the Board of Directors for its consideration and approval. This
resolution supersedes any other previous resolution relating to the above subject matter.

Upon Motion of Director , seconded by Director , and duly submitted to the
Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted this 5" day of April
2020.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Thomas D. Orvis, President
Board of Directors

Steve Knell, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary



BOARD AGENDA REPORT

Date: May 5, 2020
Item Number: 14
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO REQUEST EACH DIRECTOR TO
EXECUTE A RALPH M. BROWN ACT COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Execution of a Ralph M. Brown Act Compliance Agreement by
the Board of Directors

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:

As a requirement of the two Censures of Director Linda Santos, the Board of Directors requested that
Director Santos acknowledge her legal obligations and commit to comply with California Government
Code Section 54963(a) of the Ralph M. Brown Act. This section reads, in part, as follows:

A person may not disclose confidential information that has been acquired by being

present in a closed session . . . to a person not entitled to receive it, unless the legislative

body authorizes disclosure of that confidential information.

California Government Code Section 54963(a).
It has been recommended by legal counsel that all Directors execute the Compliance Agreement
acknowledging their fiduciary obligation as a Director of the Oakdale Irrigation District to maintain the
confidentiality of attorney-client privileged information and agree to comply with this obligation.

A Compliance Agreement has been prepared for each Director who sits on the Oakdale Irrigation
District’'s Board of Directors and it is requested that each Director execute the agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS:
» Compliance Agreements

Board Motion:

Motion by: Second by:

VOTE:
Orvis (Yes/No) Altieri (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) DeBoer (Yes/No)

Action(s) to be taken:




OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

The undersigned agrees to the following:

Date:

1.

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides in part as follows:

A person may not disclose confidential information that has
been acquired by being present in a closed session . .. toa
person not entitled to receive it, unless the legislative body

authorizes disclosure of that confidential information.

Cal. Govt Code Section 54963(a).

| understand that Section 54963(a) applies to all Closed Session meetings
of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors. | understand that
Section 54963(a) applies to me in my official capacity as a Director of the
Oakdale Irrigation District. | understand my obligations under Section
54963(a) and agree to comply with them.

| understand that | have a fiduciary obligation as a Director of the Oakdale
Irrigation District Board to maintain the confidentiality of attorney-client
privileged information. | agree to comply with this obligation.

Name: Thomas D. Orvis
Director

RESIGNATION

| hereby resign my position as a Director of Oakdale Irrigation District, the Tri-Dam
Project, and the Tri-Dam Authority, with immediate effect.

Date:

Name:



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

The undersigned agrees to the following:

Date:

1.

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides in part as follows:

A person may not disclose confidential information that has
been acquired by being present in a closed session . . .toa
person not entitled to receive it, unless the legislative body

authorizes disclosure of that confidential information.

Cal. Govt Code Section 54963(a).

| understand that Section 54963(a) applies to all Closed Session meetings
of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors. | understand that
Section 54963(a) applies to me in my official capacity as a Director of the
Oakdale Irrigation District. | understand my obligations under Section
54963(a) and agree to comply with them.

| understand that | have a fiduciary obligation as a Director of the Oakdale
Irrigation District Board to maintain the confidentiality of attorney-client
privileged information. | agree to comply with this obligation.

Name: Gail Altieri
Director

RESIGNATION

| hereby resign my position as a Director of Oakdale Irrigation District, the Tri-Dam
Project, and the Tri-Dam Authority, with immediate effect.

Date:

Name:



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

The undersigned agrees to the following:

Date:

1.

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides in part as follows:

A person may not disclose confidential information that has
been acquired by being present in a closed session .. .to a
person not entitled to receive it, unless the legislative body
authorizes disclosure of that confidential information.

Cal. Govt Code Section 54963(a).

| understand that Section 54963(a) applies to all Closed Session meetings
of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors. | understand that
Section 54963(a) applies to me in my official capacity as a Director of the
Oakdale Irrigation District. | understand my obligations under Section
54963(a) and agree to comply with them.

| understand that | have a fiduciary obligation as a Director of the Oakdale
Irrigation District Board to maintain the confidentiality of attorney-client
privileged information. | agree to comply with this obligation.

Name: Linda Santos
Director

RESIGNATION

| hereby resign my position as a Director of Oakdale Irrigation District, the Tri-Dam
Project, and the Tri-Dam Authority, with immediate effect.

Date:

Name:



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

The undersigned agrees to the following:

Date:

1.

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides in part as follows:

A person may not disclose confidential information that has
been acquired by being present in a closed session . . . to a
person not entitled to receive it, uniess the legislative body
authorizes disclosure of that confidential information.

Cal. Govt Code Section 54963(a).

| understand that Section 54963(a) applies to all Closed Session meetings
of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors. | understand that
Section 54963(a) applies to me in my official capacity as a Director of the
Oakdale Irrigation District. | understand my obligations under Section
54963(a) and agree to comply with them.

| understand that | have a fiduciary obligation as a Director of the Oakdale
Irrigation District Board to maintain the confidentiality of attorney-client
privileged information. | agree to comply with this obligation.

Name: Herman Doornenbal
Director

RESIGNATION

| hereby resign my position as a Director of Oakdale Irrigation District, the Tri-Dam
Project, and the Tri-Dam Authority, with immediate effect.

Date:

Name:



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

The undersigned agrees to the following:

Date:

1.

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides in part as follows:

A person may not disclose confidential information that has
been acquired by being present in a closed session...toa
person not entitled to receive it, unless the legislative body
authorizes disclosure of that confidential information.

Cal. Govt Code Section 54963(a).

| understand that Section 54963(a) applies to all Closed Session meetings
of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors. | understand that
Section 54963(a) applies to me in my official capacity as a Director of the
Oakdale Irrigation District. | understand my obligations under Section
54963(a) and agree to comply with them.

| understand that | have a fiduciary obligation as a Director of the Oakdale
Irrigation District Board to maintain the confidentiality of attorney-client
privileged information. | agree to comply with this obligation.

Name: Brad DeBoer
Director

RESIGNATION

| hereby resign my position as a Director of Oakdale Irrigation District, the Tri-Dam
Project, and the Tri-Dam Authority, with immediate effect.

Date:

Name:



DISCUSSION ITEMS

BOARD MEETING OF
MAY 5, 2020




DISCUSSION ITEM

Date: May 5, 2020
[tem Number: 15
APN: N/A

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION ON THE PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION
DISTRICT SURFACE WATER SHORTAGE POLICY

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

Oakdale Irrigation District’s (OID) Surface Water Shortage Policy (Policy) was originally adopted in
2008 and then updated in 2016 to provide a guide to the District and its Board during periods of water
shortages. However, OID’s in-district water demand has decreased and operations have changed over
the last several years as a result of both improved on-farm and OID operational efficiency. Staff
recommends updating the existing policy to reflect current conditions, procedures and operations
during water shortages.

Since 1999, OID has invested over $112 million in infrastructure and automation improvements to OID’s
conveyance system. Of that, over $75 million was generated directly from OID water sales. Changes
in on-farm water use practices have also occurred during this time due to crop conversion and in
response to the most recent drought and implementation of volumetric billing. These OID
improvements and on-farm adjustments have contributed to a decline in OID in-district water demand
even with the annexation of almost 10,000 acres since 2009. The starting point of level one water
shortage procedures in the draft Policy is proposed to drop approximately 15,000 acre feet to 235,000
acre feet of available surface water supplies. However, this may need to be re-evaluated again in the
future if and when in-district lands currently using groundwater come back online as SGMA
management actions progress.

The proposed revisions within the attached draft Policy update include, but are not limited to, the
following:

- Adjustments of allocation thresholds for implementation of level one and level two water
shortage procedures

- Facilitation of a Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program as a level two water shortage procedure

- Elimination of Table 1 — Water Resource Inventory & Expenditures

Staff welcomes any comments and/or suggestions to this policy. This policy will be brought back to the
Board at a later date for approval on the Consent Calendar.

ATTACHMENTS:
» OID Surface Water Shortage Policy — Redlined Draft
» OID Surface Water Shortage Policy - Clean
> Resolution 2020-NIL

Board Comments:




Oakdale Irrigation District - Surface Water Shortage Policy

Surface Water Shortage Policy
Adopted by Resolution No. on Mearefi-May 5, 204620

Introduction:

When the Oakdale Irrigation District (OID) was formed in 1909 its’ specific purpose and charge
was and still is as trustee of the surface water rights of the District’s constituents. The control
and distribution of that water is controlled by the reasonable and beneficial standards under the
California Water Code. With respect to those Codes and to the senior water rights of OID, the
District is committed to managing this right to the mutual benefit of all lands within the District’s
service boundaries first and foremost. There will be times however where the quantity of the
water right available to the District is insufficient to meet the water demands of the crops grown.
In those instances, this Surface Water Shortage Policy (Policy) has been developed to address
such shortages.

This Policy is to be used as a guide to the District and its Board during periods of water
shortages within the OID service area. Water shortages can occur for a variety of reasons due
both to single and multiple events that may include; drought, a lack of spring rains, unseasonably
high evapotranspiration, contractual obligations, canal failures on either the North or South
Main, etc.

Guiding Principles:
The guiding principles presented below are intended to illustrate the basic assumptions that were
used to develop the plan. The guiding principles are as follows:

1. The District’s obligation under California Water Code is to manage and deliver surface
water resources under its charge in-afor reasonable and beneficial mannerpurposes.

2. All lands within the District boundaries have an equal right to the availability of surface
water, irrespective of crop(s) grown.

3. District policy with regard to rotational deliveries of water is to make surface water
available when soil moisture depletion levels reach 2.4 inches.

4. Balancing the needs of agriculture to the financial needs of OID, in a time of water
shortage, is a Board d1scret10narv df:ClSlOIl based on the facts at the trme

MWMW%WMM%WW&M%

bl | The Dlstrlct will perm1t 1ntra-d1strlct water transfers between and among landowners
within the District’s service area upon approval of a Farmer-to-Farmer Transfer
Agreement. The District shall provide administrative and operation services to facilitate
these transactions.

6. OID will make its conveyance facilities available for the movement of water intra-district
water, when able to do so without impacting OID operations and maintenance, upon
approval of a Temporary Permit for Conveyance Channel Use.

7. Once the surface water resources of the District as outlined under the 1988 Stipulation
Agreement are exhausted, the District will suspend all water deliveries to its constituents.
At that time, Fthe District will make make-availableits the-groundwater resources ewned

Page 1



Oakdale Irrigation District - Surface Water Shortage Policy

by—the—Q&s%ﬁe%aVallable on an at-cost- bas1sW&fd—ef—Dife&e&
S ‘ng-the-rrigation-season—when
ble to do SO w1thout ungactmg OID operations and maintenance—enee-surface—water
deliveries-have beensuspended.
During times of diminished or suspended drain water availability, all lands within the
District boundaries that rely solely on drain water must secure a direct connection to a
surface water conveyance facility or secure other opportunities for water delivery from
landowners with groundwater resources.

Levels of Surface Water Shortages and OID’s Response:

Under the 1988 Stipulation Agreement with the Bureau of Reclamation, OID can expect water
shortages when the annual inflow into New Melones is less than 600,000 acre feet. The shortage
levels and the subsequent OID actions to be taken for that shortage level are identified below:

1.

3.

Level One — The District allocation is less than 250235,000 acre feet. As soon as the
shortage is known or discovered the District will take any or all of the following actions
depending on the shortage:

a. Suspension of Out of District Agreements

b. Partial utilization of District Deep Wells as required

d-c.Extended rotation intervals te-meet-2-4-inch-depletion-poliey-(i.e. 18, 20 or 22

day rotations)

Level Two — The District allocation is less than 225220,000 acre feet. As soon as the
shortage is known or discovered the District will take the following actions in the
following order:

a. All of Level One elements

b. Increased utilization of District Deep Wells

c._Diminished allocation to Tier 2 constituents as may be necessary

e-d.Facilitation of a Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program as described below

£e. Fines for unauthorized use or theft of water and lock-out for the remainder of the
season after a second offense
ef.:

fe{—&he-femamdef—ef—meseaseweﬁ—the—seeend—eﬁeﬂseFmes for unreasonable tall
water runoff as described below

Level Three — The District allocation is below 190,000 acre feet. As soon as the shortage
is known or discovered the District will take the following actions in the following order:
a. All of Level One and Level Two elements
b. Full utilization of District Deep Wells
¢. _Suspension of deliveries to Tier 2 constituents
e-d.Implementation of a Water Allocation Program as described below.
d-e.Irrigation water availability limited to agricultural purposes only (no water to

pareels-S-acres-or-less;-ornamental ponds, etc.)

Page 2



Oakdale Irrigation District - Surface Water Shortage Policy

Tail Water Discharge Poliey-& Subsequent Fines

Under a Level Fhree-Two water shortage it will be incumbent upon all lands receiving
surface irrigation water to ensure that little-to-no water leaves their property. A water
user notice will be mailed out after sueh-a water shortage declaration has been made by
the Board of Directors informing each water user of the discharge restrictions. Should a
landowner be found in violation of this rule they will be issued a notice and fined
accordingly. If the landowner is found to be in violation of the rule a second time they
will be fined again and lose all rights to future irrigations for the remainder of the
irrigation season.

Fines for sueh-violations shall be set and approved by the Board of Directors annually as
may be necessary.

Water Allocation Program

The Water Allocation Program would consist of taking the year’s net surface water
available in acre feet and dividing it equally amongst the assessed Tier I acreage within
the District. The resultant number would be the maximum quantity of water allocated in
inches per acre to each Tier I water user. It would be incumbent upon the water users to
determine when they wanted to use the water available to them.

Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program

The Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program allows farmers to work together to fully utilize
available surface water supplies when supply is not expected to be adequate to meet the
normal demand of irrigators. Tier I water users may transfer their allocation, as
determined by OID through the Water Allocation Program., to other OID Tier I or Tier I
lands. Upon execution of a Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program Application Agreement
by both the contributing landowner(s) and the receiving landowner(s), OID would
facilitate the delivery. The water rate assessed by OID for all water transferred and
delivered through the Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program will remain consistent with the

OID water rate then in effect for the recipient’s lands (Tier I or Tier II) regardless of the

OID volumetric water rate (Tier I or Tier II) associated with the lands of the contributing

landowner(s).




Oakdale Irrigation District - Surface Water Shortage Policy

ier2-Constitaents 25000 —25:000 ~{0-t0-25:0009 0
[Reelaimed-Waterjr4] h2400Ess; | [95500Ts 7.50 3,500
River Waterers) 1600 —1:000 S0 )
[Sub-Tetal >230,350-ne-ft | <230,250-ne-ft | <205k to-230k) | <-209,250-ne-ft
TOTFAL-(Delivery >105.000-ae- <180kne-
Available-to-Furnout) vy <200,000-nc-ft| <180kt 200l9| o1
Shortfal-from Normal 0-te-25k >25k
[ET13]

Page 4




“g'“&*l.& OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
e Miscellaneous Policies and Procedures

Title Chapter Section
2 — OPERATIONS 1 2.109 Surface Water
Shortage Policy
Adopted: December 2, 2008 Revised: March 1, 2016, May 5, Page 1 of 4
2020
PURPOSE

The Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District (“District”) adopted a Surface Water Shortage
Policy to provide a guide to the District and its Board during periods of water shortages. Adoption of
this policy was and is a critical component of water resource management.

SCOPE

When the Oakdale Irrigation District (OID) was formed in 1909 its’ specific purpose and charge was and
still is as trustee of the surface water rights of the District’s constituents. The control and distribution of
that water is controlled by the reasonable and beneficial standards under the California Water Code. With
respect to those Codes and to the senior water rights of OID, the District is committed to managing this
right to the mutual benefit of all lands within the District’s service boundaries first and foremost. There
will be times however where the quantity of the water right available to the District is insufficient to meet
the water demands of the crops grown. In those instances, this Surface Water Shortage Policy (Policy)
has been developed to address such shortages.

This Policy is to be used as a guide to the District and its Board during periods of water shortages within
the OID service area. Water shortages can occur for a variety of reasons due both to single and multiple
events that may include; drought, a lack of spring rains, unseasonably high evapotranspiration,
contractual obligations, canal failures on either the North or South Main, etc.

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
1. GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The guiding principles presented below are intended to illustrate the basic assumptions that were
used to develop the plan. The guiding principles are as follows:

A The District’s obligation under the California Water Code is to manage and deliver surface
water resources under its charge for reasonable and beneficial purposes.

B. All lands within the District boundaries have an equal right to the availability of surface
water, irrespective of crop(s) grown.

C. District policy with regard to rotational deliveries of water is to make surface water

available when soil moisture depletion levels reach 2.4 inches.



=]1=
- M Pol dP d

iscellaneous Policies an rocedures
5‘%\%

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Title

2 — OPERATIONS 1 2.109 Surface Water

Chapter Section

Shortage_PoIicy

Adopted: December 2, 2008 Revised: March 1, 2016, May 5, Page 2 of 4

2020

Balancing the needs of agriculture to the financial needs of OID, in a time of water
shortage, is a Board discretionary decision based on the facts at the time.

The District will permit intra-district water transfers between and among landowners
within the District’'s service area upon approval of a Farmer-to-Farmer Transfer
Agreement. The District shall provide administrative and operation services to facilitate
these transactions.

OID will make its conveyance facilities available for the movement of intra-district water,
when able to do so without impacting OID operations and maintenance, upon approval of
a Temporary Permit for Conveyance Channel Use.

Once the surface water resources of the District as outlined under the 1988 Stipulation
Agreement are exhausted, the District will suspend all water deliveries to its constituents.
At that time, the District will make its groundwater resources available on an at-cost-basis
when able to do so without impacting OID operations and maintenance.

During times of diminished or suspended drain water availability, all lands within the
District boundaries that rely solely on drain water must secure a direct connection to a
surface water conveyance facility or secure other opportunities for water delivery from
landowners with groundwater resources.

LEVELS OF SURFACE WATER SHORTAGES AND OID’S RESPONSE

Under the 1988 Stipulation Agreement with the Bureau of Reclamation, OID can expect water
shortages when the annual inflow into New Melones is less than 600,000 acre feet. The shortage
levels and the subsequent OID actions to be taken for that shortage level are identified below:

A.

Level One — The District allocation is less than 235,000 acre feet. As soon as the shortage
is known or discovered the District will take any or all of the following actions depending
on the shortage:

a. Suspension of Out of District Agreements
b. Partial utilization of District Deep Wells as required
C. Extended rotation intervals (i.e. 18, 20 or 22 day rotations)

Level Two — The District allocation is less than 220,000 acre feet. As soon as the shortage
is known or discovered the District will take the following actions in the following order:



gm*!é“‘n"” OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
L Miscellaneous Policies and Procedures
Title Chapter Section
2 — OPERATIONS 1 2.109 Surface Water
Shortage Policy
Adopted: December 2, 2008 Revised: March 1, 2016, May 5, Page 3 of 4
2020
a. All of Level One elements
b. Increased utilization of District Deep Wells
c. Diminished allocation to Tier 2 constituents as may be necessary
d. Facilitation of a Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program as described in Section 5 below
e. Fines for unauthorized use or theft of water and lock-out for the remainder of the
season after a second offense
f. Fines for unreasonable tail water runoff as described in Section 3 below
C. Level Three — The District allocation is below 190,000 acre feet. As soon as the shortage is
known or discovered the District will take the following actions in the following order:
a. All of Level One and Level Two elements
b. Full utilization of District Deep Wells
C. Suspension of deliveries to Tier 2 constituents
d. Implementation of a Water Allocation Program as described in Section 4 below
e. Irrigation water availability limited to agricultural purposes only (no water to

ornamental ponds, etc.)

TAIL WATER DISCHARGE POLICY & SUBSEQUENT FINES

Under a Level Two water shortage it will be incumbent upon all lands receiving surface irrigation
water to ensure that little-to-no water leaves their property. A water user notice will be mailed
out after a water shortage declaration has been made by the Board of Directors informing each
water user of the discharge restrictions. Should a landowner be found in violation of this rule they
will be issued a notice and fined accordingly. If the landowner is found to be in violation of the
rule a second time they will be fined again and lose all rights to future irrigations for the remainder
of the irrigation season.

Fines for violations shall be set and approved by the Board of Directors annually as may be
necessary.



1D
—ex|  OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
Miscellaneous Policies and Procedures

N

Title Chapter Section

2 — OPERATIONS 1 2.109 Surface Water

Shortage Policy
Adopted: December 2, 2008 Revised: March 1, 2016, May 5, Page 4 of 4
2020

WATER ALLOCATION PROGRAM

The Water Allocation Program consists of taking the year’s net surface water available in acre feet
and dividing it equally amongst the assessed Tier | acreage within the District. The resultant
number would be the maximum quantity of water allocated in inches per acre to each Tier | water
user. It would be incumbent upon the water users to determine when they wanted to use the
water available to them.

FARMER TO FARMER TRANSFER PROGRAM:

The Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program allows farmers to work together to fully utilize available
surface water supplies when supply is not expected to be adequate to meet the normal demand
of irrigators. Tier | water users may transfer their allocation, as determined by OID through the
Water Allocation Program, to other OID Tier | or Tier Il lands. Upon execution of a Farmer to
Farmer Transfer Program Application Agreement by both the contributing landowner(s) and the
receiving landowner(s), OID would facilitate the delivery. The water rate assessed by OID for all
water transferred and delivered through the Farmer to Farmer Transfer Program will remain
consistent with the OID water rate then in effect for the recipient’s lands (Tier | or Tier II)
regardless of the OID volumetric water rate (Tier | or Tier Il) associated with the lands of the
contributing landowner(s).



COMMUNICATIONS

BOARD MEETING OF
MAY 5, 2020




[ ]

2485 Natomas Park Drive, Suite 600
Sacramento, CA 95833

T +1.916.920.0300

F +1.916.920.8463

Subject Status Report for March 2020

Project Name Stanislaus River Basin Plan

Attention Rick Dodge/Tri-Dam Project

From Greg Eldridge/CH2M

Date April 20, 2020

Copies to Steve Knell/OID, Peter Rietkerk/SSJID, Mark Leu/CH2M

This memorandum describes the progress by the CH2M project team on the Stanislaus River Basin Plan
(Basin Plan) from February 29, 2020 through March 27, 2020. The work completed to date is summarized
below by task.

Status Reports

Task 1.1 - Demand for OID

e Coordinated with OID regarding their review of the draft TM for Basin Water Demand and coordinated
team effort to addressing comments.

Task 1.2 - Demand for SSJID

¢ No activity this reporting period.

Task 1.3 - Other Demands

e No activity this reporting period.

Task 2 - Forecast Basin Water Supply

e Continued draft content development and coordination with Dan Steiner for the Task 2.1 Deliverable -
Baseline Water Supply & Demand technical memorandum. Updated content for issues affecting basin
supply. Reviewed internal draft of Memo.

e Team calls to coordinate activities.

Task 3.1 — Financial Analysis for OID

e Prepared for meeting with OID including updating existing model. Participated in financial model
meeting with OID staff on March 5 in Oakdale.

e Participated in monthly team call on March 12.

Task 3.2 - Financial Analysis for SSJID

o No activity this reporting period.



Status Report for March 2020

Task 3.3 — Combined Financial Summary

e No activity this reporting period.

Task 4 - Identify and Evaluate Actions
e Participated in team call with OID and SSJID on March 12,

Task 5 - Development and Evaluation of Alternatives
(Develop Evaluation Toolset)

¢ Continued coordination with OID and SSJID and Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority
consultants. Provided PowerPoint presentation summarizing enhancements to the OID portion of the
model on March 13.

e Provided modified ESJWRM input files and the groundwater hydrographs tool on March 19.

Task 6 - Develop Basin Plan

e No activity this reporting period.

Task 7 - Basin Partner Engagement

« No activity this reporting period.

Activities Planned for Next Reporting Period
e Continue with Basin Plan tool preparation and development.

e Deliver revised draft version of the Task 2.1 Deliverable — Baseline Water Supply & Demand
technical memorandum for District review and schedule a workshop to review results and next steps.

s Update the preliminary list of potential actions for the Basin Plan as needed.

e Coordinate with OID to update financial model.

Project Management ltems

No notable items at this time.



~

O’Laughlin & Paris LLP Attorneys at Law
MEMORANDUM
To: SJTA Managers
From: O’Laughlin & Paris
Issue: SJTA Monthly Meeting: April 1, 2020

On April 1, 2020, the SITA held a monthly meeting to discuss budget, administration, and
pending cases/issues. Below is a summary of the meeting.

1. Budget: Michael Clipper presented the SITA Year-to-Date Budget.

2. SJTA Invoices: Invoices for March 2020 consisted of O’Laughlin & Paris’s attorney fees, an
invoice from Daniel B. Steiner for the Bay-Delta litigation, and filing fees for an appeal of
the attorneys’ fees issue in the curtailment litigation. Payment of all invoices was approved
by a unanimous vote of the managers.

3. WQCP/SED - Coordinated Bay-Delta Litigation:

State Court Litigation

After the case management conference in December, the court ordered the United States'
state case coordinated with the other state cases in Sacramento Superior Court. The court has
now ordered that the South Delta and Central Delta Water Agencies' case be coordinated
with the other twelve. The State Water Board is still preparing the administrative record in
the Coordinated Bay-Delta litigation, but on January 6, 2020, sent a draft index of the record
to counsel for review. This initiated a 90-day window for the petitioners to review the index
and notify the Board of any objections to documents in the index, or to request the addition
of documents not included in the index. This 90-day window closes on April 6, 2020.

O’Laughlin & Paris sent a draft of a chart summarizing documents excluded from the index,
as well as broad categories of documents not included by the Board (like internal emails
between staff, or emails between Board members) to SJTA for review on March 26, 2020.
The SITA and other petitioners have also jointly filed a request with the SWB to obtain a
privilege log of all documents the Board excluded from the index on the basis that they are
protected by attorney-client, work product, or deliberative process privileges. The Board has
declined to provide such a log, and discussions on resolving that issue are ongoing. It will
likely result in motion practice so that the judge may determine the appropriateness of
providing the privilege log and any documents withheld by the Board.

After April 6, the Board will have 45 days to review our response to its draft index.



o
O’Laughlin & Paris LLP Attorneys at Law

Eastern District (Federal) Litigation

The United States' CEQA challenges to the WQCP filed in federal court were recently stayed
so that the Sacramento Superior Court may resolve those claims. However, the federal court
will allow the U.S.’s remaining claim regarding intergovernmental immunity to proceed. The
SWB and Reclamation have now briefed their positions on the intergovernmental immunity
and ripeness issues as requested by the Court; the SWB’s main argument is that the WQCP
and SED are not self-implementing and the United States has not been harmed because the
salinity requirement has not been implemented. The SJTA disagrees with this position, and
given that it stands to be affected by a resolution of ripeness issues concerning the
intergovernmental immunity claim if the federal judge's decision is sweeping, the SJTA filed
a motion to allow the SJTA to submit an amicus brief on these topics on March 5, 2020. The
SWB filed an opposition on March 24 (Reclamation filed a notice of non-opposition), and we
filed a reply on March 31.

4. BiOps: U.S. Fish and Wildlife and the National Marine Fisheries Service (the “Services™)
issued two separate Biological Opinions (“BOs™) on October 21, 2019, concluding that the
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation’s proposed new operations for the CVP (the Long-Term
Operations Plan for the CVP and SWP, or “LTO Plan”) would not jeopardize listed species
under the Endangered Species Act. The overall result will be a general relaxing of export
restrictions and a decrease in Delta outflow. A collection of NGOs, including NRDC, filed
suit in federal court challenging the BOs just after they were issued last fall. The Record of
Decision, which finalizes the adoption of the BOs, was issued on February 19, 2020. Since
then, the State has filed litigation against NMFS, Reclamation, and certain federal employees
in their official capacity on the basis that the science in the BOs does not support the
conclusion that there will be no jeopardy to threatened or endangered species. The State has
asked the court to set aside the BOs, so that Reclamation will be required to continue to
operate under the 2008 and 2009 BOs.

Both the NGO and state cases have now been transferred to the Eastern District, though they
have not yet been coordinated or consolidated. A number of water interests, including
Westlands and San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority, have successfully intervened in
one or both cases, or have filed for leave to intervene in the cases.

In the interim, the NGOs also filed a preliminary injunction on March 5 asking the court to
prohibit the agencies from relying on the new BOs while the case is pending. The
preliminary injunction motion is set to be heard on April 16.

On March 31, DFW issued an Incidental Take Permit and supporting EIR for the long-term
operations of the SWP in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. The previous ITP for the LTO
of the SWP relied on the 2008 and 2009 BOs, and expired just yesterday. We’ll review the
ITP in depth and send a summary to the SJTA.



/‘%’%
O’Laughlin & Paris LLP Attorneys at Law

5. Comprehensive Operations Plan: The Bay-Delta Plan, as adopted by the Board in
December 2018, requires the SWP and CVP to develop a Comprehensive Operations Plan
and Monitoring Special Study (“COP”) to describe actions by which the CVP and SWP will
fully address impacts of their operations on Delta salinity. CVP and SWP have since put out
a draft COP, which the SWB released for review and comment last week. Essentially, the
COP states that the CVP and SWP are operating pursuant to the 2008 and 2009 BOs, and
concludes that CVP and SWP operations cannot be changed to improve salinity issues in the
Delta. OLP has sent out draft comments to this group on two main issues: first, the idea that
the CVP and SWP can avoid any existing salinity requirements under D-1641 through this
COP, which appears to be an improper way to side-step public notice, comment, and
hearing requirement, and second, that the COP (like the Bay-Delta Plan) seems to mix flow
components and salinity components. The idea that a 40% unimpaired flow requirement will
“help meet” the salinity requirements is concerning and objectionable. We will finalize and
file comments on the draft COP.

6. Voluntary Agreements: On February 4, 2020, the State announced its new comprehensive
framework for the VAs, including flows, habitat, and funding that would be “adequate” to
submit to the SWB for consideration. Given the other pending matters like the BO lawsuits
and recently-issued ITP, the VAs are effectively on hold. It does not appear that there will
be continued substantive discussions until some of the other pending matters which might
affect the VAs are resolved or clarified.

7. Wetlands Regulatory Proceedings and Complaint: On August 28, 2019, the Office of
Administrative Law approved the wetlands procedures adopted by the Board in April 2019.
The Procedures are scheduled to take effect May 28, 2020 (9 months after OAL approval).
The SITA has filed a complaint challenging the wetlands regulations, and has now filed a
letter requesting the Board to prepare the administrative record for the lawsuit. The attorney
general’s office demurred to the SJTA’s petition on standing and substantive grounds. The
court denied the demurrer on the standing basis, finding that the SITA has “public interest
standing.” The court continued the substantive demurrer challenges to a later hearing on the
merits. We are in the process of working towards a cap on administrative record costs.

The Stanford Law School environmental clinic reached out to our office last month to ask
for a stipulation to intervene in this case on behalf of a group of NGOs. The group will
attempt to enlarge the issues beyond the limited legal challenges raised by the SJTA’s
complaint. We drafted a proposed stipulation that would allow the group to intervene
subject to a restriction that they stick to the substantive issues already raised by the existing
parties. The group responded that the proposed stipulation was too restrictive given their
desire to include discussion of policy issues, and they intend to move forward with a motion
to intervene. Their motion, set for late April, has been moved off calendar for now due to
COVID, but to the extent that hearing is re-calendared, we will bring an update to this group
to decide how to proceed.



O’Laughlin & Paris LLP Attorneys at Law

8. Curtailment Litigation: This matter is on appeal; the SWB has appealed the Court’s
decision on the merits and the water users have appealed the Court’s denial of their
respective motions for attorneys’ fees. Briefing will begin once the trial court compiles the
record on appeal and sends it to the appellate court.

9. Delta Conveyance Project: Our office attended a scoping meeting for the new Delta
Conveyance Project — the successor to the WaterFix project — at the end of February. DWR
is the lead agency for the Project. The new proposal is for a single tunnel to convey water
south of the Delta, with a proposed capacity of 6,000 cfs (although as part of the EIR
process, the SWB will consider a range of 3,000 to 7,500 cfs capacity). The Draft EIR is
anticipated by the end of 2020, and after significant public review, the Final EIR is currently
projected for early 2022. DWR will initiate the petition to modify water right permits as
early as mid-2021. As a reminder, they filed a similar petition for WaterFix, but then
abandoned that petition when WaterFix was scrapped. DWR is accepting scoping comments
to help structure the Draft EIR through March 20, 2020; our office will draft comments as
appropriate, and will keep the STJA apprised of further developments.

10. Earth Law Center Litigation: As a reminder, the Earth Law Center sued the SWB in
November 2017 on the basis that the SWB failed to include hydrologically-impaired (i.e.,
low flow) waters on the 303(d) list, and failed to submit the list every two years as required
by the statute. The Court agreed with the SWB’s demurrer on the hydrologic impairment
issue, so no further involvement is necessary on that front, but found for Earth Law Center
on the SWB’s failure to submit the list every two years. ELC is asking for approximately
$800,000 in attorneys’ fees from the SWB (there is no risk that the SJITA will be asked to
pay any portion of this). The SWB responded by asking the court to reduce attorney’s fees
to approximately $100,000. ELC has appealed on the hydrologic impairment issue, and the
SWB cross-appealed on the question of whether a petitioner can challenge violations of
federal law in state court, relying on the 1999 Supreme Court case Alden v. Maine.

The court has now granted ELC’s fee request in the amount of approximately $350,000.
Both sides may now drop their respective appeals.

11. SGMA and Groundwater: DWR finalized Prop 68 funding on March 13; most basins that
requested funding received it to carry out projects related to SGMA or other compliance
actions. Most basins are now working on amending their grant agreements accordingly. For
basins with completed GSPs, the 2020 annual report is due April 1, 2020. DWR has taken the
position that it can’t extend the deadline to submit these reports because the deadline was
written into SGMA, but is leaving open the submission portal and will “look the other way” if
submissions are a few weeks late. Two cases have been filed by the California Sportfishing
Protection Alliance challenging GSPs that were submitted for the Eastern San Joaquin and
Delta-Mendota Basins. The cases were filed as reverse validation lawsuits, and accordingly
there will be a number of pre-trial procedural considerations to address before getting to the
merits of the suits.



/"%4
oNE ﬁ*"
O’Laughlin & Paris LLP Attorneys at Law

12. Urban Water Use Reporting Regulations: On November 14, 2019, the State Water Board
issued a Notice of Proposed Regulatory Action for adoption of urban water conservation
reporting regulations based upon the waste and unreasonable use doctrine. Our office
submitted comments on the proposed regulations in January, on the basis that the Board’s
reliance on the waste and unreasonable use provision of the California Constitution is
improper. We also requested that the Board set aside its effort to incorporate existing
regulations pertaining to the Napa and Russian Rivers into the pending urban water
conservation reporting regulation. The Board recently re-circulated a draft of the regulation,
and it adopted our comments in that it removed the Russian and Napa River regulations
from consolidation with the new regulation, and took out direct references to waste and
unreasonable use in the title and text. However, the Board is still referencing Article X,
Section 2 (waste and unreasonable use) as a basis for its authority to adopt the regulations.
The Board is not accepting further written comments and will be considering the regulations
for adoption at a Board meeting in April.



Oakdale Irrigation District
Memorandum

To: All Employees

From: Steve Knell, P.E., General Manager

Date: April 20, 2020

Re: Board of Director’s Directive - Non-Contact Order with Director Santos

On December 10, 2019 Director Linda Santos was censured by the Oakdale lIrrigation
District Board for her actions which violated the General Manager's Employment Agreement
and the Ralph M. Brown Act.

On March 26, 2020 Director Linda Santos was censured by the Tri Dam Board for matters
related to breaches of Closed Session Confidentiality of personnel information to third
parties not entitled to that information.

On April 7, 2020 Director Linda Santos was censured by the Oakdale Irrigation District
Board for matters related to breaches of Closed Session Confidentiality of personnel
information to third parties not entitled to that information.

The censure on April 7, 2020 included Five (5) Corrective Actions. Of particular applicability
to OID employees is Corrective Action Number 3, which states;

The Board of Directors hereby directs Director Linda Santos not to speak
with Oakdale Irrigation District employees regarding District business
outside of Oakdale Irrigation District Board Meetings, with the exception
of District General Manager Steve Knell.

All OID employees, supervisors or managers are hereby instructed by the Board of Directors
to refrain from any and all contact with Director Santos except for contact that is through the
General Manager. This also includes refraining from contact via third party individuals.

Any violation of these OID Board instructions by Director Santos shall be reported to your
immediate Supervisor for reporting to the General Manager.

Thank you for your expected cooperation.



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BOARD COMMITTEES
2020

All committees consist of two Directors and one Alternate Director except for the San Joaquin
Tributary Authority which consists of one Commissioner and one Alternate Commissioner, and
the JPIA Board of Directors, which consist of one Member and one Alternate Member,

FINANCE DOMESTIC WATER
“
Brad DeBoer Gail Altieri

Herman Doornenbal Tom Orvis
Alternate: Vacant Alternate: Brad DeBoer
] WATER/ENGINEERING TRI-DAM PROIJECT
“
Brad DeBoer Herman Doornenbal
Herman Doornenbal Tom Orvis
Alternate: Vacant Alternate: Brad DeBoer
PERSONNEL SAN JOAQUIN TRIBUTARY AUTHORITY
“
Gail Altieri Commissioner: Herman Doornenbal
Tom Orvis Alternate: Tom Orvis

Alternate: Vacant

PLANNING & PUBLIC RELATIONS

Gail Altieri
Brad DeBoer
Alternate: Vacant

Other Committees:
JPIA Board of Directors:

Director: Tom Orvis
Alternate Director: Vacant

Revised: 04-07-20



CLOSED SESSION
ITEMS

BOARD MEETING OF
MAY 5, 2020




